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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION
CODE AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE -

1. For the calendar year ended 2015
2. SEC Identification Number 6609
5 [LL.I.F:-I;:A.{-;,;.:j{‘:h?ﬁ!ﬂnwn.- . _.)
3, BIR Tax Identification No. 000-233-218 i
4. Exact Name of the registrant as specified in its charter PAXYS, INC.
5. Province, Country or other jurisdiction of incorporation: Philippines
6. Industry Classification Code: (SEC Use Only)
7. Address of principal office: 15" Floor, 6750 Avala Office Tower, Avala Avenue, Makati City
3. Issuer’s telephone number, including area code: (+632) 908-7500
9. Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report: Not
applicable

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Seclions 4 and § of the RSA

a) Authorized Capital Stock

Common shares, 1.00 par value 1,800,000,000 shares

b) Issued and Qutstanding Shares

Common shares, B1.00 par value 1,148,534,866 shares

¢) Amount of Debt Outstanding as of December 31, 2015:

B



Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] No[ ]
11. Check whether the issuer:
(i) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Section 11 of the Revised Securities Act (RSA) Rule 11(a) — 1 thereunder
and Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding

12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such
reports);

Yes[x] Nojf ]
(i1} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [ x ] No[ 1]
12. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates;

£513,827,167.49 (171,848,551 shares @ P2.99 per share as of December 31, 2015)
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Mtem 1. Description of Business

Corporate Information

Paxys, Inc. (“Paxys”, the “Company”, or the “Parent Company”) is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Philippines and listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (stock symbol: PAX). It
was formerly known as Fil-Hispano Holdings Corporation and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Comunission (SEC) on February 14, 1952, As of December 31, 2015, its
major shareholders are All Asia Customer Services Holdings Ltd. (AACSHL), a privately-held
company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Paxys NV, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
with 54.93% and 30.09% interests, respectively.

At present, the Parent Company’s operating subsidiaries provide general transcription, proofreading,
data conversion, contact center and back office outsourcing services,

Previous investments of Paxys include the following:

The Parent Company expanded its business and made several acquisitions in Australia through
Paxys Awustralia Pty Ltd (“PAU™). The most significant acquisition was made in April 2006
when PAU acquired SmartSalary Pty Ltd (*SmartSalary™), a salary packaging company based
in Australia, In 2009, SmartSalary aequired two major Australian providers of in-house salary
packaging software solutions, namely, Melboume System Group Pty Ltd and Seqoya Pty Ltd.
In 2010, PAU incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, Smartflect Management Pty Ltd
{**Smartfleet”), for the purpose of engaging in fleet management-related business. Smartfleet
further expanded by acquiring the assets of Webfleet Management Services Pty Ltd, a leading
provider of software solutions for online fleet management. Smartfleet also acquired Australian
Vehicle Consultants Pty Ltd, a full service fleet nanagement company and a leading provider of
vehicle maintenance services. Smartsalary also acquired PBI Benefit Solutions Pty Ltd, a
company engaged in issuing eredit eard produets to employees of public hospitals and public
benevolent institutions in Australia. In June 2012, the Company, through Paxys N.V., sold its
[00% interest in PAU and its subsidiaries to SmartGroup Investments Pty Lid.

In January 2007, Paxys, together with joint venture partner Stellar Global, Inc., established
Stellar Global Solutions Philippines, Inc. (“SGSP”). SGSP was organized to provide cost-
effective Philippine offshore outsourcing for the Australian and UK clients of the Stellar
Community. In April 2011, SGSP formed a wholly-owned subsidiary — Stellar Philippines, Inc.
(“Stellar Philippines™) to further expand Stellar’s operations in the Philippines. Paxys sold all
of its equity interests in SGSP and Stellar Philippines to Stellar Global, Inc. in July 2013.

In 2008, Paxys partnered with WNS Global Services Netherlands Cooperative U.A. (*“WNS
Global™) to form WNS Philippines, Inc. Based in Mumbai India, WNS Global is a leading
provider of business process outsourcing for various services such as banking, travel,
telecommunications, logistics, insurance, and healthcare, In Oetober 2011, Paxys transferred all
of its equity interests in WNS Philippines, Inc. to its foreign partner.

To further improve its [T capabilities and expertise, the Company acquired a majority stake in
Ubaldo Reidenbach Solutions, Inc. (“URSI”) in 2008. URSI is a Philippine company engaged
in IT consultaney focusing on Linux, Open Source Software and Red Hat Software. In 2008,
Paxys acquired majority ownership in Global Idealogy Corporation (“GIC”), a software



solutions provider. In October 2012, Paxys transferred all of its equity interests in URSI in
favor of URSI’s minority shareholders. In August 2011, Paxys sold all of its equity interests in
GIC in favor of GIC’s minority shareholders.

In October 2014, Paxys N.V., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent Comipany, completed a tender
offer to acquire 345,622,477 common shares of the Parent Company representing 30.09% of its
outstanding capital stock at the price of P3.20 per share. As of December 31, 2015, All Asia
Customer Services Holdings Ltd., a privately-held company based in Hong Kong, remains the
majority shareholder owning 54.93% of the Parent Company’s total issued and outstanding shares.
The public ownership level of Paxys is at 14.96% as of December 31, 2015,

The registered office address of the Parent Company is at 15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower,
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Philippines.

Bankruptcy/Receivership for the Group

There has been no bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceeding for the Paxys Group.

Business Combiuatious and Discontiuued Operations for the Last Three (3) Years

Sale of SGSP

On July 31, 2013, Paxys signed a Deed of Absolute Sale of Shares and Deed of Assignment of Share
Subscriptions for the transfer of Paxys’ equity interests in SGSP. Pursuant to the sale, Paxys
transferred 460,000 shares of SGSP, representing 50% of SGSP’s total share capital. As a result of the
sale, SGSP ceased from being a subsidiary of Paxys effective July 31, 2013.

Paxys Limited and Simpro Solutions Limited

On September 13, 2012, Paxys completed the purchase of 100% equity in Paxys Limited, a company
incorporated i Hong Kong. Paxys Ltd. owned 50% of Simpro Solutions Ltd. (SSL), a joint venture
incorporated in Hong Kong. The joint venture partner of Paxys Limited is Simpro Solutions, Inc., a
Canadian BPO company engaged in contact center and back office outsourcing activities. On August
3, 2012, SSL incorporated Simpro Solutions Philippines, Inc. (Simpro Philippines}). Simpro
Philippines will carry out the BPO business of Simpro in the Philippines.

Sale of URST

On October 31, 2012, Paxys signed a Deed of Absolute Sale of Shares for the transfer of 100% equity
interests in URSL. Pursuant to the sale, Paxys transferred 43,515 common shares, representing
63.51% of URSI’s total share capital, in favor of the minority shareholder.

Sale of PAU

Paxys NV signed a Share Sale Agreement with SmartGroup Investments Pty Ltd. whereby Paxys NV
sold 100% of its equity interest in PAU on March 30, 2012. The sale included all of the subsidiaries
of PAU consisting of SmartSalary Pty Ltd, Smartfleet Management Pty. Ltd., SeQoya Pty, Ltd., PBI
Benefit Solutions Pty. Ltd and Australian Vehicle Consultants Pty Ltd.



Principal Products or Service

Paxys is an investment holding company. Through its operating subsidiaries, Paxys has been engaged
in diversified services such as business processing outsourcing and data conversion throughout the
Philippines and intemationally. For the last three years, Paxys divested its call center, salary
packaging, IT consulting and software solutions business.

Scopeworks Asia, Inc. (SWA) is a Philippine BPO company engaged in general and legal
transcription, editing, proofreading, mortgage processing and data conversion services with clients in
the US and UK.

Simpro Philippines is a joint venture company engaged in contact center and back office outsourcing
activities,

SmartSalary is a salary packaging administration company based in Australia. It owns two major
Australian providers of in-house salary packaging software solutions — Melbourne Systems Group Pty
Ltd. and Seqoya Pty Ltd. SmartFleet is a provider of fleet management solutions in Australia and
New Zealand. The sale of Smartsalary and its subsidiaries, however, was completed with finality on
June 7, 2012,

Stellar is a Philippine joint venture company providing cost-effective offshore contact center and
business process outsourcing solutions for Australian and UK clients across a variety of industries,
including telecommunications, utilities, transport, finance, government, retail and manufacturing. The
sale of Stellar was completed on July 31, 2013.

URSI is an information technology solutions provider. Based in the Philippines, URSI focuses on
systems integration and related services such as business process enhancement, project
implementation and management, I'T consultancy, after sales support and outsourcing services. On
Qctober 31, 2012, Paxys transferred all of its equity interest in URSI to the minority shareholders.

Percentage of sales or revenues contributed by foreign sales (In Millions Php)

2015 2014 2013

Revenue Amount %o Amount % Amount %
Continuing
Foreign P134.7 | 100% R148.9 99% B155.3 98%
Local 1.6 1% 3.0 2%
Subtotal 1347 | 100% 150.5 158.3
Discontinuing
Foreign - - - - - -
Local - - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - - -
Total P134.7 | 100% £150.5 100% 2158.3 100%

Distribution methods of the products or services

To ensure that all of the clients’ needs are properly addressed and met, the team has developed the
Group’s website (www.paxys.com). Through this site, clients can easily access all of the subsidiaries’
services and individual websites.



SWA delivers the service to its clients using a proprietary system which integrates marketing.
transcription upload and download, job monitoring, customer service, and customer payment all on its
website.

Status of anv publicly- announced new product or service

There is no new product or serviee introduced in 2015.

Competition

The Conmpany’s competition within the global BPO services industry includes U.S.-based outsourcing
companies and offshore BPO companies.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials and the Names of Principal Suppliers

Paxys and its subsidiaries obtain equipment and other materials mostly from local suppliers. The
Company is not dependent upon one or limited number of suppliers for essential equipment and other
materials as it continuously looks for new suppliers that can satisfy the Company’s requirements.

Major Customers

For the past year, the Company’s major customers include UK courtrooms for the legal transcription
services, Asia-Pacific for the data document processing, customers, television contents in Singapore,
healthcare services consumers in Canada.

Related Party Transactions

Transactions between related parties in 2015 mainly include cash advances for working capital
advances and are aceounted for at arms-length prices. In 2015, Paxys granted cash advanees in
support of working capital requirements of ACS Pacific Limited and PGS Dalian amounting to ?10.8
million and P4.1 million, respectively.

Licenscs

On November 25, 2009, SWA’s registration of its expanding business process outsourcing service in
the field of data transcription activity was approved by BOIL This certification entitles SWA to a
three year [TH starting December 2009 until November 2012, The ITH shall be limited only to the
revenue generated from the registered expansion project. As a registered entity, SWA is required to
export at least 70% of its total services, among other requirements. The ITH incentive has expired in
November 2012, Thus, starting December 1, 2012, SWA is subjected to 30% regular corporate
income tax.

Simpro Philippines was registered with the Philippine Economic Zone Authority in October 2012 as
an Ecozone Information Technology Enterprise. Under Simpro’s registration conditions, Simpro’s
operations shall not be entitled to Income Tax Holiday (ITH}, but shall be entitled only to the 5%
Gross Income Tax (GIT) incentive, in lieu of all national and local taxes, including the additional



deduction of training expenses, as provided in RA 7916, as amended, and to incentives under
Article77, Book VI of EO 226.
Effect of existing or probable governmental regnlations on the busiuess

The limitation and conditions on SWA imposed by BOI has already ended in November 2012. In
2013, SWA s subject to government regulations same as regular business entity.

Simpro Philippines is subject to the export sales requirements prescribed for Economic IT Enterprises.

Research and Development

The Company has not spent any amount during the last three calendar years on research and
development activities.

Environmental Matters

The Company is not involved in any action or proceeding involving non-compliance in any material
respect with relevant environmental laws and regulations of the Philippines.

Employee and Labor Relations

On a consolidated basis, the Group has 271 employees, including regular, project-based and trainees
as of December 31, 2015,

Within the ensuing twelve {12) months, on a consolidated basis, the number of employees of the
Group is estimated to be 422 (including regular and project-based). There are no employees subject
to Collective Bargaining Agreements or employees on strike in the past three (3) years.

The Group provides its employees with medical insurance and leave benefits. For professional
development, the Group provides for team building activities and offers training programs that
address the specifie needs of employees. To foster work-life balance, the Group sponsors among
others, annual summer and year-end activities.

Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issuers

Debt Issues
The Company’s net worth exceeds £25 million. There are no unsecured bonds to be issued.

ﬂtem 2. Properties|

The Company’s consolidated assets consist of computer equipment, communication equipment,
leasehold improvements, office furniture, fixtures and equipment, transportation equipment and
softwarc pool. No property and equipment were pledged as collateral in 2015 and 2014,



The Company has no plans to acquire real property (by purchase or a new lease) in the next twelve
(12) months.

Below is the list of leased properties and the conditions thereof as of December 31, 2015:

PAXYS’ Location Expiration of Lease Term of Renewal
15" Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower, April 30,2021 5 years, renewable at the
Avyala Avenue, Makati City option of both parties
SWA’s Locations Expiration of Lease Term of Renewal
Building No.1, Diode St., Light Industry | December 31, 2018 Option of both parties
& Science Park (LISP), Brgy. Diezmo,
Cabuyao Laguna

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the Company or any of its subsidiary or
affiliates is a party, or of which any of their property is the subject.

[tem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no maiters submitted to a vote of security holders during the year covered by this report.



PART II - SECURITIES OF THE REGISTRANT

[tem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and ReJated Stockholders Matters|

Market Information

Principal market where common equity is traded: Philippine Stock Exchange

High and low sales prices for each quarter within the last two fiscal years:
The following are the high and low closing sales prices of the Corporation’s shares:

Closing Prices
High Low

2015

1* quarter 4.00 2.90

2" quarter 3.39 2.80

3" quarter 3.30 2.52

4" quarter 3.20 2.52
2014

1* quarter 2.72 2.13

2" quarter 2.85 2.33

3" quarter 3.17 2.28

4" quarter 3.20 2.80

Price information as of latest practicable trading date:
As of Deeember 31, 2015, Paxys shares are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange at the priee of
P2.99 per share,

Holders

The number of stockliolders of reeord as of Deeember 31, 2015 in the Company’s stock and transfer
book was 717. The common shares issued as of December 31, 2015 were 1,148,534,866. The list of
the top 20 stockholders of Paxys common shares as of December 31, 20135 is stated hereunder:

Name No. of Shares Held % To Total
ALL ASIA CUSTOMER SERVICES 621,260,820 54.09%"
HOLDINGS LTD.
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON- 464,195,762 40.41%
FILIPINO)
PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FILIPINO) 61,095,308 5.32%
KHO, JIMMY JAO 300,000 0.03%
CHUA, CARMEN 216,276 0.02%
GRANADOS, JUAN P. 158,112 0.01%
YAQ SHIONG SHIO 95,184 0.01%
KAW SEK & COMPANY 86,088 0.01%
LiM, GHEE KEONG 81,800 0.01%
PAREDES, ANTONIO 79,728 0.01%
URRUTIA, KEVIN 75,000 0.01%
WILLIS, HUGH WARREN 63,111 0.01%




JALANDONI, RODEGELIO M. 62,052 0.01%
CELIS. ANGELA 55,776 0.00%
MARTINEZ, EMILIO G. 55,236 0.00%
SANTIAGO, EDUARDO A. 37,920 0.00%
TANGCO, FRANCISCOF. 37,896 0.00%
CO, VICTORC. 31,536 0.00%
ASIAMERIT SECURITIES,INC. 24,000 0.00%
REYES, LEOPOLDOT. 19,800 0.00%
Total 1,148,031,405 99.95%

* This does not include the 9,538,218 shares lodged with AB Capital Securities, Inc. The total
number of shares owned by All Asia Customer Services Holdings Lrd. is 630,844,038
representing 54.93% of the total outstanding shares

Dividends

There were no dividends declared to public for the last three (3) years.

Description of Registrant’s Securities

Common Stock

Commeon share with par value of 21.00 is the only class of shares of Paxys. As of December 31,
2015, total issued and outstanding shares of the Company amounted to 1,148,534,86G shares. Total
authorized capital shares of stock are 1.8 billion shares.

Debt Securities
The Company does not have any debt securities to be registered.

Securities Subject to Redemption or Call

There are no securities subject to redemption or call.



PART 111 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

(Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2014

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
Sfinancial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit "C”) thereio and is qualified in its entirety by
reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{In Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

For the full year ended 31 December 2015 2014 Y15vs Y14
Profit & Loss Data:
Service Income R134,700 R150,509 (11%)
Gross Profit 15,767 17,982 12%
ERITDA' (3,842) (7,480) 49%
Loss from operations” (51,588) (56,061) 8%
Net Loss attributable to equity holders (12,569) (20,849) 40%

Service income in 2015 pertains to the revenue of the only remaining operating subsidiary of the
Group, Scopeworks Asia (SWA) while 2014 includes revenue from both SWA and Paxys Global
Services, Inc. (PGSI). In 2014, PGSI has discontinued its operations primarily due to non-renewal of
its accounts. This, together with the lower volume of SWA account resulted to 11% or P15.8 millicn
decrease in the Group’s Service Income.

At the Gross Profit (GP) level, the decrease in Service Income was offset by the savings in Direct
Costs of SWA, particularly personnel costs, resulting to a minimal shortfall of 22.2 million in GP
Versus prior year.

Despite lower Service Income for the year, the Group’s Operating Loss has nonetheless improved by
8% or 4.5 million versus prior year mainly due to operating efficiencies and other cost-saving
initiatives of SWA,

The surplus funds of the Group continue to provide a stable additional income for the Group. In
2015, some of the funds were moved to local banks with higher yield rates and short term duration
bonds (classified as Held to Maturity Securities in the consolidated financial statements) which
resulted to a higher Other Income by at least 5.3 million. This together with favorable foreign
exchange rate and cost efficiencies of SWA resulted to an improved the bottomline of the Group
amounting to #12.6 million loss or a 40% turnaround versus prior year’s loss of £20.8 million.

' EBITDA is defined as Earnings Before Interest Expense, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization.
= Excludes Interest Income but includes Gain on Disposal of Investments and Equity Gain on Joint Ventures



Scopeworks Asia. Inc.

The following table shows key performance indicators of Scopeworks, the remaining operating
subsidiary of the Group:
({n Php Thousands)

For the full year ended 31 December 2015 2014 Y15vs Y14
Profit & Loss Data:

Service Income £134,700 R145 969 {8%)

Gross Profit 15,767 18,321 {14%)

EBITDA 3,522 5,989 {41%)

Income from operations 1,734 3,725 (53%)

Net Income 1,273 3,109 (59%)

SWA’s service income has decreased versus prior year mainly due to the lower volume of its Voice to
Text account. This decline has no direct correlation on the performance of the company but is
principally due by the improvement in the technology or lower demand for the service.

Nevertheless, the company has been proactive in looking for new revenue streams. Likewise, the
financials of the Group remained strong and the 211.3 million decrease in the Service Income versus
prior year has been reduced to a minimal amount of 1.8 million at the Net Income level.

Paxvs Global Services, Inc, (PGS)

The following table shows key performance indicators of PGS:
{In Php Thousands)

For the full year ended 31 December 2015 2014 Y15vs Y14
Profit & Loss Data:
Service Income £ P4,540 (100%)
Gross Profit - 1,627 (100%)
EBITDA (355) 2,293 (116%)
Loss from operations (355) (518) (31%)
Net Loss (355) (562) (37%)

The revenue contracts of PGS were terminated in April 2014, The Net Loss in 2015 pertains to
statutory expenses of the company. Management is continuously seeking for new business
opportunities for PGS.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
financial siatements and notes (presenied as Exhibit “C") thereto and is gualified in its entirety by

reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
(in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

As of 31 December 2015 2014 Y15vs Y14
Balance Sheet Data:
Continuing;
Total Current Assets R3,579.165 23,478,780 3%
Total Noncurrent Assets 16,037 19,266 (17%)
Total Assets 3,595,202 3,498,046 3%
Total Current Liabilities 45,010 48,380 (7%)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,789 11,122 (39%)
Total Equity 3,543,403 3,438,544 3%

The significant changes in the balance sheet items from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2014 are

as follows:

e The Group’s total assets increased by 3% or about 2100 million because of the gain in translation
of Paxys NV’s dollar-denominated funds. This translation gain is likewise shown in the Equity
section of the consolidated statements of financial position under “Other Equity Reserves”

¢ Noncurrent liabilities in 2015 was lower by 39% compared to prior year mainly due to lower
retirement liability as a result of gain on curtailment.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
Sinancial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C”') thereto and is qualified in ils entirety by

reference therelo.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
(in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

(In Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

For the full year ended 31 December 2015 2014 Y15vs Y14

Net Cash provided by (used in} Operating Activities (B16,597) R145,6%6 111%
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (333,360) {1,848) 17,939%
Net Cash used in Financing Activities - | (1,073,226) (100%)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (349,947} (929,378) 62%
The cash used in investing activities pertain to investment in short-duration bonds. These are

classified as Held-to-Maturity Securities and Available for Sale financial assets in the consolidated

financial position.
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In 2014, the net decrease in cash and cash equivalents is due to the purchase of common shares
through a tender offer made by Paxys N.V. The total consideration paid amounted to £1,149.9
millicn.

The Company’s management believes that the current level of cash generated from operations and the
borrowing capability are sufficient to meet the Company’s immediate future cash needs. The
Company does not anticipate any liquidity problems that may arise from its operating activities in the
near future.

The following are the major financial ratios of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2015
and year ended December 31, 2014:

As of and for the full year ended 31 December 2015 2014 Y15 vs Y14
Financial Ratios:;
Current Ratio* 79.5:1 71.9:1 11%
Debt to Equity Ratio** 0.01:1 0.02:1 (16%)
Retumn on Equity*** (0.4%) (1%) (41%)
EBITDA Margin (3%) (5%) (43%)
Net Income margin (9%) (14%) (33%)

* Current Assets/Current Liabilities
** Total Liabilities/Total Stockholders’ Equity
**¥ Net Income/[(Equity end + Equity beg — Net Income)/2]

OTHER MATTERS

a. Subsequent event
None.

b. Contingencies
As of December 31, 2015, the Company has no material contingencies.

¢. Comumitments
There were no material commitments for expansion as of 2015.

d. There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons during the reporting period.

e, There are no unusual items as to nature and amount affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income
or cash flows, except those stated in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finaneial
Conditions and Results of Operations.

f. There were no known trends, demands, eommitments, events or uncertainties that will have a
material impact on the Company’s liquidity.

g. There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected

to have a favorable or an unfavorable impaet on net sales or revenue or income from continuing
operation.
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h. The causes for any material ehange from period to period are stated under Management’s
discussion and analysis section “finaneial eondition”.

i, The effects of seasonality or eyelieality on the operations of the Company’s business are not
material.

J- There were no material changes in estimates of amounts reported in interim periods of the eurrent
year or ehanges in estimates of amounts reported in prior finaneial years.

Trends, Events, Uncertainties or Contitigent Financial Obligation with Material Impact on
Liguidity

The Company does not anticipate having liquidity problem within the next twelve (12) months since it
has adequate amount of cash to pay its maturing obligations and to support its working capital
requirements.

Year Ended December 31. 2014 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2013

The following discussion should be read in confunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
Sfinancial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C") thereto and is qualified in its entirety by
reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{In Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

For the full year ended 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Profit & Loss Data:
Service Income P150,509 B158,295 (5%)
Gross Profit 17,982 24,581 (27%)
EBITDA® (7,480) (55,833) 87%
L.oss from operations {56,061) (113,480) 51%
Net Loss attributable to equity holders (20,849 (73,868) 72%

Service income in 2014 includes revenue from data conversion of SWA and call center revenue of
PGS. Revenue and net results of joint ventures for both years are excluded and presented as one line
item below the operating line.

Serviee income has deereased by 5% or 7.7 million versus prior year mainly due to the termination
of revenue contracts of PGS accounts in April 2014. This resulted in a £17.2 million decrease in the
Group’s revenue but was partially recovered by the growing business in SWA which revenue has
increased by B9.5 million as compared to prior year.

The Gross Profit decreased by 27% in 2014 principally due to the increase in Cost of Sales for outside
services contracted for the additional account of SWA.

The overall Net Loss has decreased from £73.9 million in 2013 to £20.8 million in 2014 primarily
due to lower Operating Expenses of the Group and the stronger Peso performance for its USD-

SEBITDA is defined as Earnings Before Interest Expense, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization.



denominated funds as, in 2013, the Group has converted most of its AUD funds to USD. As a result
of the conversion of the Group’s fund from AUD to USD, the net foreign exchange loss has
significantly dropped by 96% or #78.8 million. Meanwhile, the Opex has also decreased by 22% or

P84.7 million in 2014 from £109.1 million in 2013.

Scopeworks Asia, Inc.

The following table shows key performance indicators of Scopeworks:

({n Php Thousands)

For the full year ended 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Profit & Loss Data:

Service Income B145,969 P136,517 7%

Gross Profit 18,321 12,563 46%

EBITDA 5,938 11,304 (47%)

Income from operations 3,725 5,651 (34%)

Net Income 3,109 5,533 {44%)

In spite of the 46% or 5.8 million improvement in the Gross Profit, the overall Net Income decreased
by 44% or 2.4 million as compared to prior year mainly due to increased personnel costs for support
employees and one-off expenditures to improve facilities and equipment of SWA.

Paxys Global Services, Inc. (PGS)

The following table shows key performance indicators of PGS:

{In Php Thousands)

For the full year ended 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Profit & Loss Data:
Service Income 24,540 B21,778 (79%)
Gross Profit 1,627 12,017 (86%)
EBITDA 2,293 9,948 (77%)
Income (loss) from operations (518) 8,494 {106%)
Net Income {Loss) (562) 8,510 (107%)

The revenue contracts of PGS were tenninated in April 2014 which resulted to an overall drop in the
financial performance of the company. As of December 31, 2014, PGS resulted to a net loss of 8562k

or a 107% decrease as compared to prior year.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
Sfinancial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C") thereto and is qualified in its entirety by

reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

As of 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Balance Sheet Data:
Continuing:
Total Cumrent Assets P3,478,780 B4,554,276 (24%)
Total Noncurrent Assets 19,266 24,030 (20%)
Total Assets 3,498,046 4,578,306 (24%)
Total Cumrent Liabilities 48,380 57,223 (16%)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 11,122 7,839 42%
Total Equity 3,438,544 4,513,244 {24%)

The significant changes in the balance sheet items from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2013 are

as follows:

s The Group’s total assets decreased by 24% or 21,080 million mainly due the purchase of common
shares through a tender offer made by Paxys Inc.’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Paxys NV, in 2014,

The total amount of consideration paid amounted to P1,149.9 million.

s The purchase of the common shares amounting to £1,149.9 million was presented as a reduction
in the total paid-up capital, thus, the net decrease in the Total Equity of the Group.

s Non-current liabilities increased by 42% or #3.3 million principally due to adjustments in the
retirement liability of the Group. Although there are no substantial increase in the headcount and
salaries of the Group, the standard discount rate used in the latest actuarial valuation obtained has
decreased, from 6.38% in 2013 to 4.49% in 2014, thus the inverse effect on the Present Value

Amount of the Group’s retirement liability



LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated
[inancial statements and notes (presented as Exhibic "C") thereto and is qualified in its entirety by

reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
(in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

{In Thousand Pesos unless othervise stated)

For the full year ended 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Net Cash provided by Operating Activities P145,696 P71,202 105%
Net Cash used in Investing Activities {1,848) {36,361) 95%
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (1,073,226) - (100%)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents | (929,378) 34,841 {2767%)

The net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in 2014 is mainly due to the purchase of common
shares through a tender offer made by the Paxys N.V. in 2014. The total consideration paid amounted

to £1,149.9 million.

The Company’s management believes that the eurrent level of cash generated from operations and the

borrowing capability are sufficient to ineet the Company’s immediate future cash needs.

The

Company does not anticipate any liquidity problems that may arise from its operating activities in the

near future,

The following are the major financial ratios of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2014

and year ended December 31, 2013:

As of and for the full year ended 31 December 2014 2013 Y14 vs Y13
Financial Ratios:
Current Ratio 71.9:1 79.6:1 (10%)
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.02:1 0.01:1 (20%)
Return on Equity (1%) (2%) 50%
EBITDA Margin (5%) (35%) (86%)
Net Income margin (14%) {47%) 70%

* Crrrent Assets/Current Liabilities
** Total Liabilities/Total Stockholders' Equity

®*% Net Income/[(Equity end + Equity beg — Net Income)/2]

OTHER MATTERS

a. Subsequent event
None.

b. Contingencies

As of Deeember 31, 2014, the Company has no material contingencies,

¢. Commitments

There were no material commitments for expansion as of 2014.



I

There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons during the reporting period.

There are no unusual items as to nature and amount affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income
or cash flows, except those stated in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations.

There were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a
material impact on the Company’s liquidity.

There were no known trends, events or uncertaimties that have had or that are reasonably expected
to have a favorable or an unfavorable impact on net sales or revenue or income from continuing
operation.

The causes for any material change from period to period are stated under Management’s
discussion and analysis section “financial condition™.

The effects of seasonality or cyclicality on the operations of the Company’s busincss are not
material.

There were no material changes in estimates of amounts reported in interim periods of the current
year or changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years.

Trends, Events, Uncertainties or Contingent Financial Obligation with Material Impact on
Liquidity

The Company does not anticipate having liquidity problem within the next twelve (12) months since it
has adequate amount of cash to pay its maturing obligations and to support its working capital
requirenients.



Year Ended December 31. 2013 Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2012

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidarted
financial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C”) thereto and is qualified in its entirety by
reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{(In Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

For the full year ended 31 Deeember 2013 2012 Y13 vs YI2
(As restated)
Profit & Loss Data;
Continuing Operations
Service Income 158,295 7202375 (22%)
Gross Profit 24,581 {24,958) 198%
EBITDA® (55,833) (11,120) 402%
Loss from operations (113,480) (121,560) 7%
Net Income attributable to equity holders (73,868) (73.645) 0%
Discontinuing Operations
Net Income attributable to equity holders - 2,448,135 (100%)

Service income in 2013 includes revenue from data transcription of SWA and call center revenue of
PGS. Revenue and net results of joint ventures for both years are excluded and presented as one line
item below the operating line.

Service income has decreased by 22% or P44 million versus prior year due to decline in revenue of
SWA by P17 million, PGSI of B8 million and the termination of lease revenue of Paxys in 2012, the
effect of which is 217 million, Gross profit margin increased to 16% in 2013 from negative 12% in
2012 due to significant decline in direct costs.

Cost of Sales

Direct costs declined by £93 million or 41% from £227 million in 2012 to 134 million in 2013.
Direct costs margin improved to 84% in 2013 versus 112% in 2012, The main cause of decline in
direct costs is personnel costs by 213 million; premises costs by 27 million; depreciation by B39
million; and other expenses by 210 million.

Personnel costs declined due to decline in manpower requirement as business volume declined in
SWA and PGS. Premises costs and depreciation declined due to the full year-effect of pre-termination
of lease in Araneta facilities in April 2012. Other expenses decreased mainly due to lower
professional fees, lesser travels and representation and repairs and maintenance.

* EBITDA is defined as Earnings Before Interest Expensc, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization,
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Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased by B130 million or 54% from £242 million to 112 million this period
due to the effect of restructuring completed in 2012. Other expenses such as travel and
representation, insurance expenses, taxes and licenses and other miscellaneous expenses also

decreased significantly versus prior year.

Scopeworks Asia. Inc.

The following table shows key performance indicators of Scopeworks:

{In Php Thousands)

For the full year ended 31 December 2013 2012 Y13 vs Y12
Profit & Loss Data;

Service Income £136,517 R153,295 {11%)

Gross Profit 12,563 3,216 291%

EBITDA 11,304 (27,324) 141%

Income from operations 5,651 (42,530) 113%

Net Income 5,533 {42,133) 113%

In the last quarter of 2012, SWA completed the restructuring of its personnel. This resulted to lower
operating expenses which mainly improved the Income from Operations to a 113% turnaround from
an operating loss of P42.5 million in 2012 to an income of £5.7 million in 2013.

For comparative management reporting, SWA recognized allocated costs from its affiliate, PGS,
representing its share in management and overhead costs in 2012 and overhead costs only in 2013,

Paxvs Global Services, Inc. (PGS)

The following table shows key performance indicators of PGS:

For the full year ended 31 December 2013 2012 Y13 vs Y12
Profit & Loss Data;
Service Income 221,778 £13,655 59%
Gross Profit 12,017 1,057 1037%
EBITDA 9,948 (37,260) 127%
Income from operations 8,494 (40,044) 121%
Net Income 8,510 (40,382) 121%

Increase in outbound voice account of PGS and significant decline in operating expenses by
£38 million or 90% caused positive results for the year compared prior vear.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidaied
financial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C”') thereto and is qualified in its entivety by

reference thereto.

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

As of 31 December 2013 2012 Y13 vs Y12
(As restated)
Balance Sheet Data:
Continuing;
Total Current Assets P4,554,276 P4,282,608 6%
Total Noncurrent Assets 24,030 147,486 (84%)
Total Assets 4,578,306 4,430,094 3%
Total Current Liabilities 57,223 108,062 (47%)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 7,839 7,738 1%
Total Equity 4,513,244 4,314,244 3%

The major changes in the balance sheet items from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 2012 are as

follows for continuing operations:

o (Cash and cash equivalents increased in 2013 by 5% or £207.0 million due to partial realization of
escrow fund from sale of PAU amounting to £120.0 million, interest eamed of B43.9 million,
proceeds from sale of Stellar, net of capital gains tax and other taxes of £141.6 million, net
foreign exchange and translation gain of P112.2 million of and were offset by acquisition of

investment in available-for-sale securities of £183.3 wmillion, income tax paid of £6.8 million, and

net eash outflows of joint ventures of #20.6 million.

¢ The decrease in trade and other receivables by 32% or B119.0 nillion is mainly due to realization
of escrow fund to cash. Restricted funds are recognized in an escrow account as part of the

proceeds from the sale of PAU in June 2012.

e Other current assets increased by 22% or £0.9 million due to input vat on purchases net of its

related provision for non-recoverability.

s Investment in joint ventures was reduced to nil in 2013 due to the sale of Stellar to the joint
venture partner and recognition of additional losses of Simpro and PGS Dalian,

s Property and equipment posted a net decrease of 52% or P9.1 million due mainly to depreciation

and amortization for the year amounting to £10.1 million, net of acquisition of to 0.6 million

» Accounts payable and other current liabilities decreased versus 2012 by 49% amounting to £47.8

million due mainly of reversal of long-outstanding accruals of £24.6 million, settlement of

subscription payable to Stellar due to sale of £9.4 million, and settlement of various accruals and

payables during the year of of ££13.8 million
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidaied
[financial statements and notes (presented as Exhibit “C”) thereto and is qualified in its entirety by

reference thereto,

Consolidated Financial and Operational Highlights
{(in Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

{In Thousand Pesos unless otherwise stated)

For the full year ended 31 December 2013 2012 Y13 vs Y12
(As restated)
Net Cash provided by (used in) Operating Activities £71.202 (2258,752) 128%
Net Cash provided by {used in) Investing Activities (36,361) 3,734,834 {101%)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities - - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 34,841 3,476,082 (99.0%)

The increase in cash and cash equivalents in 2013 due to better cash flows from operations.
Net cash used in investing activities includes the following:

a) Proceeds from divestment of Stellar, net of capital gains tax paid and other taxes, of

£141.6 million;
b)

Investment in unit investment trust fund amounting to £183.3 million;

¢) Additional investment in joint ventures amounting to 213.1 million

The Company’s management believes that the current level of cash generated from operations and the

borrowing capability are sufficient to meet the Company’s immediate future cash needs.

The

Company does not anticipate any liquidity problems that may arise from its operating activities in the

near [uture.

The following are the major financial ratios of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2013

and year ended December 31, 2012:

As of and for the full year ended 31 December 2013 2012 Y13 vs Y12
As restated

Financial Ratios:
Current Ratio* 79.6:1 39.6:1 101%
Debt to Equity Ratio** 0.01:1 0.03:1 46%
Return on Equity®** (2%) (4%) (53%)
EBITDA Margin+ (63%) (33%) 542%
Net Income margint (47%) (37%) (28%)

* Current Assets/Current Liabilities
** Total Liabilities/Total Siockholders” Equity

¥k Net Income/[(Equity end + Equity beg — Net Income)/2]
+Excludes 2013 and 2012 income from discontinuing operations.
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OTHER MATTERS

a.

h.

Subsequent event
None.

Contingencies
As of December 31, 2013, the Company has no material contingencies.

Commitments
There were no material commitments for expansion as of 2013,

There were no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationship of the Company with unconsolidated entities or
other persons during the reporting period.

There are no unusual {tems as to nature and amount affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income
or cash flows, except those stated in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations.

There were no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a
material impact on the Company’s liquidity.

There were no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected
to have a favorable or an unfavorable impact on net sales or revenue or income from continuing
operation.

The causes for any material change from period to period are stated under Management’s
discussion and analysis section “financial condition”™.

The effects of seasonality or cyclicality on the operations of the Company’s business are not
malerial,

There were no material changes in estimates of amounts reported in interim periods of the current
year or changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior financial years.

Trends, Events, Uncertainties or Contingent Financiql Obligation with Material Impuct on
Liguidity

The Company does not anticipate having liquidity problem within the next twelve (12) months since it
has adequate amount of cash to pay its maturing obligations and to support its working capital
requirements,
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Ytem 7. Financial Statements|

Please refer to the attached consolidated financial statements of Paxys Group (Exhibit C) as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2015 (with comparative figures for the years 2014 and 2013).

The 2012 Audited FS has been restated as the Company adopted the new accounting treatment on
Employee Benefits.

Htem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Acconntants on Accounting and Financial|

[Qisclusure

For more than five consecutive years, Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. has been the External Auditor of
the Group. Starting financial year 2014, the Group has appointed its new auditor, Reyes Tacandong
& Co. in line with good corporate povernance practices.

There are no disagreements with Auditors on accounting and financial disclosure.

The consolidated fees billed for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements amounted to
B1.2 million, B1 million and 20.95 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

There are no other assurance and related services rendered by the external auditors.
The audit fees were approved by the Audit Committee based on the scope of work of external auditors
and the complexity of accounting and audit issues identified. There are no professional services

rendered by the external auditor for tax accounting, compliance, advice, plaming and any other form
of tax services for the last two fiscal years,
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PART IV. MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

[[tem 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Directors, including independent directors and executive officers:

NAME POSITION AGE | CITIZENSHIP
Tarcisio M. Medalla Chairman & President 66 Filipino
Roger Leo A. Carifio Director/ Treasurer 56 Filipino
Christopher B. Maldia Director 55 Filipino
Ghee Keong Lim Director 48 Malaysian
Roberto A. Atendido Director 68 Filipino
George Y. SyCip Independent Director 59 American
Jose Antonio Lichauco Independent Director 56 Filipino
Sivam Kandavanam Director 58 Malaysian
Mark David P. Martinez Corporate Secretary/ CIO 34 Filipino
Ana Maria A. Katigbak-Lim | Assistant Corporate Secretary/CIO 46 Filipino

Tarcisio M. Medalla has been a Director and President of the Company since December 30, 2003.
He is concumrently a Director of UT Global Services Limited, a privately held investment company
with an RHQ in Manila and affiliated with AN Asia Customer Services Holdings Ltd., an investment
holding company that owns the controlling equity interest in Paxys. He has been connected with the
Group since 1983. He is also a director of Pacific Online Systems Corporation, a company listed with
the Philippine Stock Exchange. He graduated with a BSC degree, major in Accounting, from De La
Salle University. He attended the Advanced Management Program (AMP) at the Harvard Business
School. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Roger Leo A, Carifio has been a Director of the Company since December 30, 2003. He is currently
the Company’s Treasurer, which he also held from 2004 to 2006 and 2009. He is concurrently a
Director of UT Global Services Limited, a privately held investment company with an RHQ in Manila
and affiliated with All Asia Customer Services Holdings Ltd. He has been connected with the Group
since 1990. He graduated with a BSC degree, major in Accountancy, from Ateneo de Naga University
and attended the MBA Program at Murdoch University and the Strategic Business Economics
program at the University of Asia and the Pacific. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Christopher B. Maldia has been a Director of the Company since December 2003. He graduated
with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila University. He also has a Master of Laws
in International Legal Studies from New York University School of Law. He is a member of the
Philippine Bar and the New York Bar.

Ghee Keong Lim was appointed Director of the Company on June 3, 2005, He has more than 20
years of experience in treasury and credit management. Prior to joining the Usaha Tegas Sdn Bhd
{“UTSB") Group in 1993, he was attached to General Electric Capital Corporation in the US and the
fonner Ban Hin Lee Bank in Malaysia. He is currently the Chief Financial Officer of UTSB and
serves on the Boards of several other companies in which UTSB Group has interests such as Astro
Malaysia Holdings Berhad (listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) in which he is an alternate
director, Bumi Armada Berhad (listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) and Bond Pricing
Agency Malaysia Sdn Bhd, a bond pricing agency registered with the Securities Comnussion
Malaysia. He is also a director of Yu Cai Foundation. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree, majoring in Finance, from the University of Hawaii at Manoa, US.

26



Roberto A. Atendido has been a Director of the Corporation since October 1, 2004. He is currently
the Executive Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance Investment Corp. and President/Director of Asian
Alliance Holdings and Development Corp. He is currently a member of the board of the following
companies: Philippine Business Bank, Picop Resources Corporation, Sinag Energy Philippines,
Pharmarex Corporation, and Macay Holdings Inc. He holds a Masters Degree in Business
Management from the Asian Institute of Management,

George Y. SyCip has been a Director of the Company since October 1, 2004. He advises a variety of
companies in their cross-border endeavors between the US/Europe and Asia and serves on the
corporate Boards of Alliance Select Foods International Inc., Asian Alliance Investment Corp., Bank
of the Orient in San Francisco, Beneficial Life Insurance Company and MacroAsia Corporation. He is
also a Trustee or Director of the International Institute for Rural Reconstruction, Give2 Asia, Global
Heritage Fund and the California Southeast Asia Business Council. He holds a Masters Degree in
Business Administration from Harvard Business School and a Bachelors degree in International
Relations/Economics from Stanford University.

Jose Antonio A. Lichauco is concurrently the President of Asian Alliance Investment Corp.,
specializing in Investment Banking and Corporate Finance. He is also concurrently a Director of
Automated Technology (Philippines), Inc. where he was previously Senior Vice-President and Chiefl
Financial Officer. He also held positions at Insular Investment and Trust Corporation and at SGV &
Co. He obtained his Masters Degree in Business Administration from Coluinbia University in New
York, USA in 1989.

Sivam Kandavanam is concurrently a Director of Astro Holdings Sdn Bhd and MAI Sdn Berhad and
Measat Global Networks Sdn Bhd. He is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Aceountants in
England and Wales, and a Chartered Accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants and has over
25 years working experience in financial services. He is currently the Chief Financial QOfficer —
Private Assets & Trusts of Usaha Tegas Sdn Bhd. He is also the Treasurer of Malaysian Community
& Education Foundation. Prior to joining Usaha Tegas, he was attached to Maika Holdings Berhad
and KTM Distribution Sdn Bhd.

Mark David P. Martinez joined the Company in October 2009 and was elected as director in August
2012, He is concurrently the Company’s Corporate Counsel, Corporate Secretary and Corporate
[nformation Officer. Prior to joining the Company, he worked as an associate attorney at Angara
Abello Concepcion Regala & Cruz (ACCRALAW) for three (3) years. Mark is a member of the
Philippine Bar and a Certified Public Accountant. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the
San Beda College of Law, Mendiola, Manila in 2006.
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Key Employees

All the employees are considered important assets of the Company who collectively make significant
contributions to the Company.

Significant emplovee of Paxys Inc. as of December 31, 2015

Tarcisio M, Medalla — Chairman and President has been a Director and President of the Company
since Dccember 30, 2003. He is concurrently a Director of UT Global Services Limited, a privately
held investment company with an RHQ in Manila and affiliated with All Asia Customer Services
Holdings Ltd., an investment holding company that owns the controlling equity interest in Paxys. He
has been connected with the Group since [983. He is also a director of Pacific Online Systems
Corporation, a company listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange. He graduated with a BSC degree,
major in Accounting, from De La Salle University. He attendcd the Advanced Management Program
(AMP) at the Harvard Business School. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Mark David P. Martinez — Corporate Legal Counsel and Corporate Secretary, joined the
Company in October 2009 and was elccted as director in August 2012. He is concurrently the
Company’s Corporate Counsel, Corporate Secretary and Corporate Information Officer. Prior to
joining the Company, he worked as an associate attorney at Angara Abello Concepcion Regala &
Cruz (ACCRALAW) for three (3) years. Mark is a member of the Philippine Bar and a Certified
Public Accountant. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the San Beda College of Law,
Mendiola, Manila in 2006.

Familv Relationship
None of the directors and executive officers is related to each other by affinity or consanguinity.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
None of the directors and executive officers was involved during the past five years and as of date of

this report in any bankruptcy proceeding. Neither have they been convicted by final judgment in any
criminal proceeding or been subject to any order, judgment or decree of competent jurisdiction,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting their involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities, nor found in action by any court or
administrative body to have violated a securities or commodities law.
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[Item 10. Executive Compensation|

The aggregate compensation paid or incurred during the last two fiscal years and estimated to be paid

in the ensuing fiscal year to the executive officers and directors of the Company are as follows:

Summary Compensation Table

For Exccutive Officers and Directors of Paxys:

Year Per Diem
{in Millions)

2015 £1.30
2014 1.20
2013 1.16

Year/ Top Highly Compensated Officers® Compensation | Stock Total

and other Options
benefits
(in Millions)

2015: Chairman and President and Corporate Legal Counsel 2114 - B114
2014: Chairman and President and Corporate Legal Counsel 12.0 - 12.0
2013: Chairman and President, CAE, and Corporate Legal Counsel 14.4 - 14.4

*Names of the Top Highly Compensated Officers are showit in Irem 9 above.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

There are no agreements between the registrant and its key management personnel providing for
benefits upon termination of employment, except for such benefits to which they may be entitled

under the law.

Warrants and Options Qutstanding: Repricing

Not applicable. The Company has no outstanding warrants and options.
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ﬂtem 11. Secnrity Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ovwners and Management]

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2015 the Company has ne knowledge of any individual or any party who
beneficially owns in excess of 5% of Paxys common stock except as set forth in the table below:

Name and Address of  Name of Beneficial  Citizenship Nnmber of Perccent

Title of Record Owner & Owner & Shares Held  of Class
Class Relationship with Relationship with
Issuer Record Owner
Common All  Asia  Customer Expac Ltd. is the Hong Kong 630,844,038« 54.93%

Service Holdings, Ltd. controlling

Level 28, Three Pacific sharehelder of

Place, 1 Queen’s Road ACSH. Expac Ltd.

East, Hong Kong has no other
relationship with
Paxys. Paxys has no
information on the
ownership of Expac

Ltd.

Common Paxys N.V. Paxys, Inc. owns Curacao 345,622,477 30.09%
100%
equity of Paxys N.V.

Commeon PCD Nominee Corp. Beneficial owners are  Philippines 170,085,375+ 14.81%

G/F MSE Bldg., 6767 the clients of the PCD
Ayala Ave., Makati City participants’ brokers.

There are no
beneficial owners
owning more than
5% of the
Registrant’s  capital
stock.

Total 1,146,551,890 99.83% |

* This includes 621,260,820 certificated shares and 9,583,218 shares lodged with AB Capital Securities, Inc.
** Net of the lodged shares of All Asia Customer Services Holdings Ltd. and Paxvs NV, 9,583,218 and 345,622,477,
respectively
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Ownership Securitv of Management as of December 31, 2015:

Title of | Name of Beneficial Amount of | Citizenship | Percent of
Class Owner Beneficial Class
Ownership

Common Tarcisio M. Medalla

Chairman & President 1,120 Filipino 0.0001%
Common Chiristopher B. Maldia

Director 129,520 Filipino 0.0113%
Common Ghee Keong Lim

Director 82,800 Malaysian 0.0072%
Common Roger Leo A. Carino

Director 1,120 Filipino 0.0001%
Common Roberte A, Atendido

Director 1,000 Filipino 0.0001%
Common Sivam Kandavanam

Director 1,000 Malaysian 0.0001%
Common George Y. SyCip

Independent Director 1,120 American 0.0001%
Common Jose Antonio Lichauco

Independent Director 1,120 Filipino 0.0001%
Common Mark David P. Martinez

Corporate Secretary/ CIO 1,000 Filipino 0.0001%
Common Ana Maria A. Katighak

Assistant Corporate Secretary - Filipino -

Total P219,800 0.0192%

The shareholdings of the above-named directors and officers aggregate to 219,800 shares or 0.0192%
of the outstanding capital stock of the Company.

As reported in the Public Ownership Report as of December 31, 2015, 171,848,551 common shares
are held by public shareholders, which is approximately 14.96% of the total issued and outstanding

shares. The Company is compliant with the 10% minimum public ownership rule.

Voting Trust Holder of 5% or more

There are no voting trust agreements or any other similar agreement which may result in a change in
control of the Company of which the Company has any knowledge.

Changes in control

No change in control of the Registrant has occurred since the previous fiscal year.
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Ttem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transacticm

Except from those mentioned in Item I (viii), there has been no transaction during the last two years,
1nor is any transaction presently proposed, to which the Company was or is to be a party in which any
director or executive officer of the Company, or nominee for election as a director, or owner of more
than 10% of the Company’s voting securities, or voting trust holder of 10% or more of any class of
the Company’s securities, or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had
or is to have a direct or indirect material interest. In the ordinary and regular course of business, the
Company had or may have transactions with other companies in which some of the foregoing persons
may have an interest.
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PART V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer to the attached Consolidated Changes to the Annual Corporate Governance Report
{ACGR) as of December 31, 2015 (Exhibii D).

PART VI- EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

(Please refer to the following attachments)

Exhibit A - Report on SEC Form 17-C;

Exhibit B — Directors’ Attendance of Board Meetings for the year 2015
Exhibit C — Audited Financial Statements as at December 31, 2015

Exhibit D — Consolidated Changes to the Annual Corporate Govemnance as of

December 31, 2015

PART VII- INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

{Please refer to the following attachments)

Item 14 — Supplementary Schedules required by Annex 68-E

Item 15 — Reconciliation of Retained Eamings Available for Dividend Declaration
Itemn 16 — Schedule of Effective Standards and Interpretations

Item 17 — Map of the relationships of the Companies within the Group
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code,
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Exhibit A

Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Date Filed

Items Reported

22 December 2014 The Company submitted the Certificate of Filing of Amended Articles of
Incorporation of the Company which was approved on 16 December 2014 by the
Comimission,

29 December 2014 The Company submitted to the Exchange the Certificate of Independent Directors

of Mr. Jose Antonio A, Lichauco and George Y. SyCip.

7 January 2015

The Company informed the Exchange that Reyes Tacandong & Co. has been
appointed as external auditor for the taxable year 2014,

31 March 2015

The Company submitted to the Exchange the accomplished 2014 Corporate
Governance Guidelines for Listed Companies.

24 April 2015

The Company submitted to the Exchange the certificate of completion for the
corporate governance seminar which was attended by Atty. Ana Maria Margarita
A. Katigbak. She attended a Corporate Governance Seminar on 21 April 2015 at
NBS Conference Room, Quad Alpha Centrum, Mandaluyong City and condueted
by Risks Opportunitigs, Assessment and Management (ROAM), Inc.

7 May 2015

The Company submitted to the Exchange the certificate of attendance for the SEC
Corporate Governance Workshop on the Asean Corporate Governance Scorecard
for Puhlicly-Listed Companies seminar which was attended by Atty. Mark David
P. Martinez. He attended a Corporate Governanee Seminar on 23 April 2015 at
Crown Plaza, Manila Galleria, Ortigas Center, Quezon City and conducted by
Securities and Exchange Commission.

7 May 2015

The Company informed the Exchange that the annual meeting of the stockholders
of Paxys, Inc. which is scheduled to be held in May 2015 has becn postponed to a
later date.

12 August 2015

The Company informed the Exchange that the scheduled annual mecting of the
stockholders of Paxys Inc. was on 3 Deeember 2015 at 2:00 p.m. at the Manila
Golf & Country Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City.

15 October 20135

The Company provided the Exchange with a copy of the Notice of Annual
Stockholders® Meeting, The record date will be on 30 Cctober 20135.

6 November 2015

The Company provided the Exchange with the certified list of sharcholders of
Paxys Inc. as of 30 October 20135, the record date for the Annual Shareholder’s
Meeting, which was scheduled on 3 December 2015.
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Exhibit B

PAXYS INC.
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS FOR 2015
Legend: Present () Absent (A) Not Applicable (NA)

RM RM RM RM oM RM
Name of Directors | %)l | 08 | s | wis | ais |18
Tarcisio M. Medalla v v v v v v
Roger Leo A. Carifio v v v v A v
Roberto A. Atendido v v v v v v
Christopher B. Maldia v v v v v v
Jose Antonio A. Lichauco v Ve < v v v
Lim Ghee Keong v v v A v v
Sivam Kandavanam v v e v A A
George Y. Sycip v v e v v v
Mark David P. Martinez v v v v v v
Legend:

V4 - Present

A - Absent

RM - Regular Board Meeting

SM - Special Board Meeting

OM - Organizational Board Meeting
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15/F 6750 Ayala Office Tower, Ayala Avenue, Makali City

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT*’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Paxys, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, including the additional components
attached therein, in accordance with Philippine Finaneial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes
designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
sclecting and applying appropriate accounting policics, and making accounting estimates that arc rcasonable in
the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent audizors, appointed by the stockholders has examined the
consolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
its report to the stockholders, has expressed ils opinion on the fairmess of presentation upen completion of such
examination.

?}V’L‘—L—cf._..'--—i

Tarcisio M. Medalla
Chairman of the Board and Presidcnt

/ .4*-"

Pablito O. Lim
Chief Financia_ ficer

Signed in this 5" day of April 2016

W SWNEN T ) BEF 0 I[{J'_'p ME
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171 ._';_:'-lq‘ "H“' "'",

ot SRENTIY 't

CLOaN R R
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Diliman, Quezon City, 1100, Philippines
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Paxys, Inc.

15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower

Avyala Avenue, Makati City

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Paxys, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity
and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obhtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making the risks assessment, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

THE FOWER OF BEING UHDERSTOOD

ALL AT TAX CORLULTEG RSﬁﬂ

Reyes Tacandong & Co. is a member of the RSM network. Each member of Lhe RSM nelwork is an independent accounling and consulting firm, and practices in its own right, The RSM network is
not ilsell a separate legal entily of any description in any jurisdiction




RivES TAcANDONG & Co,

FIRM PRINCIPT ES. WISE SOLUTIONS,

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Paxys, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and their financial
performance and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of Paxys, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 were audited by another auditor whose report dated March 11, 2014, expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements,

REYES TACANDONG & CoO.

e g

HAYDEE M. REYES

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 83522
Tax Identification No. 102-095-265-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 0663-AR-2 Group A
Valid until April 14, 2017
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-6-2013
Valid until November 26, 2016
PTR No. 5321843
Issued January 5, 2016, Makati City

April 5, 2016
Makati City, Metro Manila



PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

{Amounts in Thousands)

Note 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivaients 7 22,980,255 £3 207,725
Available-for-sale financial assets 8 380,061 186,355
Trade and other receivables 9 71,342 75,853
Held-to-maturity securities 8 135,905 -
Other current assets \ 10 11,602 8,847
Total Current Assets - b 3,579,165 3,478,780
Fike '] : ;
Noncurrent Assets 3;?; :?::*5'::::"!“_-"1: {iﬁ w
Property and equipment ¥ [_ R 1 4 zh ﬁ 2,970 4,709
Intangible assets s APR 14 241 3 @ 1,160 2,687
Other noncurrent assets e 11,907 11,870
Total Noncurrent Assets “RRCHIVRD sURiTeT 1 a7 16,037 19,266
R3,595,202 R3,498,046
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 R44,565 47,715
Income tax payable 445 665
Total Current Liabilities 45,010 48,380
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement liability 16 6,184 10,519
Other noncurrent liabilities 25 605 603
Total Noncurrent Liabitities 6,789 11,122
Total Liabilities 51,799 59,502
Equity 17
Capital stock 1,148,535 1,148,535
Additional paid-in capital 451,364 451,364
Parent shares held by a subsidiary {1,149,886) {1,149,886)
Other equity reserves 237,946 120,518
Retained earnings 2,855,444 2,868,013
Totat Equity 3,543,403 3,438,544
£3,595,202 23,498,046

See accomponying Nates to Consolidoted Financial Statements.



PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

(With Comparative Figures for 2013)

(Amounts in Thousands, except Basic/Diluted Loss per Share Data)

Note 2015 2014 2013
SERVICE INCOME R134,700 £150,509 R158,295
COST OF SERVICES 19 {118,933} (132,527) (133,714)
GROSS PROFIT 15,767 17,982 24,581
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 20 {79,608) (84,727) {109,127)
INTEREST INCOME 7 43,253 38,850 43,888
NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN {LOSS) 4,083 (3,336} (82,163)
EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS OF JOINT
VENTURES 11 - - 2,865
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A JOINT VENTURE 11 - - 20,557
OTHER INCOME - Net 22 8,170 14,020 25,353
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (8,335) (17,211) (70,046)
CURRENT INCOME TAX EXPENSE 23 4,234 3,638 3,822
NET LOSS (12,569) (20,849) (73,868)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS5)
ftems to be reclassified to prafit or lass
Translation gain 118,402 19,147 268,794
Unrealized gain {loss) on fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets 8 (4,404) 1,306 800
ftem not to be reciassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain {loss) on retirement
liability 16 3,430 (1,180) 3,224
117,428 19,273 272,818
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) R104,859 (R1,576}) Rr198,950
BASIC/DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 24 {R0O.02) (R0.03) (R0.06)

See accompanying Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements.



PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

{With Comparative Figures for 2013)
{Amounts in Thousands)

Note 2015 2014 2013
CAPITAL STOCK
Balance at beginning of year B1,148,535 21,071,773 21,071,773
Collection of subscription receivable - 76,660 -
Reclassification - 102 -
Balance at end of year 17 1,148,535 1,148,535 1,071,773
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning and end of year 17 451,364 451,364 451,364
PARENT SHARES HELD BY A SUBSIDIARY
Balance at beginning of year (1,149,886) - -
Purchase by a subsidiary - (1,149,886) -
Balance at end of year 17 (1,149,886) (1,149,886) -
OTHER EQUITY RESERVES
Cumulative Translation Adjustment
Balance at beginning of year 119,567 100,420 (168,374)
Translation gain 118,402 19,147 268,794
Balance at end of year 237,969 119,567 100,420
Fair Value Changes on Available-for-sale
Financial Assets -
Balance at beginning of year 2,106 800 -
Unrealized gain (loss) (4,404) 1,306 800
Balance at end of year 8 {(2,298) 2,106 800
Cumulative Remeasurement Gain (Loss)
on Retirement Liability
Balance at beginning of year (1,155) 25 (1,537)
Remeasurement gain (loss) 3,430 {1,180) 3,224
Reclassification - - {1,662)
Balance at end of year 16 2,275 {1,155) 25
237,946 120,518 101,245
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year 2,868,013 2,888,862 2,961,068
Net loss (12,569) (20,849) {73,868)
Reclassification - - 1,662
Balance at end of year 17 2,855,444 2,868,013 2,888,862
R3,543,403 B3,438,544 R4,513,244

See accomponying Notes to Consolidated Financial Stotements.



PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
[With Comparative Figures for 2013)
(Amounts in Thousands)

Note 2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (#8,335) {e17,211) {R70,046)
Adjustments for:
[nterest income 7 (43,253) {38,850) (43,888)
Provisicn for impairment losses on:
Trade and other receivables 9 10,576 9,768 18,323
Input value-added tax 10 2,448 1,729 3,471
Depreciation and amortization 12 4,493 9,732 13,759
Net unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) (4,083) {8,496) 78,707
Gain on disposal of;
Property and equipment, 22 {982) (1,873) (4)
Joint venture 11 - - {20,557)
Retirement benefits 16 (905} 2,103 2,711
Gain on redemption of available-for-sale
financial assets 22 {900} - -
Reversal of accruals 22 - {760) (24,706)
Equity in net earnings of joint ventures 11 - - (2,865)
Mark-to-market loss on derivative instruments 22 - - 98
Operating loss before warking capital changes (40,941) {43,858) (44,997}
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables 5,275 169,724 101,566
Other current assets (5,203) {(5,117) 981
Other noncurrent assets (37) (1,883) 15
increase (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables {3,150) (8,043) (24,041)
Other noncurrent liabilities - - 614
Net cash generated from {used for} operations {44,056) 110,823 34,138
Interest received 31,913 35,708 43,888
Income taxes paid {4,454) {835) {6,824)
Net cash flows provided by {used in) operating
activities {16,597) 145,696 71,202
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Available-for-sale financial assets (248,200} - (183,274)
Held-to-maturity securities 8 (135,905) - -
Property and equipment 12 {1,039) (2,921) {556)
Intangible assets 13 (188) (969) (573)
Investments in joint ventures 11 - - {13,128)
Proceeds from:
Redemption of available-for-sale financial
assets 50,990 - -
Disposal of property and equipment 982 2,042 38
Divestment of a joint venture 11 - - 161,172
Net cash flows used in investing activities (333,360) (1,848) (36,361)

(Forward)



Note 2015 2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Parent shares by a subsidiary 17 R- {R1,107,6486) [
Collection of subscription receivable 17 - 34,420 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities - {1,073,226) -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (349,957) (929,378) 34,841
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 122,487 30,004 172,164
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,207,725 4,107,099 3,500,054
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 7 R2,980,255 R3,207,725 24,107,099

See accomponying Notes to Consolidoted Finonciol Stotements.



PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(With Comparative Information for 2013}

1.

Corporate Information

Paxys, Inc. (“Paxys” or the "Parent Company”) is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Philippines and listed {stock symbol: PAX) on the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE). It was formerly
known as Fil-Hispano Holdings Corporation and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 14, 1952, The corporate life of the Parent Company was
extended for another 50 years starting February 14, 2002.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, its major shareholders are All Asia Customer Services Holdings
Ltd {AACSHL), a separately-held company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Paxys N.V., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Parent Company, with 54.93% and 30.09% equity interest, respectively, in
the Parent Company.

At present, the operating subsidiaries provide general transcription, proofreading, data conversion,
contact center and back office outsourcing services.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the Group.

The registered office address of the Parent Company is at 15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower, Ayala
Avenue, Makati City.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014 (with comparative figures for 2013) were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors (BOD) on April 5, 2016.

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The consaolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for available-for-sale (AFS} financial assets that are measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Parent Company. All amounts are rounded to the nearest thousands, unless
otherwise indicated.

Moreover, the consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in compliance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards Council and adopted by the SEC, including the SEC provisions. This financial reporting
framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS) and Philippine interpretations from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC).



Summary of Changes in Accounting Standards

Adoption of New and Revised PFRS

The Group adopted the following new and revised PFRS effective January 1, 2015 as summarized
below.

o Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions —
The amendments clarify the requirements on how contributions from employees or third parties
that are linked to service should be attributed to periods of service. In particular, contributions
that are independent of the number of years of service can be recognized as a reduction in the
service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered (instead of attributing them to
the periods of service).

¢ Amendment to PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel — The
amendment clarifies how payments to eniities providing key management personnel services
are to be disclosed.

e Amendment to PFRS 3, Business Combinations — The amendment excludes from its scope the
accounting for the formation of any joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself,

e Amendment to PFRSS8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and
Recanciliation of the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets— The
amendment requires the disclosure of management judgments in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, and requires reconciliations of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity's assets are required only if the segment assets are reported
regularly.

e  Amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables and
Portfolio Exception — The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 - allowing
an entity to measure the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis - applies to all contracts (including non-financial) within the scope of PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or PFRS 9, Financial Instruments.

The adoption of the foregoing new and revised PFRS did not have any material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Additional disclosures have been included in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

New and Revised PFRS Not Yet Adopted
Relevant new and amended PFRS, which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2015

and have not been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements, are summarized
helow,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016:

e Amendments to PAS 1, Presentatian of Financial Statements — The amendments clarify guidance
on materiality and aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial
statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.



e Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation, and PAS38, Intangible Assets — Clarification af Acceptable Methods of
Amortisation — The amendments add guidance and clarify that (i} the use of revenue-based
methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated
by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset, and (ii) revenue is generally
presumed {o be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in an intangible asset; however, this presumption can be rebutted in certain limited
circumstances.

¢ Amendment to PAS 19, Employee Benefit— The amendment clarifies that the high quality
corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate for post-employment benefits should be
denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid.

o Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements — The amendments reinstate the equity method option allowing entities to use the
equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements.

e Amendment to PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures — The amendment adds guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in a transferred asset.

e Amendments to PFRS 10, Consclidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Investments in
Associotes and Joint Ventures - Sale or Cantribution of Assets between on Investor ond its
Associate or foint Venture — The amendments address a current conflict between the two
standards and clarify that the gain or loss from sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture should be recognized fully when the transaction
involves a business, and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute a business,

e Amendments to PFRS 10, IFRS 12, Disclosure af iInterests in Other Entities, and PAS 28 -
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidotion Exception— The amendments clarify the
application of the consolidation exception for investment entities and their subsidiaries.

= Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations — The amendments require an acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business (as defined in PFRS3) to apply all of the business
combinations accounting principles and disclosure in PFRS 3 and other PFRSs, except for those
principles that conflict with the guidance in PFRS 11, The amendments apply both to the initial
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, and the acquisition of an additional interest in a
joint operation (in the latter case, previously held interests are not remeasured).

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 ~
e PFRS 9, Finoncial Instruments — This standard will replace PAS 39 {and all the previous versions
of PFRS 9). [t provides requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities, impairment, hedge accounting and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value {through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on their



classification by reference to the business model within which they are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.

For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit loss” model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract; it will be no longer
necessary for objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.
Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and revised PFRS are not

expected to have any material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Additional disclosures will be included in the consolidated financial statements, as applicable.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are summarized below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the consoclidated financial statements of
the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, which it controls as at December 31 of each year. The
Parent Company has control over the investee when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee.

The wholly awned subsidiaries of the Parent Company are as follows:

Principal Place

Line of Business of Business
Paxys N.V. investment holding Curacao
Paxys Ltd. Investment holding Hong Kong
Scopeworks Asia, Inc. {SWA) Data conversion Philippines
Paxys Global Services, Inc. (PGS)* Business process outsourcing Philippines
Paxys Global Services Pte. Ltd. (PGSPL) Business process outsourcing Singapore
Regional Operating Headquarters of Shared services Philippines

PGSPL (PGS ROHQ)*

*PGS and PGS ROHQ ceased operotions on May 16, 2014 end Morch 16, 2013, respectively.



Each entity determines its own functional currency, which is the currency that best reflects the
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity, and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The functional currency of all the subsidiaries, except Paxys N.V. and Paxys Ltd., is the Philippine
Peso. The functional currency of Paxys N.V. and Paxys Ltd. is the United States Dollar (USS). As at
reporting date, the assets and liabilities of Paxys N.V. and Paxys Ltd. are translated into the
presentation currency of the Parent Company {the Philippine Peso) at the rate of exchange ruling at
financial reporting date and, the profit and |oss are translated at the average exchange rate for the
year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to “Cumulative
translation adjustment,” a separate component of equity under other equity reserves.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same reporting year as the
Parent Company and uniform accounting policies for similar transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. Adjustments, where necessary, are made to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group. All significant intercompany balances and transactions including
unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date when the Parent Company obtains control and are continued to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases. The results of operations of the subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in profit or loss from the date of acquisition up to the date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Changes in the controlling equity ownership (i.e., acquisition of non-controlling interest or partial
disposal of interest over a subsidiary} that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions,

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at fair value on acquisition
date and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair value or at
its proportionate share in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are recognized as expense.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Common Controf Transactions. Where there are business combinations in which all the combining
entities within the Group are ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent before and after the
business combination and that the control is not transitory {“business combinations under common
control”), the Group accounts such business combinations under the acquisition method of
accounting, if the transaction was deemed to have substance from the perspective of the reporting
entity. In determining whether the business combination has substance, factors such as the
underlying purpose of the husiness combination and the involvement of parties other than the
combining entities such as the non-centrolling interest, are being considered.



In cases where the business combination has no substance, the Parent Company accounts for the
transaction similar to a pooling of interest. The assets and liabilities of the acquired entities and that
of the Group are reflected at their carrying values. The difference in the amount recognized and the
fair value of the consideration given, is accounted for as an equity transaction (i.e., as either a
contribution or distribution of equity). Further, when a subsidiary is transferred in a common
contral transaction, the difference in the amount recognized and the fair value of consideration
received, is also accounted for as an equity transaction.

Comparative balances are restated to include balances and transactions as if the entities have been
acquired at the beginning of the earliest year presented and as if the entities have always been
combined.

Goodwill. Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the consideration is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference (negative goodwill) is recognized in profit
or loss. Afterinitial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acguisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
fo those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operations within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operations disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operations when determining the gain or loss on disposal, Goodwill disposed
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operations and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

When subsidiaries are disposed, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus
cumulative exchange differences arising from the translation and goodwill is recognized in profit or
loss.

Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. The Group classifies noncurrent
assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets and disposal groups
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The criteria for assets or a disposal group held for sale is met only when the disposal is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the sale will be made or that the sale will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the
sale which is expected to be within one year from the date of the classification.

Property and equipment and intangible assets are no longer depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale.



Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the
consclidated statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business that represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations that had been disposed of or is held for sale, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if
earlier. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are presented as if the operation had heen discontinued from
the start of the comparative year. In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
reporting year, and of the comparahle previous year, income and expenses from discontinued
operations are reported separately from income and expenses of continuing operations down to the
level of net income, even when the Group retains a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale. The resulting net profit or loss is reported separately in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Date of Recognition. Financial instruments are recognized in the consclidated statements of
financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date (i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset). Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the market place,

Initial Recognition. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration
given {in the case of an asset} or received (in the case of a liability). Transaction costs are included in
the initial measurement of all financial instruments, except for financial instruments classified as fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), Fair value is determined by reference to the transaction price or
other market prices. If such market prices are not readily determinable, the fair value of the
consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

“Day 17 Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or hased on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data observable from the market, the Group
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value {a “Day 1" difference) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing a “Day 1” difference amount.

Classification. Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a
financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability, are recognized in profit or loss.
Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity,
net of any related income tax.

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity {HTM} investments and AFS financial assets. The Group classifies
its financial liabilities as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.



The classification of financial instruments depends on the purpose for which these were acquired
and whether these are quoted in an active market. The Group determines the classification of the
financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
such designation at every reporting date.

The Group does not have financial instruments classified as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

HTM Investments. HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. When the Group sells more than an insignificant amount of HTM
investments before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category is
tainted and should be reclassified as AF5 financial assets.

After initial recognition, HTM investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The amortization is included in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2015, the investments in bonds are included under this category.

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified In any of the other categories. These are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions. These include equity investments, money market papers and other debt instruments.
AFS financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs. The
unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets, except for the
foreign exchange fluctuations on AFS debt securities and the related effective interest, are excluded,
from reported earnings in profit or loss, and are reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position,
These changes in fair values are recognized in equity until the investment is sold, collected, or
otherwise disposed of or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are included in profit or loss.

Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be
dispesed on a first-in, first-out basis. Interest earned or paid on the investments is recognized as
interest income or expense using the effective interest rate method. Dividends earned on
investrnents are recognized in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. These
financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets unless the intention is to dispose such assets
within 12 months from the end of reporting year.

The Group has classified quoted equity investments as AFS financial assets.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active market., These are not
entered into with the Iintention of immediate or short-term resale and are not desighated as AFS
financial assets or financial assets at FVPL,

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment in value. Any interest earned on loans
and receivables is recognized as part of “Interest income” in profit or loss on an accrual basis.



Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization, included as part of
“Interest income,” is recognized in profit or loss. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss
when loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization
process.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Group has classified cash in banks, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and rental and
security deposits as loans and receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term highly liquid interest-
bearing fund placements with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Other Financial Liabilities. Other financial liabilities pertain to financial liabilities that are not held
for trading and are not designated at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include
liabilities arising from operating and financing activities.

The Group has classified trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities) and other
noncurrent liabilities as other financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Impairment of Financial Assets. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting year whether a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

a, Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been
incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition), The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, The amount of loss is recognized in profit or
loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. Objective evidence includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about loss events such as, but not limited to, significant financial
difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, or the increasing probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included
in the group of financial assets with similar credit risk and characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at the end of each
reporting year. For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics such as customer type, payment history,
past-due status and term.
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Loans and receivables, together with the related allowance, are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized. If, in a subsequent year,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal
date.

b. Financial assets carried at cost

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss of an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

c. AFS financial assets

For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value less any impairment loss on the financial asset
previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through income. Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity,

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Group when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either {a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control over the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, if any,
is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to pay.



@

-11-

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the ocriginal effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Group could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market, The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability is recognized in profit or loss.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. 1n such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring.

Offsetting of Financial instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Fair Value Measurement

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based en the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting year.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as discussed in the foregoing.
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Information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in the following notes
to consolidated financial statements:

¢ Note 5 - Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
e Note 26 - Financial Instruments

Other Current Assets

Other current assets, which consist of prepayments and input value-added tax (VAT), are carried at
face value.

Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before these are
utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and recognized in
profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized within 12 months after
the reporting year are classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified as other
noncurrent assets.

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT, except where the tax
incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of “Other current
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Investments in Joint Ventures

The Parent Company has interests in joint ventures, whereby the venturers have a contractual
arrangement that establishes joint control. A joint venture is a confractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control, and a jointly
controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a separate entity in which each
venture has an interest.

Interest in a joint venture is initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for under the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting, the interest in a joint
venture is carried at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share in the net assets of the
joint venture, less any impairment in value. The share in the results of the operations of the joint
venture is recognized in profit or loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition movements in the joint
venture’'s equity reserves is recognized directly in equity. Profits or losses resulting from the
transactions between the Group and the joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in
the joint venture and for unrealized losses to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred. Dividends received are treated as a reduction of the carrying value of the
interest. If the Group’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group discountinues recognizing its share of further |osses.

After the application of the equity method, the Group determines at the end of each reporting year
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired. If this is the case, the
amount of impairment is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and recoverable amount and recognizes the difference in profit or loss.

After the Group’s investment is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is
recognized, only to the extent that the entity has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes the recognition of its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not previously recognized.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization
and any impairment in value. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset, including borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss in the yearincurred,

Major renovations that qualify for capitalization are depreciated and amortized over the remaining
useful life of the related asset or up to the date of the next major renovation, whichever is shorter.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Type Number of Years

Computer equipment 5

Communication equipment 3to5

Leasehold improvements 5 or lease term,
whichever is shorter

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 5

Transportation equipment 5

Depreciation and amortization commence when an asset is in its location or condition capable of
being operated in the manner intended by management. Depreciation and amoriization cease at
the earlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale} in accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, and the date the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the books until these are no longer being
used in the operations.

The assets’ estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, periodically to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation, amortization and
any impairment are derecognized. Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are composed of the website and software packages.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and any impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred.
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Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may he impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over three to five years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are assessed for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The carrying amount of investments in joint ventures, property and equipment, intangible assets
and other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). Nonfinancial assets, other than goodwill,
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit of loss under the expense category consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have bheen determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization are adjusted in future years to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax.

Additional Paid-in Capital. Additional paid-in capital includes any premium received in the initial
issuances of capital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from additional paid-in capital, net of tax.
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Parent Shares Held by a Subsidiary. Where any entity of the Group purchases the Parent Company’s
shares (treasury stock), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
{net of related taxes), is deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed
of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transactions costs and the related income tax effect, is included in
equity.

Retained Earnings. Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of net income or loss,
dividend distributions, effects of the changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) comprise items of income and expenses (including items
previously presented under the consolidated statement of changes in equity} that are not
recognized in profit or loss for the year. Other comprehensive income {loss), which are presented
under “Other equity reserves,” includes cumulative translation adjustment, fair value changes on
AFS financial assets and cumulative remeasurement gain or loss on retirement liability.

Share-based Payment Transactions

Regular employees (including directors) receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for rights over shares {“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the stock options at the date at which these are granted. The fair value is determined using the
Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. in valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is
taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settied transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period until employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the best estimate of the
number of awards that will ultimately vest. The change or credit for a year represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that year.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, an expense, at a minimum, is recognized
as if the terms had not been modified. An expense is recognized for any increase in the value of the
transactions as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification. Where an
equity-settled award is cancelied, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were modifications of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of diluted earnings per share.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates
and value-added tax or duties. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific
criteria in orcler to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is
acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Service income. Revenue is recognized as services are rendered.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest method,
that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Equity in Net Earnings of Joint Ventures, The Group recognizes its share in the net income of joint
ventures propertionate to its interests in joint ventures in accordance with the equity method of
accounting for investments.

Other Income. Revenue is recognized when there is an incidental economic benefit, other than the
usual business operations, that will flow to the Group through an increase in asset or reduction in
liability and that can be measured reliably.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are decreases in in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form
of outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other
than those relating to distributions to equity participants.

Cost of Services. Costs of services are recognized as expense when the related services are
rendered.

General and Administrotive Expenses. General and administrative expenses constitute cost of
administering the business and cost incurred to sell and market the services. These expenses are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Employee Benefits

Short-term Benefits. The Group recognizes a liability net of amounts already paid and an expense
for services rendered by employees during the year. Short-term benefits given by the Group to its
employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-term compensated
absences, bonuses and non-monetary benefits.

Short-term employee benefit liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
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Retirement Benefits. Retirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit
credit method. This method reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation
and incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. The calculation of defined
benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary.

Remeasurements of the retirement liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group determines the net interest
expense to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the defined benefit liability during the
year as a result of contributions and benefit payments.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

The retirement liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using risk-free interest rate of government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related retirement and other long-term benefits liability.

Termination Benefits, Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Actuarial valuations are made with sufficient regularity so that the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be
determined at the reporting date.

Leases

The determination of whether the arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception on the lease only if one of the following applies: (a} there is a
change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement; (b) a renewal
option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially
included in the lease term; {c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is
dependent on a specified asset; or (d) there is substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting commences or ceases from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to reassessment for scenarios {a}, {c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and benefits of ownership are retained by the lessor,
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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The Group as o Lessor. Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and henefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income is recognized as income on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

The Group as a Lessee. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions and Balances. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's
entities at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognized in other comprehensive income until the
net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in [ine with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liahilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and
liahilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign Operations. The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Philippine
Peso at the rate of exchange ruling at financial reporting date and, the profit and loss amounts are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences arising on
the translation are taken directly to “Cumulative translation adjustment,” a separate component of
equity under other equity reserves. Upon disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative translation
adjustment relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss,

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate and the tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting year.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the end of reporting year
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax liability is
not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit or loss nor taxable profit or loss. However, deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-
taxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits (excess of minimum corporate income taxes
or MCIT over regular corporate income taxes or RCIT) and unused tax losses (net operating loss
carryover or NOLCOQ), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer prohable that sufficient future taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting year.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the deferred
tax assets against the deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in relation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Related Party Relationship and Transactions
Related party transactions consist of transfers of resources, services or obligations hetween the
Group and its related parties.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes:
{(a) individuals who, by owning directly or indiractly through one or more intermediaries, control or
are controlled by, or under common control with the Group; (b) associates: and, (c) individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them
significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on legal form.

Loss per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted loss per share. Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, excluding common shares purchased by the Parent
Company and held as treasury shares. Diluted loss per share is calculated in the same manner,
adjusted for the effects of all the dilutive potential common shares.
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Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components. The operating results of an operating segment are
reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to determine the resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance, and for which financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the chief operating decision maker include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property and
equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can he made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pretax rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
an interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Year

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position at the
end of reporting year (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements when
material. Post year-end events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, when material.

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Group to exercise judgment,
make estimates and use assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses and related disclosures. The Group makes estimates and uses assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. Future events may occur which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at
the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as these become reasonably determinable.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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The Group believes the following represent a summary of significant judgments, estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, as well as to the related revenues and expenses, within the next year, and
related impact and associated risk in the consolidated financial statements.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management exercised judgment on the
following items, apart from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the conselidated financial statements,

Determining Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances, the Group has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso. The
Philippine Peso is the currency of the primary econamic envireanment in which the Parent Company
and certain subsidiaries operate. It is the currency that mainly influences the sale of services and
the costs of providing the services.

Determining Operating Segments. Determination of operating segments is based on the information
about components of the Group that management uses to make decisions about the operating
matters. Operating segments use internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the Parent
Company’s chief operating decision maker, which is defined to be the Parent Company’s BOD, in
order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance. The Parent Company
repaorts separate information about an operating segment that meets any of the following
quantitative thresholds: {a) its reported revenue, including both sales to external customers and
intersegment sales or transfers, is 10% or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of
all operating segments; (b} the absolute amount of its repeorted profit or loss is 10% or more of the
greater, in absolute amount, of (i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did
not report a loss and (ii} the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a loss;
and (c) its assets are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

The Group determined that its operating segments are organized and managed separately based on
the nature of the business segment, with each business representing a strategic business segment.

Nonrecognition of Deferred Tax Liability on Undistributed Income of a Foreign Subsidiary. Since Paxys
N.V., a company incorporated and domiciled in Curacao, is a wholly owned subsidiary by the Parent
Company, management believes that the Parent Company can control the timing of the dividend
distribution of Paxys N.V. to the Parent Company. Thus, no deferred tax liability was recognized on
the undistributed income of Paxys N.V. Unrecognized deferred tax liability on undistributed income
of a foreign subsidiary amounted to 8872.4 million and RB867.0 million as at December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Determining Classification of Lease Arrangements. Management exercises judgment in determining
whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits over the ownership of the assets held for
lease are retained by the Group. Lease contracts in which the Group retains substantially all the
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for as operating leases.
Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

Leases where the Group, as a lessor, does not transfer substantially all the risks and henefits over
the ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases.

Rent income included under “Other income” account amounted to 26.2 million in 2015 and
210.0 million in 2014 (R2.1 million in 2013) (see Note 25).
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The Group, as a lessee, has various property leases covering a warehouse and office space of a third
party, where it has determined that the risks and benefits related to these properties are retained
with the lessors, Accordingly, these lease agreements are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent expense amounted to £15.6 million in 2015 and R15.4 million in 2014 (R12.6 million in 2013)
{see Note 25).

Evaluating Contingencies. The Group is involved in various labor disputes, litigations, claims and tax
assessments that are normal to its business. Based on the opinion of the Group’s legal counsels on
the progress and legal grounds of certain claims and assessments, no provision is deemed necessary
in 2015 and 2014. The Group has no outstanding provision for probable losses as at December 31,
2015 and 2014.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are discussed below, The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when these occur,

Determining Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Certain financial assets and liabilities are carried at
fair value. When the fair values of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position cannot be measured based on guoted prices in active market, their fair
value is measured using valuation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are presented in Note 26.

Assessing Impairment of HTM Securities. The Company determines that HTM securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. The
determination of what is significant or prolonged decline requires judgment. In making this
judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the future cash flows and the discount
factor. in addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the
financial health of the investee, dismal industry and sector performance, adverse changes in
technology, and negative operational and financing cash flows.

No impairment losses on HTM securities were recognized in 2015. The carrying amount of HTM
securities amounted to B135.9 million as at December 31, 2015 (see Note 8).

Assessing Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Group determines when an asset is other-than-
temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; the financial health and near-term business outlook of the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector performance; changes in technology; and operational
and financing cash flow.
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The Group treats AFS financial asset as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its costs or where there are objective evidence that impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. The Group
treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% or more of the original cost of investments, and ‘prolonged’ as
greater than six months. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors including normal volatility in
share prices for quoted securities and the future cash flows and discounted factors for unquoted
securities. If assumptions are made regarding the duration and extent to which the fair value is less
than cost, the Group would suffer an additional loss representing the write down of cost to its fair
value,

No impairment losses were recognized for AFS financial assets in 2015, 2014 and 2013. AFS financial
assets amounted to R380.1 million and R186.4 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively {see Note 8).

Estimating Impairment Losses on Receivables. The provision for impairment losses on receivables is
estimated based on two methods. The amounts calculated using each of these methods are
combined to determine the total amount of impairment losses to be recognized. First, specific
accounts are evaluated based on information that certain customers may be unable to meet their
financial obligations. In these cases, the Group applies judgment, in recording specific allowances
against amounts due to reduce receivable amounts expected to be collected, based on the best
available facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, the length of relationship with the
customer and the customer’s current credit status based on third party credit reports and known
market factors, to record specific allowances against amounts due to reduce receivable amounts
expected to be collected. These specific allowances are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional
information received impacts the amounts estimated. Second, a collective assessment of historical
collection, write-off, experience and customer payment terms is determined. The amount and
timing of recorded expenses for any year could therefore differ based on the judgments or
estimates made. An increase in the Group’s allowance for impairment losses on trade and other
receivables would increase its recorded general and administrative expenses and decrease its
current assets.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables amounted to 871.3 million and RB75.9 million as
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 9}, Allowance for impairment losses on
receivables amounted to B63.4 million and R52.9 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (see Note 9).

Assessing Impairment Losses on Input VAT. The provision for impairment losses on input VAT is
maintained at a leve!l considered adequate to provide for potentially unrecoverable claims. The
Group, on a continuing basis, makes a review of the status of the claims, designed to identify those
to be provided with any impairment losses. In these cases, management uses judgment based on
the best available facts and circumstances. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any
year would therefore differ based on the judgments or estimates made.

The carrying amount of input VAT amounted to R9.9 million and R7.0 million as at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 10}). Allowance for impairment losses on input VAT
amounted to R47.8 million and RB50,0 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
{see Note 10).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The estimated useful life
of each of the items of property and equipment and intangible assets is estimated based on the year
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based on a collective
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assessment of similar business, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The
estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed at each financial year end and updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical er commercial ohsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the asset. It is possible, however, that future resuits of
operations could be materially affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A change in the estimated useful life on
property and equipment and intangible assets would impact the recarded expenses and noncurrent
assets.

There is no change in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets in
2015 and 2014,

The carrying amount of property and equipment and intangible assets are as follow:

Note 2015 2014
Property and equipment 12 R2,970 £4,709
Intangible assets 13 1,160 2,687

Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting year
whether there is any indication that the nonfinancial assets listed below may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, which is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used, which can he based on quoted prices or other available fair value
indicators. In estimating the value-in-use, the Group is required to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash generating unit and also to choose an appropriate discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Determining the recoverable amounts of the nonfinancial assets, which involves the determination of
future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such
assets, requires the use of estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated
financial statements. Future events could indicate that these nonfinancial assets are impaired. Any
resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of
operations of the Group.

The carrying amount of nonfinancial assets that are subject to impairment assessment when
impairment indicators are present {such as obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to
the manner in which the asset is used, worse than expected econamic performance, a drop in
revenue or other external indicators) are as follows:

Note 2015 2014
Property and equipment 12 R2,970 R4,709
Intangible assets 13 1,160 2,687

Determining Retirement Liability. The determination of the cost of retirement benefits and related
retirement liability is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in
calculating such amounts. The assumptions, which include among others, discount rate and rate of
salary increase are described in Note 16.

Actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and are recognized as part of other
comprehensive income. While management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and
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appropriate, significant differences in the Group’s actual experience of significant changes in the
assumptions may materially affect the retirement liability.

Retirement liability amounted to R6.2 million and R10.5 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (see Note 16), Net retirement gain on curtailment amounted to RC.9 million in 2015.
The net retirement benefits amounted to R2.1 million in 2014 {R2.7 million in 2013) (see Note 16).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews the carrying amounts at the end of
each reporting year and reduces the amount of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income
tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were not recognized because management
believes that sufficient future taxable income will not be available against which deductible temporary
differences, carry forward benefits of NOLCO, and excess of MCIT over RCIT will be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to R58.5 million and R72.9 million as at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 23).

Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of
the services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different
services and serves different market.

Segment Assets and Liabilities. Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and
consist principally of operating cash, receivables, property and equipment and other intangible
assets. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts payable
and other liahilities.

inter-segment Transactions. Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment performance
include transfers among business segments. Such transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating income or loss and is measured consistently with operating income or
loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Business segment information is reperted on the basis that is used internally for evaluating segment
performance and deciding how to allocate resources among operating segments. For management
purpeses, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

e Call Center - The call center segment offers an integrated mix of call center solutions including
inbound (customer-initiated) and outbound teleservicing.

e Data Conversion - This segment includes data transcription and scoping services, voice-to-screen
message conversion and electronic data encoding and processing.

e Others - This segment includes computer facilities management and IT consultancy. It also
includes the operations of the Parent Company.
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Business Segment Information
The following table presents the revenue and expenses and certain assets and liabilities information
of the Group’s business segments as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

2015
Data
Call Center Conversion Others  Eliminations Consolidated
Results of Operations
Revenue from external customers B— R134,700 R- R- R134,700
Expenses (282) {140,573) (89,055) 31,369 (198,541)
Operating income {loss) {282) {5,873) {89,055) 31,369 (63,841)
Interest income - 116 43,137 - 43,253
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) {98) 1,469 3,290 (578) 4,083
Other income (charges) - net 24 6,020 82,226 {80,100) 8,170
Income tax expense - {461) (3,773) - (4,234)
Net income (loss) (R356) R1,271 R35,825 {R49,309) (R12,569)
Assets and Liabilities
Assets R108 R58,395 R5,187,257 {®1,650,558) R3,595,202
Liabilities 77,296 78,147 93,659 (197,303) 51,799
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures:
Property and equipment - #1,039 B— /- Rr1,039
Intangible assets - 138 - - 188
Depreciation and amortization - 1,788 2,705 - 4,493

*P@ES aperotions was discountinued in Moy 2014, expenses for the yeor 2015 pertain to business taxes, audit fees ond provisians.

2014
Data
Call Center Conversion Others Eliminations  Consolidated

Results of Operations
Revenue from external customers R4,540 R145,569 R— BR— R150,509
Expenses {5,921) {154,804) {56,602) 73 (217,254)
Operating income (loss) (1,381) (8,835} (56,602) 73 {66,745)
Interest income 8 50 38,792 - 38,850
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) (14) 702 (7,372) 3,348 (3,336)
Other income (charges} - net 877 11,857 32,550 (31,264) 14,020
Income tax expense (2} (666) (2,970} - (3,638)
Net income (loss) {P512) R3,108 R4,398 {R27,843) (R20,849)
Assets and Liabilities
Assets R830 R60,700 R5,115,546 (R1,679,030) R3,4598,046
Liabilities 77,613 85,153 172,577 (275,841} 59,502
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures:

Property and equipment B— R2,683 R238 R R2,521

Intangible assets 404 565 - - 969

Depreciation and amortization 2,811 2,213 4,708 - 9,732
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2013
Data
Call Center Conversion Others Eliminations  Consolidated
Results of Operations
Revenue from external customers R21,778 R136,517 R— B— R158,295
Expenses (13,256) (136,371} {98,685} 5,471 (242,841}
Operating income {loss) 8,522 146 (98,685} 5471 (84,546}
Gain on disposal of a joint venture - - 112,340 (91,783) 20,557
Net interest income (expense)} {14) {62) 43,963 1 43,888
Net foreign exchange gain {loss) 6 2,580 (70,981} (13,778) (82,163)
Equity in net earnings (losses) of
joint ventures (6,588) - -~ 9,453 2,865

Other income {charges) - net - 3,264 33,002 {6,913) 29,353
Income tax expense {4) (405) (3,412) (1) (3,822)
Net income {loss) 21,922 R5,533 R16,227 (R97,550) {R73,868)
Assets and Liabilities
Assets 21,982 R61,196 5,024,929 (R529,801)  R4,578,306
Liabilities {99,257) (87,737) (189,229) 311,161 (65,062)
Other Segment Information
Capital expenditures:

Property and equipment R12 R524 RE60 R— R596

Intangible assets 573 - - - 573
Depreciation and amortization 1,454 5,651 6,654 - 13,759

Inter-segment revenue are eliminated upon consolidation and reflected in the “Eliminations”
column,

The revenue from transactions from each of its external customers accounting for 10.0% or more of
the consolidated revenue from external customers are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Nuance Communications Ireland Ltd R134,700 R139,923 r109,313
Speedscan Pty, Ltd. - - 27,118
Singnet Pte, Ltd. - - 18,808
R134,700 £139,923 R155,239
7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of:
2015 2014
Cash on hand R55 R60
Cash in banks 91,957 40,234
Cash equivalents 2,888,243 3,167,431
R2,980,255 23,207,725

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are made for
varying periods of up to 90 days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group. Cash
equivalents earn interest ranging from 0.25% to 2.50% in 2015 and 0.08% to 2.50% in 2014 {0.04%
to 2.50% in 2013).
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Interest income recognized by the Group are as follows:

Note 2015 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents R39,396 R38,653 £38,540
HTM Securities 8 3,009 - -
AFS financial assets 8 348 - -
Escrow fund - 157 5,348

R43,253 R38,850 R43,888

The escrow fund pertains to the amount deposited in escrow in relation to the sale of the 100%
equity interest of Paxys N.V. in Paxys A.U. to SmartGroup Investments Pty Ltd in 2012,

AFS Financial Assets / HTM Securities

AFS Financial Assets
This account consists of:

2015 2014

Investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund (UITF) R278,983 R50,602
Fixed income investment 101,078 135,753
R380,061 #2186,355

Investments in UITF are managed by local banks. Fixed income investment consists of investmentin
an international bank with absolute return investment strategies.

Details of the unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes on AFS financial assets are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year R2,106 R800 R-
Unrealized gain (loss) {4,404) 1,306 300
Balance at end of year {R2,298) 22,106 R800

In 2015, the Group redeemed certain AFS financial assets and recognized related gain amounting to
R0.9 million (see Note 22).

Interest income on AFS investments amounted to R0.8 million in 2015 (see Note 7).

HTM Securities

As at December 31, 2015, HTM investments pertaining to bonds purchased from international banks
amounted to R135.9 million, which will mature in varying dates until August 2016. Interest income
amounted to B3.0 million in 2015 {see Note 7).
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9. Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014

Trade R24,185 £50,748
Due from related parties 18 55,735 34,364
Nontrade 28,202 28,202
Others 26,661 15,404
134,783 128,718

Allowance for impairment losses {63,441) {52,865}
R71,342 R75,853

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and have average credit terms of 15 to 90 days.

Other receivables, which include advances to employees and security deposits, are noninterest-
bearing and are normally settled within one year.

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses follow:

2015
Due from
Trade Related Parties
Note Receivables (see Note 18) Others Total
Balance at beginning of year R11,053 R27,761 R14,051 B52,865
Provisions 20 - 10,576 - 10,576
Balance at end of year R11,053 r38,337 R14,051 B63,441
2014
Due from
Trade Related Parties
Note Receivables {see Note 18} Others Total
Balance at beginning of year R11,053 R18,792 R13,677 R43,522
Provisions 20 264 9,130 374 9,768
Write-off (264) (161) - (425)
Balance at end of year 11,053 R27,761 R14,051 ]52,865
10. Other Current Assets
This account consists of:
2015 2014
Input VAT, net of allowance for impairment fosses R9,918 R7,030
Advance rentals and prepayments 1,684 1,817

R11,602 R8,847
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The movements in the allowance for impairment losses on input VAT are as follows:

Note 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year R50,019 248,290
Write-off {4,699} -
Provisions 20 2,448 1,729
Balance at end of year R47,768 R50,019

Prepayments include prepayments for rent, insurance, and taxes and licenses.

11.

Investments in Joint Ventures

The following are the joint ventures of the Group:

Place of Principal Percentage of Ownership
Incorporation Activity 2015 2014
PGS Dalian China Call center 50.0% 50.0%
Simpro Hong Kong Call center 50.0% 50.0%

The movements in this account for the year ended December 31, 2013 follows:

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year R44,877
Sale of investment in Stellar Global Selutions
Philippines (Stellar) (29,256)
Additional investment in PGS Dalian and Simpro
Solutions Ltd. (Simpro) 13,128
Balance at end of year 28,749
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year 60,169
Sale of investment in Stellar (91,783)
Equity in net earnings 2,865
Balance at end of year (28,749)
-

On July 31, 2013, the Parent Company signed a Deed of Absolute Sale of Shares and Deed of
Assignment of Share Subscriptions for the fransfer of joint venture share in Stellar for
$3.7 million (R161.2 million}. Pursuant to the sale, the Parent Company transferred 460,000 shares
of Stellar, representing 50% of Stellar’s total share capital. Gain on disposal of a joint venture
included in the 2013 consolidated statement of comprehensive income amounted to
R220.6 million.

The investments in joint ventures are fully impaired as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Cumulative unrecognized share in net losses of the joint ventures amounted to 7.1 million and
R5.6 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The unrecognized share in net losses
of the joint ventures amounted to R1.6 million in 2015 and #3.3 million in 2014 (R2.3 million in
2013).
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The Group has no outstanding commitments with the joint ventures as at December 31, 2015 and
2014. The joint ventures have no contingent liabilities or capital investments as at December 31,

2015 and 2014.

Summarized financial information of the joint ventures are as follows:

2015 2014
Current assets R7,341 26,940
Noncurrent assets 1,660 2,283
Current liabilities (18,373) (18,722}
Revenue 32,342 32,600
Net loss (1,609) (3,287)
12. Property and Equipment
Movements in this account are as follows:
2015
Office Furniture,
Computer Communication Leasehold Fixtures and  Transportation
Equipment Equipment  Improvements Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year R108,882 R7,836 R161,319 R11,627 R16,170 R305,834
Additions 286 - 291 462 - 1,039
Disposal - - - - {2,521} [2,521)
Balance at end of year 109,168 7,836 161,610 12,089 13,649 304,352
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 108,063 7,836 156,704 10,356 15,160 301,125
Depreciation and
amortization 523 1,145 821 289 2,778
Disposal - - - - {2,521} {2,521)
Balance at end of year 108,592 7,836 160,849 11,177 12,928 301,382
Net Book Value R576 R— R761 R912 R721 R2,970
2014
Office Furniture,
Computer Communication Leasehold Fixtures and  Transportation
Equipment Equipment Improvements Equipment Equipment Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year F145,405 R12,052 F167,258 R19,200 R17,758 P361,682
Additions 731 - 416 739 1,035 2,921
Disposal {37,254) {4,216} (6,355} {8,371) (2,623) (58,769}
Balance at end of year 108,882 7,836 161,319 11,627 16,170 305,834
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 143,211 11,938 164,257 17,164 16,601 353,171
Depreciation and
amortization 2,088 114 1,802 1,513 816 6,333
Disposal (37,230 {4,216) {6,355) {8,321) {2,257} {58,379}
Balance at end of year 108,069 7,836 159,704 10,356 15,160 301,125
Net Book Value RB13 R— £1,615 R1,271 R1,010 R4,709

The Company disposed certain property and equipment, which resulted to a gain amounting to
R1.0 million in 2015 and 1.9 million in 2014 (R4,000 in 2013} (see Note 22).
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Total depreciation and amortization recognized consist of:

Note 2015 2014 2013

Property and equipment R2,778 26,333 210,133
Intangible assets 13 1,715 3,399 3,626
R4,493 R9 732 R13,759

Depreciation and amartization are allocated as follows:

Note 2015 2014 2013

Cost of services 19 R1,368 Rr1,527 R4,279
General and administrative

EXpenses 20 3,125 8,205 9,480

R4,493 R9,732 R13,759

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, fully depreciated property and equipment with aggregate cost
amounting to 270.1 million and #53.3 million, respectively, are stili being used in the operations by
the Group.

. Intangible Assets

Movements in this account are as follows:

Note 2015 2014
Cost
Balance at beginning of year R13,934 R12,965
Additions 188 969
Balance at end of year 14,122 13,934
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 11,247 7,848
Amortization 12 1,715 3,399
Balance at end of year 12,962 11,247
Net Book Value R1,160 2,687

Intangible assets include acquired website and software packages, which are amortized over three
to five years.

. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014

Rental and security deposits 25 R5,239 R5,208
Others 6,668 6,662
R11,907 R11,870

Rental and security deposits pertain to cash deposits on lease agreements, which are refundable at
the end of various lease periods (see Note 25).
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15.

Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Trade R7,694 R7,915
Nontrade 11,386 11,386
Dividends 17 6,554 6,554
Statutory payables 6,215 7,239
Accrued expenses
Salaries and wages 3,281 3,071
Professional fees 2,511 2,101
Others 6,362 9,075
Due to related parties 18 53 53
Others 509 321
RA44,565 p47,715

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 90-day term.

Statutory payables represent withholding tax payable, S55 premiums and other liabilities to the

government.

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities, which consists mainly of reimbursable expenses from
customers, are normally settled within 30 to 60 days.

16.

Retirement Benefits

The Parent Company, SWA and PNV maintain individual and separate unfunded, non-contributory,
defined benefit plans covering all eligible employees. An independent actuary conducts an actuarial

valuation of the retirement liability. The latest actuarial report was as at December 31, 2015.

The retirement benefits expense {curtailment gain) recognized in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income is as follows:

Note 2014 2013

Curtailment gain -
Current service cost 2,037 2,257
Interest cost 430 454
Reversal of retirement liability {364) -
21 R2,103 R2,711

In 2015, the Group incurred a curtailment gain due to a decrease in the number of employees

covered and the change in actuarial assumptions.

In 2014, reversal of retirement liability amounted to 0.4 million due to discontinued operations of

PGS,
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The cumulative remeasurement gain (loss) on retirement liability recognized as other
comprehensive income follows:

2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year {R1,155) R25 (R1,537)
Remeasurement gain (loss) 3,430 {1,180) 3,224
Reclassification - - (1,662)
Balance at end of year R2,275 (R1,155) R25

Changes in the present value of obligation are as follows:

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year Rr10,519 R7,236
Remeasurement loss (gain) {3,430) 1,180
Curtailment gain {1,190) -
Current service cost 214 2,037
Interest cost 71 430
Reversal of retirement liability - (364)
Balance at end of year R6,184 R10,519

The principal assumptions used in determining the retirement liability are shown below:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.89% 4.49%
Salary increase rate 2.50% 5.00%

The sensitivity analysis based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions as at
December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Effect on

Retirement

Change in Assumption Liability

Discount rate 26.40% R1,102,878
(20.20%) (846,526)

Salary Rate 25.60% 1,069,288
{20.10%) {839,239)

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was preparad by remeasuring the
defined benefit liability at the end of each reporting date after adjusting one of the current
assumptions according to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement {based on changes in
the relevant assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all other
assumptions remained unchanged., The corresponding change in the defined benefit liability was
expressed as a percentage change from the base defined benefit liability.

As at December 31, 2015, maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments of more than five
years amounted to R975,896.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting year is between
24 to 28 years.
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17. Equity

Capital Stock
Movements in this account follows:

2015 2014
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Common Stock “Class A” - R1 par
value
Authorized 1,800,000,000 ®1,800,000 1,800,000,000 1,800,000
Issued and outstanding -
Balance at beginning of year 1,148,534,866 R1,148,535 1,148,534,866 R1,148,535
Subscription receivable:
Balance at beginning of year - - - {76,762}
Collections - - - 76,660
Reclassification - - - 102
Balance at end of year - - - -
1,148,534,866 R1,148,535 1,148,534,866 1,148,535

In 2014, Paxys N.V,, through a tender offer, completed the purchase of 345,622,477 common shares
of the Parent Company representing 30.09% of its outstanding capital stock for a total consideration
of £1,149.9 million. Total amount recognized as “Parent shares held by a subsidiary” includes
transaction costs amounting to 1.7 million.

Additional Paid-in Capital
This account consists of:

Premium on issuance of shares of stock R348,213
Stock options 103,151
£451,364

Additional paid-in capital from issuance of shares of stock represents the excess of paid-up capital
over the par value of capital stock. Additional paid-in capital from stock options represents increase
in equity arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

Retained Earnings

Undistributed retained earnings of a subsidiary amounting to 22,908.1 million and R2,889.8 million
as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are not available for dividend declaration until these are
distributed by the subsidiary to the Parent Company.

Dividends payable of the Parent Company as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to
B6.6 million, which pertain to dividends declared in prior years {see Note 15}.
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18. Related Party Transactions and Balances

In the normal course of business, the Group has transactions and balances with related parties
pertaining mainly to noninterest-bearing advances as follows:

Due from Due to Related
Transactions Related Parties Parties
Related Party Year during the Year {see Note 9) {see Note 15)
Joint Venture

PGS Dalian 2015 R4,131 RB,679 -
2014 - 4,548 -
Simpro* 2015 6,408 7,554 -
2014 - 1,146 -

Entities with Common

Stockholders

NGL Pacific Limited 2015 46 2,173 -~
2014 13 2,127 -
ACS Pacific Limited 2015 10,786 33,457 -
2014 12,434 22,671 -
Others 2015 - 3,872 53
2014 151 3,872 53
2015 RB55,735 253
2014 34,364 53

* 50% effective interest through Paxys Ltd.

Outstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing with no fixed repayment terms and are
normally settled in cash. No guarantees have been provided or received for these balances.
Impairment assessment is undertaken each financial year.

Allowance for impairment losses related to these receivables amounted to R38.3 million and
R27.8 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively {see Note 5).

Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Group

2015 2014 2013
Salaries and wages 710,587 210,256 R10,585
Other short-term benefits 780 1,740 3,822
R11,367 211,996 R14,407
19. Cost of Services

This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Personnel cost 21 Rr67,236 R286,476 R96,889
Qutside services 18,021 10,947 -
Rent 25 10,246 10,220 8,771
Utilities 6,531 8,566 8,735
Communication 4,811 5,237 5,205

{Forward)
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Note 2015 2014 2013
Security and janitorial services R3,911 R3,976 R2,800
Association dues 2,170 2,170 2,152
Depreciation and amortization 12 1,368 1,527 4,279
Supplies 1,015 1,232 1,347
Others 3,624 2,176 3,536
R118,933 R132,527 R133,714
20. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Professional fees Rr19,372 R16,667 £9,080
Personnel cost 21 17,120 21,056 35,486
Provision for impairment losses on:
Trade and other receivables 9 10,576 9,768 18,323
Input VAT 10 2,448 1,729 3,471
Rent 25 5,352 5,131 4,783
Communication 5,107 5,456 4,864
Depreciation and amortization 12 3,125 8,205 9,480
Insurance 2,743 2,030 3,026
Utilities 1,997 1,849 1,979
Transportation and travel 1,756 1,852 2,350
Taxes and licenses 1,431 3,862 1,806
Security and janitorial services 1,399 1,552 1,969
Entertainment, amusement
and recreation 998 1,006 1,177
Repairs and maintenance 780 1,012 2,127
Write-off of receivables - - 3,264
Others 5,404 3,552 5,942
R79,608 R84,727 £109,127
21. Personnel Cost
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Salaries, wages and allowances R67,820 R88,442 R104,694
Training 1,215 2,224 2,724
Retirement benefits {gain) 16 (905} 2,103 2,711
Other employee benefits 16,226 14,763 22,246
B84,356 2107,532 R132,375

Other employee benefits pertain to leave benefits, health care and insurance benefits, and other

benefits granted to employees.
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Personnel cost is classified as follows:

Note 2015 2014 2013
Cost of services 19 R67,236 RR6,476 296,889
General and administrative expenses 20 17,120 21,056 35,486
R84,356 B107,532 R132,375
22. Other Income
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Rent 25 R6,184 210,018 22,126
Gain on disposal of property and
equipment 12 982 1,873 4
Gain on redemption of AFS financial
assets 8 900 — -
Reversal of accruals - 760 24,706
Mark-to-market loss on derivative
instruments - - (98}
Others 104 1,369 2,615
R’8,170 B14,020 229,353

23. Income Tax

a. The components of current income tax expense as presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Final tax R3,594 B2,558 B2,823
MCIT 515 1,080 999
Special tax 125 - -
R4,234 R3,638 R3,822

b. The reconciliation of income tax benefit computed at statutory income tax and income tax
expense as shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Income tax benefit at statutory income tax

rate (R2,483) (R5,163) {R21,014)
Income tax effects of:

Expired NOLCO 17,641 12,687 -

Nondeductible expenses 13,909 7,055 39,273

Nontaxable income (10,448) (8,050} (37,647}

Interest income subjected to final tax {2,006) {(1,279) (1,409}

Expired MC(T 1,988 1,246 622

Equity in earnings of joint ventures - - (860)
Net changes in unrecognized deferred tax

assets {14,367) (2,858) 24,857

R4,234 B3,638 B3,824
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c. Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets relating to NOLCO, MCIT and other temporary
differences are as follows:

2015 2014
NOLCO R33,187 247,624
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables
and input VAT 21,773 19,283
Retirement liability 3,615 3,888
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (2,973) {2,689)
MCIT 2,594 4,067
Accruals and provision 322 712
R58,518 272,885

Management believes that it may not be probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be

available against which the NOLCO, excess MCIT and other deductible temporary differences
can be utilized.

d. Details of carry forward benefits arising from NOLCO and excess MCIT are as follows:

NOLCO
Balance as at
Year Balance as at Additions December 31,
Incurred December 31,2014 {Applied) Expired 2015 Available Until
2012 BB2,019 {R23,215) (R58,B04) R— 2015
2013 52,702 (6,528} - 46,174 2016
2014 24,026 {2,126) - 21,900 2017
2015 - 42,549 - 42,549 2018
R158,747 R10,680 (R58,B04) R110,623
MCIT
Balance as at
Year Balance as at December 31,
Incurred December 31,2014 Additions Expired 2015 Available Until
2012 21,988 R— {R1,988} R— 2015
2013 85885 - - 999 2016
2014 1,080 - - 1,080 2017
2015 - 515 - 515 2018

R4,067 R515 {R1,988) R2,594

24. Loss per Share

Basic/diluted loss per share are computed as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Company {a} (R12,569) {R20,849) (R73,868)
Issued and outstanding shares 1,148,535 1,148,535 1,148,535
Treasury shares (345,622) {345,622) -
Weighted average number of shares issued and
outstanding (b} 802,913 802,913 1,148,535

Basic/diluted loss per share (a/b} {R0.02) (R0.03) {RO.06)
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There are no potential dilutive common shares as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

25. Lease Commitments

a.

The Group as a Lessee

The Parent Company has an existing lease agreement with a third party for the lease of office
space until April 30, 2016. The lease is renewable upon mutual consent of the parties
involved.

SWA has an existing non-cancellable five year agreement with a third party for the lease of a
warehouse and an open space until December 31, 2018, The monthly rent is subject to an
annual escalation beginning on the third year. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
refundable security deposit amounted to B1.3 million.

SWA has an existing contract with a third party for the lease of an office and parking spaces
as renewed until December 2015,

As at December 31, 2015, refundable deposit amounted to B1.3 million.

Outstanding rental and security deposits on lease commitments, presented under “Other
noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position, amounted to
B5.2 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 (see Note 14). The rental and security deposits
are either refundable in cash or will be applied against unpaid rental upon termination of lease
agreements.

Total rent expense presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income are as

follows:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Cost of services 19 Rr10,246 R10,220 R8,771
General and administrative
expenses 20 5,352 5,131 4,783
R15,598 R15,351 R13,554

The future minimum annual lease payables under noncancellable operating leases are as

follows:
2015 2014
Within one year R7,196 R15,706
After one year but not more than five years 11,618 18,814
R18,814 B34,520

The Group as a Lessor

SWA entered into sublease agreement with third parties to sublease the office space in the
Citibank Centre Condominium for a period of two years until December 31, 2015 subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement by the parties. Monthly fee is per workstation subject to an
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increase upon renewal. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, refundable deposits amounted to
2605 and B603, respectively.

Rent income amounted to B6.2 million in 2015 and 210.0 million in 2014 (2.1 million in 2013)
{see Note 22),

26. Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Management Oblectives and Policigs

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, AFS financial assets,
HTM investments, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liguidity risk, The BOD reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and these are summarized below.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group has transactional currency exposure. Such exposure arises from services denominated in
US Dollars (USS) and Australian Dollars (AUS). Service income of SWA is approximately 100%
denominated in USS for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 96% and 4% denominated in USS$
and AUS, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014 (80% and 19% denominated in USS$
and AUS, respectively, for the vear ended December 31, 2013). As a result, the Group's
consclidated financial performance and financial position can be affected significantly by
movements in the USS/Philippine Peso and AUS/Philippine Peso exchange rates.

The objective is to limit the impact of any appreciation of the Philippine Peso vis-a-vis with its
foreign currency denominated revenue and receivables and ultimately on the financial performance.
To the extent possible, the Group should obtain debt financing in the currency in which majority of
revenue are dencminated in order to match as much as possible foreign currency-denominated
costs with foreign currency-denominated revenue.

It is also the Group’s policy to make use of hedging instruments including derivatives
{i.e., currency forward contracts) to manage the effects of foreign exchange fluctuations on financial
results. These hedging instruments or derivatives are not used for trading or speculative purposes.
Counterparties to derivative contracts are carefully selected major financial institutions, which are
assessed based on their industry standing and historical performance.

The following rates of exchange have been adopted by the Group in translating foreign currency
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statements of financial position
items as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Closing Average Closing Average

Philippine Peso to 1 unit
of Foreign Currency:
uss R47.06 R45.51 R44.72 R44.66
AUS 34,27 34,26 36.21 36.86



-42 -

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the significant foreign currency-denominated monetary assets
{translated in Philippine Peso) are as follows:

2015 2014
Philippine Peso Philippine Peso
In USS In AUS Equivalent In USS In AUS Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents us543,326 AUS90 P2,042,314 1J5548,595 ALIS99 R2,177,253
Trade and other receivables 511 - 24,027 871 - 39,443
Foreign currency-denominated
monetary assets Uss5 43,837 ALS99 R2,066,341 U5549,466 AUS99 R2,216,696

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USS$ and AUS
exchange rates to Philippine Peso with all other variables held constant, of the consolidated income
before income tax (due to changes in the fair value of financial assets and liahilities). Reasonably
possible change is based on net average movement of foreign currency closing rates for the last five
years.

2015 2014
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease} Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease}
in Exchange Rates on Loss Before Tax  in Exchange Rates  on Loss before Tax

uss R2.34 R102,578 R0.32 R15,829
(2.34) (102,578) (0.32) {15,829}

AUS 1.94 193 3.25 128,668
{1.94) (193) (3.25) (128,668)

The decrease in Philippine Peso to USS and AUS means stronger Philippine Peso against the US$
rates while increase in Philippine Peso to USS$ and AUS rate means stronger foreign rates against
Philippine Peso.

Credit Risk
The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.

Since the Group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Also, the Group has an existing contract or master agreement with its key customers to protect itself
from bad debt losses.

The gross maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk corresponds to the total carrying values of
the following financial assets:

2015 2014

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents™ 2,980,200 R3,207,665
Trade and other receivables 71,342 75,853
Rental and security deposits”’) 5,239 5,208
AFS financial assets 380,061 186,355
HTM securities 135,905 -
Total credit risk exposure R3,572,747 £3,475,081

P Excluding cash on hand amaounting to B55 and R60 as at Decernber 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
®hncluded under “Other noncurrent assets.”
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financial assets that were past due but not impaired as at December 31, 2015

2015
Neither Past Past Due but not Impalred
Due nor Less than More than
Impaired 30 Days 30 to 60 Days 60 Days Total Impaired Total
Loans and Recelvables
Cash and cash equivalents'™ H2,980,200 = R= R— R— R—  R2,980,200
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 13,132 - El - - 11,053 24,185
Neontrade - - - 28,202 28,202 - 28,202
Due from related parties - - - 17,398 17,398 38,337 55,735
Other recelvables - 2,743 4,114 5,753 12,610 14,051 26,661
Rental and security deposits""‘ 5,239 - - - - - 5,239
AFS Flnancial Assets 380,061 - - - - - 380,061
HTM Securities 135,905 - - - - - 135,905
R3,514,537 R2,743 R4,114 R51,353 R58,210 563,441 R3,636,188
" xeluding cosh on hond emounting ta @35,
" ncluded under “Other nancurrent assets.”
2014
Neither Past Past Due but not Impaired
Due nor Less than More than
Impaired 30Days 30 to 60 Days 60 Days Total Impaired Total
Loans and Recelvables
Cash and cash equivalents™ R3,207,665 R P P R R—  F3,207,665
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 35,726 3,969 - - 3,969 11,053 50,748
Nontrade 28,202 - - ~ - - 28,202
Due from related parties - - - 6,603 6,603 27,761 34,364
Other receivables - - 828 525 1,353 14,051 15,404
Rental and security deposits"” 5,208 - - - - - 5,208
AFS Financial Assets 186,355 - - = - - 186,355
73,463,156 23,969 R328 R7,128 R11,925 R52,865 R3,527,946

mExcrudt’ng cosh on hand emounting to R&0,
®ncluded under “Other nancurrent assets.”

The table below shows the credit quality of the financial assets
impaired as at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

classified as neither past due

nor

2015 2014
Neijther Past Due nor Impaired Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Standard

High Quality Quality Total High Quality Quality Total

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents®® R2,980,200 R-  R2,980,200  PB3,207,665 P—  P3,207,665
Trade and other receivables 13,132 - 13,132 63,928 - 63,928
Rental and security deposits™ 5,239 - 5,239 5,208 - 5,208
AFS Financial Assets 380,061 - 380,061 186,355 - 186,355
HTM Securities 135,905 - 135,905 - — -
p3,514,537 R=— #3,514,537 R3,463,156 R— R3,463,156

r“’Exc.'ua‘a"ng cash an hand amounting to R55 and R&0 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
®nctuded under “Other noncurrent ossets”.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Group using high quality and standard quality
as internal credit ratings.

High Quality. Pertains to receivables from counterparties who are not expected by the Group to
default in settling its obligation. Thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. Financial assets with high
credit quality are normally collected within the credit period and without history of default

collection.



-44 .-

Standard Quality. Other financial assets not belonging to high guality financial assets are included in
this category.

Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatch of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain continuity of funding. The Group’s liquidity risk management
policy is to measure and forecast its cash commitments, to match debt maturities with the assets
being financed, to maintain a diversity of funding sources with its access to bank financing and the
capital market and to hold a sufficient level of cash reserves.

The Group monitors its risk to shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
assets and liabilities projected cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding statutory payables) used to manage liquidity as at December 31, 2015 and 2014
of the continuing operations based on contractual undiscounted payments.

2015
Within 31to 91to More than

30 Days 60 Days 61to 90 Days 120 Days 120 Days Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents* R2,980,200 BR= r— [-E -5 £2,980,200
Trade and other receivables 42,805 5,707 3,567 - 19,263 71,342
AFS financial assets 380,061 - - - - 380,061
HTM securities 64,098 - - 47,299 24,508 135,905
Rental and security deposits ~- - - - 5,239 5,239
Total undiscounted financial assets 3,467,164 5,707 3,567 47,299 49,010 3,572,747
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 5,611 - 2 - 2,081 7,694
Accrued expenses 9,388 - - - 2,766 12,154
Other current liabilities 122 - - - 11,773 11,895
Due to related parties - - - - 53 53
Dividends payable - - - - 6,554 6,554
Tetal undiscounted financial liabilities 15,121 - 2 - 23,227 38,350
Net undiscounted financial assets 3,452,043 R5,707 R3,565 R47,29% R25,783 R3,534,397
“Excluding cosh on hand emounting to R55,

2014
Within 31to 91 to More than

30 Days 60 Days 61to 90 Days 120 Days 120 Days Total
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents* #3,207,665 B- B— - R- R3,207,665
AF5 financial assets 186,355 - - - - 186,355
Trade and other receivables 67,896 1,083 271 — 6,603 75,853
Rental and security deposits - - - - 5,208 5,208
Total undiscounted financial assets 3,461,916 1,083 271 - 11,811 3,475,081
Financial Liabllities
Trade payables 4,450 - - - 14,851 19,301
Accrued expenses 8,741 - - - 5,506 14,247
Other current liabilities - 54 - - 267 321
Due to related parties - - - - 53 53
Dividends payable - - - - 6,554 6,554
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 13,191 54 - - 27,231 40,476
Net undiscounted financial assets

{liabilities) R3,448,725 R1,029 ®271 R— {R15,420) R3,434,605

*Excluding cash on hond amaunting to R0,
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Derivatives
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate

swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and
commodity price risks, respectively.

The Group entered into forward currency derivative in 2014 and 2013 to manage foreign currency

risks arising from its dollar denominated transactions. These derivatives are accounted for as
transactions not designated as hedges.

in 2014, the Group entered into buy Philippine Peso and sell US Dollar forward contract with an
aggregate notional amount of US$25.0 million and a weighted average contracted forward rate of
R43.96 to US51.00 which matured in 2014,

The net movements in the fair value changes of all derivative instruments for the year ended
December 31, 2014 follows:

Balance at beginning of year R-
Net changes in fair value of derivatives

not designated as accounting hedges 12,658

12,658

Fair value of settled instruments (12,658)

Balance at end of year R—

As at December 31, 2015, the Group no longer has outstanding derivative financial instruments.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value,

The Group competes in an industry where opportunities for growth still abound. Projects are
selected if their expected returns are higher than cost of capital. Fundings are sourced from a
combination of retained earnings, debt and new capital. The Group aims for flexibility in the capital
structure to meet changing conditions and adapt with minimum cost and delay. It looks at solvency
by keeping its debt capacity within its ability to generate future cash flows.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The table below summarizes
the capital components of the Group.

2015 2014
Capital stock R1,148,535 21,148,535
Additional paid-in capital 451,364 451,364
Parent shares held hy a subsidiary (1,149,886) (1,149,886)
Other equity reserves 236,917 120,518
Retained earnings 2,855,444 2,868,013

R3,542,374 23,438,544
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Fair Values
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Qther Receivables, HTM Securities and Trade and QOther
Payables. Due to the short-term nature of the financial assets and liabilities, the fair value
approximates the carrying amounts at initial recognition,

Rental and Security Deposits, The estimated fair values of rental and security deposits are based on
the discounted values of future cash flows using as discount rate the prevailing MART1 rates that
are specific to the tenor of the instruments’ cash flows as of financial reporting date. The discount
rates used in determining the fair values of rental and security deposits range from 3.33% to 2.83%
in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

AFS Financial Assests. Quoted market prices have been used to determine the fair value of AFS
financial assets.

The Group's financial instruments measured at fair value have the following hierarchy levels:

e Level 1-atquoted prices in active market;

e Level 2 - at inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ |Level 3 - atinputs that are not based on observable market data.

The following takle provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the financial assets as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Loans and receivables -

Rental and security deposits R= RG,239 R- R5,23% B- £4,453 [ 4,453
AFS financial assets 380,061 - - 380,061 186,355 - - 186,355
HTM securities 135,905 - - 135,905 - - - -

#515,966 R5,235 R~ #521,205 R186,355 R4,453 R- £150,808

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO ACCOMPANY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Paxys, Inc.

15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower

Avala Avenue, Makati City

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Paxys, Inc. {the Company} and Subsidiaries as at
and for the year ended December 31, 2015, on which we have rendered our report dated April 5, 2016.

In compliance with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has 113 stockholders owning 100 or more shares each.

REYES TACANDONG & CO.
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HAYDEE M. REYES

Partner
CPA Certificate No. B3522
Tax Identification No. 102-095-265-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
5EC Accreditation No, 0663-AR-2 Group A
Valid until April 14, 2017
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-6-2013
Valid until November 26, 2016
PTR No. 5321843
Issued January 5, 2016, Makati City

April 5, 2016
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE

The Stockhalders and the Board of Directars
Paxys, Inc.

15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower

Avyala Avenue, Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consalidated financial
statements of Paxys, Inc. {the Parent Company) and Subsidiaries (the Group) as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (with comparative figures for 2013) and have issued our report
thereon dated April 5, 2016, Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedule of
retained earnings available for dividend declaration of the Parent Company for the year ended
December 31, 2015 is the responsibility of the Group’s management. This schedule is presented for
purposes of complying with the Securities Regulations Caode Rule 68, as amended, and is not part of the
basic consalidated financial statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all
material respects, the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole,
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AYDEE M. REYES

Partner
CPA Certificate No, 83522
Tax ldentification No. 102-095-265-000
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PAXYS, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

Deficit at beginning of year

(R1,412,641)

Net unrealized foreign exchange loss in 2014 595,501
Deficit at beginning of year as adjusted (817,140)
Net loss actually realized during the year {28,398,297)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain in 2015 3,660,677
Unrealized foreign exchange loss in 2014 realized in 2015 (703,254)
Deficit at end of year (R26,258,014)
Reconciliation:

Deficit at end of year as shown in the separate financial statements (R29,810,938)

Unrealized foreign exchange gain in 2015 3,660,677

Unrealized foreign exchange gain in 2014 {107,753)

Deficit at end of year

(B26,258,014)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Paxys, Inc,

15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Paxys, Inc. and Subsidiaries {the Group) as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014 {with comparative figures for 2013), and have issued our report thereon dated April 5, 2016.
Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the hasic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules listed in the Index to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, Supplementary Schedules on Financial Soundness Indicators and
Corporate Structure are the responsibility of the Group’s management. These schedules are presented
for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part Il, as amended, and are not part
of the basic consolidated financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinicon, fairly
state in all material respects, the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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PAXYS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Table of Contents

Schedule Description
A Financial Assets
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties,

and Principal Stockholders {Other than Related Parties)

C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated during the
consolidation of the financial statements

D Intangible Assets - Other Assets

E Long-term Borrowings

F Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related
Companies)

G Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

H Capital Stock

N/A - Not applicable

Page

N/A

N/A

N/A



SCHEDULE A
PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
FINANCIAL ASSETS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015
{AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
Amount
Shown in the
Number of Statement of Income
Shares or Principal Financial Received and
Description Amount of Bonds Position Accrued
Cash in Banks
Union Bank of Switzerland {UBS) - R72,508 R2,667
J.P. Morgan Chase Bank {JPM) - 10,382 1
Banco de Oro (BDO) - 5,835 39
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group (ANZ) - 1,314 4
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) - 829 6
Security Bank Corporation (SBC) - 610 10
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation {(RCBC) - 323 -
Union Bank of the Philippines {UBP}) - 100 2
Metropoelitan Bank and Trust Company (MBTC) - 55 -
91,957 2,729
Cash Equivalents
S8C - 1,454,265 12,247
Metrobank Card Corporation {MCC) - 932,387 5,695
JPM - 345,623 109
UBS - 141,248 44
BDO - 12,709 18,233
uBe - 2,011 338
RCBC - - 1
2,888,243 36,667
2,980,200 39,396
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
Fixed Income Investments:
UBS — Bonds $3,000,000 137,012 848
JPM — Absolute Return Fixed Income $2,000,000 94,871 -
IPM ~ Bonds 51,000,000 47,100 -
278,983 848
Investments in Unit Investment Trust Fund -
BDO 924,506 units 101,078 -
380,061 848
Held-to-maturity Securities
UBS — Bonds $2,500,000 119,276 2,613
JPM — Bonds $350,000 16,629 396
135,905 3,009

(Forward)



Amount

Shown in the
Number of Statement of Income
Shares or Principal Financial Received and
Description Amount of Bonds Position Accrued

Trade and Other Receivables - Net

Trade - R13,132 R—
Due from related parties - 17,398 ~
Nontrade - 28,202 -
Others - 12,610 -
- 71,342 -
Rental and Security Deposits - 5,239 -
R3,572,747 R43,253
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PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014
Liquidity ratio
Current ratio 79.52:1 71.91:1
Solvency ratio
Debt to equity ratio 0.01:1 0.02:1
Profitability ratios
Return an equity {0.35%) (19%)
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization
{EBITDA) margin {(3%) {5%)

Net income margin (9%) {14%]}
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Paxys, Inc.

15th Floor, 6750 Ayala Office Tower

Ayala Avenue, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Paxys, In¢. (the Company) and
Subsidiaries {the Group) as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (with comparative
figures for 2013), and have issued our report thereon dated April 5, 2016. Qur audits were conducted
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
The supplementary Schedule of Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations is the
responsibility of the Group’s management. This schedule is presented for purposes of complying with
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, and is not part of the basic consolidated financial
statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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PAXYS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2015

. Not Not
Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics v
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
. Not Not
PFRS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reportin
PFRS 1 (Revised) P PP porting v
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for v
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- v
based Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 (Revised) | Business Combinations v
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scaope Exceptions for Joint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 insurance Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial v

Guarantee Contracts




PFRS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

PFRS B

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Operating Segments-
Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation
of the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets tc the
Entity’s Assets

PFRS S

Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Assets

Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

PFR5 11

Joint Arrangements

N EEN EENI RN

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance




i

(Revised)

. Not Not
PFRS Title Adopted ]
Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance v
Amendments to PFRS 12; Investment Entities v
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
Not Not
PAS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
PAS 1 (Revised) | Presentation of Financial Statements v
Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Puttable Financial v
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of ltems v
of Other Comprehensive Income
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Ac ting Policies, Cha in Accounting Estimates
PAS 8 counting jes, Changes in nting Es %
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16; Property Plant and Equipment -
Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of v
Accumulated Depreciation
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 ,
Employee Benefits v




. Not Not
PAS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 19 (Revised): Defined Benefit v
Plans: Employee Contributions
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
PAS 20 ) v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net [nvestment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 {Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24: Related Party Disclosures - Key v
Management Personnel
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 . .
Separate Financial Statements v
(Amended)
Amendments to PAS 27 {Amended): Investment v
Entities
PAS 28 _ , i
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 4
{Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
Financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments v
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and v
Financial Liabilities
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount v
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisions, Cantingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 4
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v




R Not Not
PAS Title Adopted )
Adopted | Applicable

Amendment to PAS 38: Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Amortization

PAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement v
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial v
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting v
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v
Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items v
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Investment Property -
Clarifying the Interrelationship hetween PFRS 3,
Business Combination and PAS 40 when Classifying v
Property as Investment Property or Owner-occupied
Property

PAS 41 Agriculture v




Philippine Interpretations

Interpretati Titl Adopted | O Not
nterpretations itle opte

P P Adopted | Applicable
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

IFRIC 1 o A v
Similar Liabilities
Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar

[FRIC 2 v
Instruments
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a

IFRIC 4 v
Lease

IERIC Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabititation Funds

FRIC & Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IERIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9: v
Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

IFRIC 14 ] _ , _ v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, P
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers ve
Extinguishing Financial Liahilities with Equit

FRIC 19 gHIshing quy v
Instruments
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

IFRIC 20 ) v
Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies




PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

. o Not Not
Interpretations Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v

SIc-10 Govern.ment ﬁ}s.su_stance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activities

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entit

SIC-25 , ges ! Fan Entity v
or its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the

SIC-27 v
Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures, v
Revenue - Barter Transactions involving Advertisin

sic-31 _ & & v
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
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(A}

(B)

{c)

(B}

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM ~ ACGR

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Use of Form ACGR

This SEC Form shall be used ta meet the reguirements of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance.

Preparation of Report

These general instructions are not to be filed with the report. The instructions to the various captions of the form
shall not be omitted from the report as filed. The report shall contain the numbers and captions of all items. If
any item is inapplicable or the answer thereto is in the negative, an appropriate statement to that effect shall be
made. Provide an explanation on why the item does not apply to the company or on how the company's practice
differs from the Code.

Signature and Filing of the Report

A. Three {3} complete sets of the report shall be filed with the Main Office of the Commission.

B. At least one complete copy of the repart filed with the Cornmission shall be manually signed.

C. All reports shall comply with the full disclosure requirements of the Securities Regulation Code.

D. Thisreport is required ta be filed annually together with the company’s annual report.

Filing an Amendment

Any material change in the facts set forth in the report occurring within the year shall be reported through SEC
Farm 17-C, The cover page for the SEC Form 17-C shall indicate "Amendment to the ACGR",
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

' Actual number of Directors for the year

(a)

Composition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors:

Type T
(Executiv | I Nominator in

eNl:Esg-L niZ:‘r::i‘feye' thé st Dale last elected Elected
Executive the alecalon (T, Date first (if 1D, state the when

Director's Name (NED) sl state the lected A mb, ¢ of vears [Annual

ind D; Principa relationship electe v ed ‘f;)a. /Special
" :npten with the servedqas Meetlng)
Director nominater)

—— {16)) = Lt 2 =pr =
Tarcisio M. £D Nominoted | 28 Moy 2004 3 Dec 2015 Annual
Medalla by the NGC : . )
Sivam NED Nominoted | 27 Moy 2011 | 3 Dec20is Annuol
Kandavanam by the NGC — £ ! |
Christopher NED Nominoted | 28 May 2004 i 0ec 2015 | Annuol

| Maldia ) | by the NGC |

i Roger Leo A. NED Nominaoted | 28 May 2004 3 Dec 2015 Annual

| Carino | by the NGC | |
Lim Ghee Keong NED | Nominoted | 27 May 2005 3 Dec 2015 Annuo!

- i by the NGC o - ) . B
| GeorgeY. Sycip | 10 | Nominated | 27 May 2005 3 Dec 2015 Annugi

| | | bythenee ——

Roberto A. NED | Nominated | 17 May 2002 3 Dec 2015 Annuoi
mendido | | |pythenoc |

| Jose Antonio A. | 1D i Nomincted | 28 May 2004 ’ 3 Dec 2015 Annuol

| Lichauco | by the NGC !

| Mark David P. £D Nominoted | 21 Aug. 2012 | 3 Dec 2015 Annuo!

| Martinez | | by the NGC

(b}

No. of
years
served
as
director

11

4

Provide a brief surmmary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted.

Please emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of
minority shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

As stoted in the Company’s Corporote Governonce Manuol, the Board of Directors (the "Boord”) is primorily
responsible for the governance of the Corporation. Corollory to setting the policies for the accomplishment of
the corporote objectives, it sholl provide an independent check on Manogement,

' Reckoned from the election immediately following December 3, 2015,




POLICY

General Responsibilities

It Is the Board's responsibility to foster the long-term success of the
Carporation, ond to sustoin its competitiveness ond profitability in o
manner consistent with its corporote objectives ond the best interests of its
stockholders. The Boord formulates the Corperotion's vision, mission,
strategic objectives, policies and procedures thot sholl quide its octivities
ond effectively monitor Monogement's performonce.

Stockholders’ Rights and
Protection of Minority
Shareholders’ Interests

The Board respects the rights of the stockholders os provided for in the
Corporotian’s Articles of Incorperation and the Corporation Code; nomely:
i. Right to vate on oll motters that require their consent or
approvol;
ii. Right to inspect corporote books and records;
iii, Right ta information;
iv. Right to dividends; and
v. Approisol right.
The pre-emptive right is denied under the Corporatian/s Articles of
incorporation.

Disclosure and
Transparency

Moteriol informotion about the Corporation that ton odversely affect its
viability or the interests of the stockholders are publicly ond timely
disclosed, Such informatian include, omong others, earnings results,
oequisition or disposition of ossets, off balonce sheet transactions, reloted
porty transoctions, ond direct and indirect remuneration of members of
the Baard Monogement.

All such informotion is disclosed through the oppropricte Exchonge
mechanisms ond submissions to the Commission.

{c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?

strotegic plonning.

Vision ond mission have been reviewed and approved. Relevonce is revisited onnuolly during the

{d}) Directorship in Other Companies

{I) Directorship in the Company’s Grcou;:uz

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of

director in other companies within its Group:

Type of Directorship
{Executive, Non-Executive,
Director's Name Curg:;zte:l:nr:leazf the Independent). Indicate if
P pany director is also the
Chairman.
Toreisio M. Medollo Paxys Globol Services Pte. Ltd, RHQ NED
Paxys Globol Services, Inc. NED / Chairmon
Scopeworks Aslo Inc. NED / Choirmon
Mork Dovid P. Mortinez Simpro Solutions Philippines inc. NED
Paxys Global Services, inc. NED

(i) Directorship in Other Listad Companiss

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors

® The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.




of publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Type of Directorship
{Executive, Non-Executive,
Independent). Indicate if

director is also the

Director's Name Name of Listed Company

T —— - . | Chairman. |
| Torcisio M. Medolio | Pocific Online Systems Corporation NED |
Roberto A. Atendido 1.Picop Resources Corporotion NED / Choirmon |
| | 2.Export ond Industry Bonk Inc. NED
George Y. Sycip Allionce Select Foods Internotionol NED

{iii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors,
which links them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

Name of the

Badanyfas Significant Shareholder

‘ Description of the relationship

Torcisio Medollo Al Asio  Customer Services | Director
- - Holdings, Ltd. - I o L
Roger Leo Corifio All  Asic  Customer Services | Director |

| Holdings, Ltd. | |

{iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies (publicly listed, ordinary
and companies with secondary license) that an individual director or CEO may hold simultaneously? In
particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If
yes, briefly describe other guidelines:

While the Corporotion does not hove o formol policy, we hove no director who hos exceeded the limit
of five (5) boord seots in other listed componies.

Maximum Number of

Guidelines Directorships in other
| companies Shib
| Executive Director NA [ A ‘
Non-Executive Director | na fNva ¥ ey
| ceo | NA NA

{e) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and
indirectly own sharesin the company:

A KT | Number of
Name of Director Number of Direct shares | Indirect shares / Through % of Capital Stock
{name of record owner) N

| Tarcisio M. Medollo 1,120 A |
| Christopher B. Maldia 0 129,520 | NA .
| Ghee Keong Lim ! : 82,800 | B T
! Roger Leo A. Corifio | 1,120 NA 03,000 ] %4
|Roberto A Atendido | 000 | - NA__ 0.0001% |

George Y. Sycip ‘ — _:__ 1,120 | NA B =

Jose Antonio A. Lichouco | 3,120 | NA ' ]
" Sivam Kondovonom | 1000 | NA '_ o _7!
' Mark Dovid P. Mortinez | 2000 | NA | 0.0001 % |

TOTAL | 219800 | 0.0192%




2)

3)

Chairman and CEQ

(a) Do different persons assume the role of Chalrman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the

checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

ves ||

o [ ]

Identify the Chair and CEO: Tarcisio M. Medalla

Chairman of the Board

Torcisio M. Medollo

CEQ/President

Torcisio M. Medolla

(b} Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEOQ.

Chairman

Chief Executive OFficer/President

Role

Responsible for the leodership af the

Leodership of the business and

. Ensure effective communication with

sharehalders, government ond ather
stokeholders

. Ensure thot off Boord committees ore

properly estoblished, compased ond
operoted

. Chair the Nominations Committee and

build an effective ond complementory
Board, regulorly  consider  its
composition ond bolance, including
succession planning for Boord and
senior moenogement oppaintments

. Facilitotes the effective contribution

of nen-executive  directars  jn
porticufar ond ensure constructive
relotions between executive and non-
executive directors.

Board managing it within the outhorities
delegated by the Board.
Accountabilities || 1. Ensure effective Boord functioning in | 1. Develop strategy for boord
accordance with its stondords of recommendation
corparote governonce 2. Execute business plon and

updote the Boord an the business
performonce
3. Develop procedures to ensure
complionce to regulatory
requirements
4. Ensure business is conducted in
ocecardance with the company’s
business ethics

Deliverables

Board meeting ogendan, ensuring
that issues reloting to governonce,
risks ond company strategies ore
considered by the baord

Preside aver the Annual Generol
Meeting

2. Processes,

1. Annuol budget ond funding plan
structure and
procedures to  support the
strotegy and budget

3. Periodic performonce reports

Explain how the baard of directors plan for the succession of the CED/Managing Director/President and the top
key management positions?

The CEQ’s of Poxys subsidiories and its key officers ore periodically evaluated by the Poxys Boord.




4) Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board?

YES.

Article 3, Section G.i

In oddition to the quolifications for membership in the Beoord provided for in the Corporation Cade,
Securities Regulation Code ond ather relevont laws, the Boord moy provide for odditional quolificotions
which include, amang others, the follawing:
i. College educotion or equivalent ocodemic degree;
il. Procticol understonding of the business of the Corparation;
ifi. Membership in goad stonding in relevont 'industry, business or prafessionol argenizations; ond
iv. Previous business experience.

Does it ensure that ot least ane non-executive directar has on experience in the sector or industry the
compony belangs ta? Please explain.

Board policy ond/or Menual on Corporote Governance do not specifically require ¢ non-executive director
to hove experience in our industry, although the manuol stotes the specific duties af o director os foflows:

Hove o working knowledge of the stotutory end regulotory requirements that affect the Corparotion,
including its articles of incorporotion and by-lows, the rules ond regulatians of the Commissian and,
where opplicoble, the requirements of relevont regulotory ogencies.

A director should olso keep obreost with industry developments ond business trends in order to
promaote the Corporotion's competitiveness.

befine and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:

Basically, the role of oll directars regardiess of the type of directarship is the some. The Boaord of Directors (the
“Booard”} is primorlly responsible far the governonce of the Corporation. Corollory to setting the palicies for the

occomplishment of the corporote abjectives, it sholl provide an independent check on Manogement.

Executive

Non-Executive

Independent Director

Role

A directar who is olsa
the heod of o
department or unit of
the Carporotion or
performs any wark
reloted to its aperotion

A director wha is not the
heod af o deportment or
unit of the Corparation
nar performs any work
related to its aperotion.

He monitors the
performance aof the
executive directors.

independent directar—a
person who, oport from
his fees ond
shareholdings, is
independent of
manogement and free
from any business or
other relationship which
could, or could
reosonably be perceived
to, materiolly interfere
with his exercise of
independent judgment




Executive Non-Executive Independent Director

in carrying out his
responsibilities as o
director

Provides a strong and
independent element in
the bogrd, oble to
exercise objective
judgment on corporote
affoirs independently, in

particular, from
Monagement.
Accountabilities | Ensure that Boord 1. Challenge and - Act os constructive
policies, strotegles and contribute to the critic in reviewing the
mondate are executed in strotegy objectives ond plans of
accordonce to the 2. Scrutinize the Monogement,
opproved plon performonce of - Plays on active role in
management in committees formed by
meeting objectives the Boord.
3. Custodions of the - Qversight of the
governonce process compony’s finonciol

reporting process ond
disclosure of its
finonciol informotion
{Audit Committee
Members)

- Oversight of the
compony’s Risk
Manogement
Processes {Audit
Committee Members)

Deliverables Vision

Mission

Strategic objectives

Business Plon {budget ond funding)

Policies ond procedures

In oddition, the members of the following committee hove these deliverables:
Audit Committee — Committee Annuol Report, Assessment of Controls,
Assessment of Risk Monogement Processes

Nomination and Governance Committee -~ nominations for the onnual election
of officers ond directors, Boord ond executive succession plon and Boord
Performance Evaluotion

Provide the company's definition of "independence" and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.

Independent Director - o person who, opart from his fees and shoreholdings, is independent of monogement
ond free from ony business or ather relotionship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, moterially
interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in corrying out his respansibilities os o director.

The orgonization hos 2 independent directors. It is compliont with the SEC ond its own manuol’s requirement
of 2 or 209 of its boord of directors being independent directors,




Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

5)

There is no provision in the Board policies nor in the Monuo! regording the term limit of Independent Directors.
In ony cose, the company will adopt the SEC’s requirement (effective Jonuary 2, 2012) of o term limit of §
consecutive yeors for the independent directors with cooling off period of 2 yeors and no more thon 2 terms or
o totol of 10 yeors. As such, our 2 Independent Directors have already served three vears of the S-year term.

Changes in the Board of Directors {(Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)

{a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate apy changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:

Name | Position Date of Cessation | Reason

NA { |

L

(b) Selection/Appcintment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal,
reinstatement and suspension of the mermbers of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes

adopted {including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

I Procedure Process Adopted Criteria
[ a. Selection/Appointment
‘ (i} Executive Directors . There ore only 2 executive General criterio:
directors ond they ore the - College education or
| President whao is ot the same equivalent ocodemic
i time the choirman of the degree;
Boord, and the Corporote - Procticol understonding of
' Secretory who is ot the some the business of the
time Corporate Counsel. Corporation;
- Membership in good
|

| stonding in relevont
| industry, business or
professionol orgonizotions;
| - Previous business exposure
| (ii) Non-Executive Directors 1. Stockholders to submit
| nominees to the
| Nominaticns ond \
Governonce Committee ‘

(iii) Independent Directors (NGC) no more thon 30 doys | On top of the general criterio, !
before the dote of the specific criteria is set 0§ J
stockholder’s meeting. follows: |

2. The nominating farm sholl - With financio!

: contoin the nome of the expertise/bockground
nominee and oll - Should be free of ony
informotion thot may be | conflict of interest thot
required by the SEC. the would vielote the
nominoting form should be opplicoble low on

stockholder ond hove the Have the copacity ond
J signed conformity of the interest to represent the
! nominee. interests of the
3. NGCto screen quolificotions shoreholders as o whole
of the nominee

| signed by the nominpting | independent directors
|
|
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Procedure

Process Adopted

Criteria

4. Only shortlisted nominees
sholl be eligible for election,
no further nominee sholl be
occepted on the floor.

5. Conduct of election of non-

executive director sholl be
in occordonce to the
election procedures of the
compony, which hoppens
during the Annuol General
Meeting (AGM)

6. The choirman will inform olf
stockholders present during
the (AGM) of the
mandatory requirement to
elect independent directors.

b. Re-oppointment

(i) Executive Directors

Executive directors ore covered
hy employment controct.

As evoluated by the Board
bosed on set KPIs.

[ii) Non-Executive Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

1. Nominaotion and
Governance Committee
assesses the performonce
of the director vis o vis the
needs of the
business/company ond his
role as defined in the
Manuol.

2. ifdirector is fit for the job,
he stonds for re-election
during the Annuol General
Meeting.

3. The process for election
will then be odopted.

Able to meet the roles ond
responsibilities of the job os
set forth in the corporote
governance manuol and the
corporation’s by-laws

The same

¢, Permonent Disqualificotion

{i) Executive Directors

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

{iii) Independent Directars

The by-laws states that if any
voconcy omong the officers,
such vacancy sholl be filled by
the Boord of Directors.

This is coursed through the
Nomination and Governance
Committee who will
recommend to the Boord the
permanent or temporory
disquolification or such other
appropriote administrotive
sanction af ony Director based
an the grounds provided under
the G Manual.

- If canvicted by final
Judgment or order by o
competent fudiciol or
administrative body aof any
crime that (o) involves the
purchase ar sale of
securities, os defined in the
Securities Regulotion Code;
{b} orises out of the persan's
conduct os an underwriter,
broker, dealer, investment
adviser, principol,
distributor, mutuo! fund
deoler, futures commission
merchont, commuodity
trading odvisor, or floor
broker; or (¢} orises out of
his fiduciory relationship
with o bonk, quosi-bank,
trust company, investment

12



Procedure

Pracess Adopted

Criteria

house ar os on affiliated
person of ony of them

- Any person who, by reoson
of misconduct, ofter hearing,
is permanently enjoined by o
final judgment or arder of
the Commission ar any court
or odministrotive body of
campetent jurisdiction from:
{o} octing os underwriter,
broker, deoler, investment
odviser, principol distributor,
mutuol fund dealer, futures
commission merchont,
cammodity troding odvisor,
or floor broker; (b} acting os
director or officer of o bonk,
quosi-bonk, trust company,
investment house, or
investment compony; {c)
engoging in or continuing
any conduct or proctice in
ony of the copocities
mentioned in sub-
porogrophs o) and (b)
above, or willfully violating
the laws govern securities
and bonking activities

- Any person convicted by
final judgment or arder by a
court or competent
administrotive body of an
offense involving moral
turpitude, fraud,
embezzlement, theft, estafo,
counterfeiting,
misappropriation, forgery,
bribery, folse affirmaotion,
perjury or other froudulent
octs

- Any persan who has been
odjudged by finol judgment
or order of the Commissian,
court, ar campetent
odministrative body to have
willfully violated, or willfully
aided, abetted, counseled,
induced ar pracured the
violation of ony provision of
the Carporation Code,
Securities Regulation Code
or any ather low
odministered by the
Commission or BSF, or ony of
its rule, regulation or order

- Any person eorlier elected as
independent directar who

13



Procedure

Process Adopted

Criteria

becames an officer,
employee or consuitant of
the Corporotion

- Any person judiciolly
declared os insolvent

- Any person found guilty by
finol judgment ar order of o
foreign caurt or equivalent
finonciol regulotary
outhority of focts, violotions
ar misconduct similor to ony
of the octs, violations or
misconduct enumerated in
sub-parogrophs (1) to (v)
obove

- Canviction by finol judgment
of on offense punishable by
imprisanment for more thon
six {6) yeors, or @ violotion of
the Corparation Code
committed within five (5)
yeors prior to the date of his
election or oppointment

d. Temporary Disqualification

{i} Executive Directors

(i} Non-Executive Directors

(iti} Independent Directors

A tempororily disqualified
directar shall, within sixty {60)
business doys from such
disquolificotion, toke the
oppropriote oction to remedy
or correct the qualification. If
he foils or refuses to do so for
unjustified reosons, the
disqualificotion sholl become
permanent

The by-lows stotes that if ony
vaconcy emang the officers,
such vaconcy sholl be filled by
the Boord of Directors.

This Is coursed through the
Nominotion ond Governonce
Committee who will
recommend to the Boord the
permanent or temporory
disquolificotion or such other
appropriote administrative
sonction af ony Directar bosed
on the grounds provided under
the £G Monual.

o)Refusol to comply with the
disclosure requirements of
the Securities Regulation
Code ond its implementing
Rules ond Regulotians. The
disqualificotion sholl be in
effect os long os the refusal
persists.

b)Absence in mare thon fifty
{50) percent of oll regulor
ond speciol meetings of the
Board during his
incumbency, or any twelve
{12) month period during the
said incumbency, unless the
obsence is due to illness,
death in the immediate
fomily or serious occident.
The disquuolification sholl
opply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

¢) Dismissol ar termination for
couse os directar of any
corporation cavered by this
Cade. The disquolification
sholl be in effect until he has
cleared himself from any
involvernent in the couse
thot gove rise to his
dismissal or termingation.

d)if the beneficiol equity
ownership of on
independent director in the
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6)

‘— Procedure

| e. Removal

| (i} Executive Directors

(i) Non-Executive Directors

(iii) Independent Directors

Process Adopted

As provided for in the

| Corporotion Code af the Phils.

Title 3, Sec. 28

i Criteria
Corporation or its
subsidiories ond cffiliates
exceeds two percent (2%) of
its subscribed copital stock.
The disqualification sholl be
lifted if the limit is later
complied with.

le)if ony of the judgments or
orders cited in the grounds
jor permanent
disqudlification has not yet
bhecome finol.

Criterio for permanent
disquolificotion opplies

| f. Re-instotement

(i} Executive Directors

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

(i) Independent Directors

} g. Suspension

process for selection and
appointment of Boord of
Directars opply

Criteria for selection and
appointment of Boord
| members opply

‘ (i} Executive Directors

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

{ii} Independent Directors

Process for temporary
disquelificotion opply

Criteria for temparory
disquolification apply

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

Name of Director

Votes Received

Torcisio M. Medallo

966,892,984

[ Roger Leo A. Carifio 966,892,984
[ Christopher 8. Moidio 966,892,984

Lim Ghee Keong 966,892,854

Roberto A. Atendido T T T QﬁE_E‘JE“JSd )

Sivom Kondovonom 966,892,984 ]

Mark David P. Mortinez
Gearge Y. SyCip

66,552,384

956,892,984

Jose Antonio A, Licheuco

966,852,984

Orientation and Education Program

(a2} Disclose details of the campany’s orientation program for new directors, if any.

There is no formal orientotion process in place. New director wilf usuolly be briefed by the
Choirmon and the Corporate Secretory.
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{b) State anyin-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior I’\J"Ianagement3 for the
past three {3} years:

Corporote Governance Qrientation Program—
Corporate Governance Qrientation Program —

Mark Dovid Mortinez, 2012
Jose Antomo Lichouco

Seminar on Corporote Governonce
2014

June 2014

Seminar on Carporaie Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governonce
Seminar on Corporote Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governonce
Seminar on Corporate Governonce
Seminar on Corporate Governonce
Seminar on Corporate Governonce
Seminar an Corperote Gevernonce
Seminor gn Corporote Governonce

SEC Corporate Governance Workshop
on ASEAN Corporgte Governonce

Seminar on Corporate Governance
Seminar gn Corporate Governance
Seminar on Corporote Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governance
Serminar gn Corporale Governanga
Serminar on Corporate Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governance
Leminar on Carporate Governance
Seminar on Corporate Governance

Seminar on Closing the Taxable Yeor

SEC-PSE Corporale Governance Forum

Scorecard for Publicly-Listed Campanies

Ano Mo. Morgerito A. Kotigbok, 18 Februory

Public Seminar on Corporote Gavernance for Public-Listed Componies — Mark Dovid P. pMertinez, 30

Torcisio M. Medolio, 8 August 2014
Roger Leo A. Corifo, 8 August 2014
Ghee Keong Lim, 8 August 2014

Sivarn Kondovenom, 8 August 2014
Christopher 8. Moldia, 8 Avgust 2014
George Y. SyCip, 8 August 2014

Jose Antonio A. Lichauco, 8 August 2014
Roberte A, Atendido, 8 August 2014
Mork Dovid P. Mortinez, 8 August 2014

Mork David P. Martinez, 21 October 2014

Moark Dovid P, Martinez, 23 April 2015

Tarcisio M. Medalla, 13 Nevember 2015
Roger Leo A. Corino, 13 November 2015
zhee Keong Lim, 18 December 2015

Sivem Kandavenam, 13 November 2015
Christopher B. Maldio, 13 November 2015
George Y. Splip, 13 November 2015

Jose Antonio A, Lichouco, 13 Novemnber 2015
Raberto A. Atendido, 24 August 2015
Roberto A Atendido, 15 September 2015
Muoark Dovid P, Martiner, 13 November 2015

Meork Dovid P. Martinez, 24 November 2015

(¢] Continuing education programs for directors:

programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the

vear.
T Nameof [ W i Name of Training
Date of Trainin Program
Director/Officer e g g Institution
None

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1) Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct ar ethics affecting directors, seniar
management and employees:

* senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controfling the activities of the company.
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Business Conduct &

Ethics Directors Senior Management Employees
{a) Conflict of Interest || Conduct  foir  business } Poxys does not allow its employees or officers to
trensoctions  with  the | toke personal goin, otherwise profit, from their
Corporation, ond ensure | employment, by misusing their position or

thet his personol interest
does not conffict with the
interests of the Corporotion.

The bosic principie to be
abserved is thot o director
should not use his position
to profit or goin some
benefit or edvontoge for
himself ond/or his reloted
interests.

He should oveld situotions
thot may compromise his
importiality. If on octuol or
potentiol conflict of interest
moy orise on the port of o
director, he should fully ond
immediately disclose it ond
should not porticipote in
the decision-moking
process, A director who hos
a  continwing  moteriol
canflict of interest should
seriously consider resigning
from his position.

Poxys’ ossets. Conflict of interest orises when o
personal or private interest interferes in ony
woy with one’s work, duties ond/or interests of
the company.

An employee should disclose any dealings with
the compony or its competitors, by himself or
his family within the 3 degree of consonguinity
or offinity. It ls management’s prerogotive ta re-
assign the employee.

(b} Conduct of
Business and Fair
Dealings

Conduct  foir  business
tronsoctions  with the
Corporotion, ond ensure

thot his personel interest
does not conffict with the
interests of the Corporotion.

Employees could ovaid unfoir odvontoge of
onyene through monipulotion, conceolment,
obuse of outhority, misrepresentotion ond/or
ony unfoir deoling. Al employees must deol
fairly with the compony’s customer’s, service
providers, suppliers, competitors ond
employees,

{(c} Receipt of gifts from
third parties

Gifts ond other meons of

showing oppreciotion ond grotitude moy be

exchonged with business portners but it is understood thot such octs will not

influence business decisions,

Acceptonce ond giving of ony gift must be

avoided if it moy be perceived os hoving influence on o business relotionship or

any business decision.

Compliance with
Laws & Regulations

All employees ore expected to odhere to the Code of Ethics by:

- Engoging in honest conduct. Alf employees of the company ore expected to
comply with applicoble lows, rules ond regulations.
Demonds brought obout by business exigencies or pressures ore not
excuses for violoting the stipulotions in the Code of Ethics.

- Personally odhering to the stondords ond restrictions imposed by those
laws, rules and regulations.

{e) Respect for Trade
Secrets/Use of Non-

public Informaticon

A director should keep
secure ond confidential oll
nan-public informotion he
may ocquire or learn by
reoson of his position os

it is the responsibility of ofl employees to
maintoin ond sofeguord the confidentiality of
infarmation  entrusted to the compony,
subsidiories, offiliotes, customers, business
portners, or such other porties with whom the

director. He should not | compony relotes.
reveol confidentiaf
information to
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2)

3)

4)

Business Conduct &
Ethics

Directors Senior Management Employees

unouthorized persons
without the outhority of the
Board

{f} Use of Company
Funds, Assets and
information

We ore oll responsible for safeguarding and moking proper ond efficient use of
Compony funds ond property, including responsible use af information.

Any employee who willfully/moliciously or negligently damoges compony
property, misuses company funds for personol or froudulent use, will be subject
to disciplinory oction up to ond including dismissol ondfor civil/criminol
prasecution.

{g) Employment &
Labor Laws &

Palicies

We will adhere to opplicoble lows, rules ond regulotions.
We are committed to keeping our workploce free of hozords.

{h} Disciplinary action

Nomination ond | As stoted in its employee’s manual.
Governance Committee to
consider and recormmend to
the Boord the oppropriote
administrotive sonction of
any Director bosed on the
grounds provided under the
G Monuel ond the
Committee Chorter,

{i) Whistle Blower

To provide on oppropriote confidentiol mechonism for whistleblowers to
provide information on potentiolly froudulent tronsoctions ond breoches of
internal contral, without fear of retribution to the employee,

Coses ore hondled by HR, Complionce ond internol Audit, depending an the
type of issue reported.

(i} Conflict Resolution

it is Boord's responsibility to estoblish and mointoin
an alternative dispute resolution system in the
Corporation thot con omicobly settle conflicts or
differences between the Corporotion ond its
stockhalders, ond the Corporation ond third parties,
including the regulatory outhorities.

NA

The Audit Committee will investigote ond maoke
appropriate recommendotions to the Boord.

Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees?

YES

Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

Code of Business Conduct is being coscoded during new-hire orientotion. The implementation
ond monitoring is defegoted to the line lenders. internol Audit is part of the monitoring process
through its periodic oudits,

Related Party Transactions

(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company's policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures,
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the




Board.

Related Party Transactions

Policies and Procedures

(1) Parent Company

(2) Joint Ventures

(3) Subsidiaries

(4) Entities Under Common Control

{5) Substantial Stockholders

The Company hos implemented policies ond procedures thot
would ensure the integrity ond tronsporency of reloted porty
tronsoctions between ond among the Corporotion and its

| porent tompony, joint venture, subsidiories, ossociotes,

offiliotes, major stockholders, officers ond directors,
including thelr spouses, children ond dependent siblings ond
porents, ond of interfocking director relotionships by
members of the Boord.

As g motter of policy, the compony does not engoge in
reloted porty transoctions without prior boord opproval.

| {6) Officers including
s spouse/children/siblings/parents

i

We opply the arms-length principle ond these transactions
are properly recorded ond disclased in the financial records.

{7} Directors including

spouse/children/siblings/parents We opply the conflict of interest policy ond procedures.

Any director thot is likewise o director of a counterparty of
the Campony is required to obstain from ony evoluotion or
approvol af a relotionship between the Company ond this
counterparty.

(8} tnterlocking director relationship
of Board of Directors

(b) Conflict of Interest
(i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

Identify any actual ar probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders
may be involved.

Details of Conflict
of Interest {Actual or Probabie)
Name of Director/s None
Name of Officer/s None
Name of Significant Sharehaolders None

{il) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and rescive any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders.

Directors/Officers/Significant Shareholders
Conduct due diligence on suppliers ond vendars, customers.
We opply the conflict of interest policy under our code of
ethics
Conduct due difigence on suppliers ond vendors, customers.
We apply the conflict of interest policy under our code of
ethics

Company

Group

5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

{a) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,' commercial, contractual or business nature that exists

! Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.
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between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

Names of Related ' Type of Relationship | Brief Description of the |
Significant Shareholders | Relationship

We are not awore of any fomily, Commerciol ond Controctuol Relotions with stockholders of significont |

. equity (5% or more).

[b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity {5% or more) and the company:

Names of Related |
Significant Shareholders |
None NA NA |

Type of Relationship Brief Description

{c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may bmpact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of
the company:

% of Capital Stock affected Brief Description of the
(Parties) | Transaction [

Name of Sharehelders

Norne

6) Alternative Dispute Resotution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3} years in
amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockhelders, and the corporation and
third parties, including regulatory authorities.

Alternative Dispute Resolution System \

: = P— = ,
| Corporation & Stockholders | Not Applicoble. No conflict hos arisen between
| Corporation & Third Parties the company ond ony of its stockholders, third
| Corporation & Regulatory Authorities B porties ar regulatory authorities. |

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?

Boord meetings are scheduled in odvance before the close of the current yeor.

1) Attendance of Directors lanuary 2015 to December 2015

S ——————p _"N__o.;f” _ No-.of -
Board Name Date of Electlon Mzﬁ:zgst:eeld Meetings % |
Yegr Attended I
| Choirman | Tarcisio M. Medolla | 3Dec 2015 6 | s [ 100%
| Member | Roger Lea A. Carino | 3 Dec 2015 6 | 5 | @&3%
Member | RobertoA. Atendido | 3Dec 2045 | 6 | 6 | 100% |
Mermber Christopher 8. Maldja | 3Dec 2015 | & | B | 1008k |
Member | Lim Ghee Keong e 3 Dec. 2095 | [ ' 5 | 3% |
Member | Sivom Kondovanam | Bosc238 | & | 4 | BEs|
Member | Mork Dovid P. Martinez | 3 Dec. 2015 & | & | doo%
Independent | Jose Antonio A. Lichauco | FPec.2015 | 6 6 1007 !
independent | George Y. Sycip _ 3 Dec. 2015 |. & | E L 100% ]

3) Da non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If
yes, how many times?
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None.

4) Isthe minimum quorum requirement for Board decisicns set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain,

For o boord decision to be corried, it should be opproved or rotified by mojority of the boord members.

5] Access to Information

{a) How many days in advance are board pnaperss for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

At leost 5 working doys in odvonce.

{b} Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes, Boord Members con directly communicote with the Corporote Secretory.

{c) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

The Corporate Secretary works fairly and objectively with the Board, Menagement and stockholders,
is aware of the lows, rules and regulotions necessary in the performance of his duties ond
responsibilities, he informs the members of the Boord, in accordance with the by-lows of the agendo
of their meetings and ensure that the members hove before them occurate information that will
enable them to arrive at intelligent decisions on muotters that require their approval. And although
the policy is silent on his rale regarding updating the directors of relevant statutory ond regulatory
changes, this in proctice is being done by the Corp. Secretary.

{d} Isthe company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? YES

{e) Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information
necessary to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

Yes |I| No |:

Committee Details of the procedures

Executive The Corporate Secretary is the link between the Boord and
management, therefore depending on the ogenda, the
Corporate Secretary will provide/or is the point person for the
Boord to coordinate or request information from Monogement
or other sources. The policy also ollows o Board member to
engage on external resource to enable him to fulfill his duties as
o member of the Baord.

Audit The Internal Audit Deportment (IAD) acts os the Secretoriat for
the Audit Committee, hence whatever information they need to
prepare themselves for Commirtee Meetings are coming from
the IAD or ore requested through the 1AD. In certain coses, the

* Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters tc be taken in the board meeting.
Information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets,

forecasts and internal financial documents.
21



IAD moy need to coordinote with the Corporote Secretary or the
CFO, External Auditor to provide these information.

The Corporote Secretory Is the link between the Boord ond
monogement, therefore depending on the ogendo, the
Corparote Secretory will provide/or is the point person for the
Boord to coordinote or request information from Manogement
or other saurces. The policy olso allows o Boord member to
engoge on external resource to enable him to fulfill his duties os
o member of the Boord.

Nomination

Remuneration

&) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details:

Procedures

Details

Boord member to inform the Board/or the
Chairman af the Committee regording the need
for on external advice.

This moy hoppen during Merger ond Acquisition
projects of the campany, where o certoin Boord
Member/Committee moy hove been ossigned by
the Boord to hondle evolugtion.

The Boord/Committee Chairmon will approve os
necessory

The approver will depend on whot type of
engagement ond whose Committee the project
needs advise for. If the praject hos been
sonctioned ot the Boord fevel, then the Choirmon
of the Boord will opprove. If It Is ot the
Committee Jevel, then it is the Choirmon of the
Committee to approve.

A report of the externol resource will be provided
to the full Board/Committee by the requesting
Boord member.

External resaurce will report to the Boord in
beholif of the requesting Boord member,

7) Change/fs in existing policies indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during
its most recent term} on existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the

1)

reason/s for the change:

Existing Pelicies

Changes

Reason

maotters

Legol review of employment

Used ta be hondled by HR

Boord decided that oll cases be
centrolized ot the Legal
Deportment

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four {4) most highly
compensated management officers:

Process

CED

Top 4 Highest Paid
Management Officers

(1) Fixed remuneration

Boord estoblishes KPl and
Compensation ond
Remunerotion Committee
evoluates perfarmonce ond
mokes recommendotion

President establish KPis ond
evoluotes performonce ond
decides on remunerotion

[2) Variable remuperation

Not opplicoble

Not applicable
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} {3) Per diem allowance

\-{4) Bonus

| (5 Stock Options and
| other financial
instruments

Norgppﬁcabfe

Board establishes KPt ond

. Compensation ond
Remunerotion Committee
evaluotes performonce ond
muokes recommendotion
Boord estoblishes KPf ond
Compensation ond
Remuneration Committee

Not applicoble

President estoblish KPis ond
evaluotes performonce and \
decides on remunerotion [

Decided by the Boord through
Compensotion ond
Remunerotion Committee

evoluotes performonce ond
mokes recommendation

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how

the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

| - ] Structure of W

; How Compensation is
Remuneration Policy Compensation 2
Calculated
Packages

' Bosic monthly pay ‘
multiplied by bonus
months divide by 261
for doily rote used as
bosis for computing
other benefits ;
performonce benus s a
percentoge of the
| annuvol solory os fixed
by the boord depending
on performance,

Set by the
Compensatian and
Remuneration
Committee
Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remunerztion (fees, allowances,
bepefits-in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directers? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Fixed monthiy poy,
perfaormonce bonus 0s
opproved by the Board
and fixed per diem

Applies the Compony’s
solory structure ond
compensation pockoge

Executive Directors

f—— o= e = —

| Non-Executive
Directors

Fixed per diem for every

; Fixed per diem
meeting ottended B,

' f
| Remuneration Scheme Date o ‘

Stockholders’ Approval

2015 - o
_ :

i 2014 - No

i 2013 - No ‘

3) Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year: 201§
{unaudited)

Neon-Executive
Directors {other
than independent
directors)

Independent

Executive Directors :
Directors

1

1

‘ Remuneration ltem
| (a) Fixed Remuneration

Phpll,663,201.63
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4)

5)

&)

(f

Variable Remuneration

Per diemn Allowance 240,000,040

Bonuses 534,574 |

Stock Options and/or
other financial
instruments

Others [Specify}

Total Phpl3,407,775.63 |

Php&dd,000.00

|
Phpbal, 000.00

Php38E,000.00

Php380,000.00 |

‘ Ficaiiiva Non-Executive Director inidnan
‘ Other Benefits ) (other than independent ,p
Directors p Directors
L — ! ‘ directors) £
1} Advances | NA | NA NA
2} Credit granted | NA NA NA
: = | =
3) Penspn P!an/s A i NIk
Contributions [
| {d) Pension Plans, i
Na A NA
Obligations incurred | N
| {e) LifeInsurance Premium | 2,000.00 NA NA
| {f) Hospitalization Plan | NA NA WA
| | ]
(g} CarPlan [ NA NA NA
| (h) Others (HMO Premium} [ 113,727 NA NA
Total ‘ NA NA
i . 115,727.04 |
Stock Rights, Options angd Warrants

(a)

(b

Board of Directors

Comptete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are

entitled to stock rights, options or warrants over the company’s shares:

. N £
| Number of Direct um'bero | Number of
Director's Name Option/Rights/ Indirect Equlvalent Tokaloe featn
Option/Rights/ | Capital Stock
i Warrants ‘ Shares
| ] Warrants ]

i
None |
L

Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria
used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual

Stockholders’ Meeting:

Incentive Program Amendments

The company offers no incentive program.

Remuneration of Management

Date of
Stockholders’ Approval
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1)

Identify the five {5) members of management who are not at the
the total remuneration received during the financial year:

Name of Officer/Position Tota
Edmundo Miguel Mocoso / Head of Operations, SWA |

|
Pablite Lim / Heod of Finonce, SWA |

BOARD COMMITTEES

Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the

power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

Executive Committee

same time executive directors and indicate

| Remuneration
Phpll, 79303108 |
J

N __

Executive (ED)

~No, of Members

Director

| ®on-Executive Director | Independent Committee Charter
(NED) (iD) _ _ .
3 1 | NONE ]

Key Responsibilities Power

Functions ]

its role is (0 oversee opergtions of |1. Decision making outhority between
the boord ond act on beholf of the | full boord meetings

boord during on-demond octivities
thot occur between meetings.
These octs ore loter presented for |
Jull boord ceview

2. Emergency decision moking

|3. Advising the CEC
\

To reet os needed.

Act on urgent or on-demand
motters in between boord
meetings.

Obtoin ony independent jegal or
other professiongl odvice thot it
considers necessocy to execute
its functions.

Expend orgonizotionol resources
whenever necessory to fulfill its

responsibifities. |
|

Executive Committee Decisions
must be rotified by the full

| I T Boord o
Audit and Risk Management Committee
L o MNoofMemoers | ]
. Execulive (ED) “ Non-Executive Direclor | Independent Director | Committee Charter
I 102 F— | (1D) _ .
| 2 1 Z | YES

T - " e P TR =

Functions | Key Responsibilities | Power "

The principol responsibility of the ‘II. Finonciol Reporting Process
committee is to ossist the boord in |

fulfilling its corporate governonce | 2. System of Risk Management ond
ond fiduciory oversight | Internof Control

EQ ] st g
| 1. Investigote ony motter within the

| scope of its responsibilities ond
maoke oppropricte
| _recammendetions to the boord.
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Functions

Key Responsibilities

Fower

responsibilities in relotion to the
risk manogement, internal control
systems, accounting policies and
practices, internol ond external
oudit functions ond finoncial
reparting of Paxys, inc. ond its
subsidiorfes

3. Internol Audit Process

4, Externol Audit ond Finoncial
Statements

5. Organization’s pracess for
monitaring complionce

2. Unrestricted access to senior
monagement and its subsidiories,
and ta company records os
required.

3. Meet with the external ond
internol auditors, without ony
other member of manogement
being present

6. Speciol investigotion ond
whistleblower mechanism 4. Obtain ony independent legol or
ather professiano! odvice thot it
considers necessory to execute its
functions.

5. Expend orgonizotionol resources
whenever necessory ta fulfill its
responsibilities.

Nominatien and Governance Committee
No. of Members
Executive (ED) Non-Executive Director | Independent Director | Committee Charter
{NED} (1D}
1 1 2 YES
Functions Key Responsibilities Power

Assist the boord in identifyving
quolified individuals to become
boord members, in determining
the campaesition of the boord of
directors ond its committees, In
maonitoring o process to ossess
boord  effectiveness ond in
developing ond implementing the
compony's corporgte governonce
principles ond guidelines.

To lead the seorch for individuals
quolified to become members of the
boord of directors ond to select
director neminees to be presented
for shorehalder approval ot the
onnual meeting

To review the boord of directors’
cammittee structure ond
recommend directors to serve os
members of each cammittee.

To develop ond recommend o set of
corporote  governonce principles,
stondards ond guidelines ond toking
o feodership role in shoping the
corporate  governonce of the
compony

Ensure opprapriote senior leadership
succession plonning is in pioce ond
recommend potentiol ond octuol
successors to the CEO ond other key
senjor leadership roles,

Monitor the group’s fiduciory and

Delegate ony of its responsibilities
to subcommittees as the committee
maoy deem oppropriote in its sole
discretion

Retoin any seorch firm engoged to
ossist in identifying director
candidotes, ond to retoin outside
counsel and ony other advisors os
the committee moy deem
oppropriate, ond opprove reloted
fees ond retention terms.

Decide on the committee structures
ond members.

Select nominees for boord of
directors.

Investigote coses lodged agoinst
ony of the boord of directors.
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2)

'regulatory responsibilities with
‘ [ respect to externol reporting
Remuneration and Compensation Committee
No. of Members - : ]
Executive (ED) | Non-Executive Direclor | independent Director i Committee Charter
e | (NED) {10}
| 1 1 1 ' NONE
[ ~ FEunctions i Key Responsibilities H Power
| The Committee ensures the | Provide oversight on the | No member of the Committee will
existence of o tronsporent | remunerotion of senior monogement | be directly responsible for providing
procedure for developing policy on | ond key personnel. odvice or recommendotions
executive remunerotion ond for | concerning the levei or composition
fixing remunerotion pockoges of | Set in place remunerotion policies | of his or her remunerotion to the
corporate officers ond directors | which ore designed to ottroct ond | Boord.
and provides oversight over the | retoin directors, corporate officers,
remuneration of senior | senior monogers with the expertise | The Committee hos the right to
I monogement ond  other key | to enhance the performance ond seek internol ond externol odvice
persannel ensuring thot | growth of the Compony when it considers such

compensation s consistent with
the corporotion’s culture, strategy
ond control environment.

Ensure thot the level ond
composition of remunerotion
pockoges are foir, reasonoble ond
adequate and is linked to

odvice necessory in order to fulfill
its responsibilities.

Request and expect information
from monogement ina form,

perfarmance. timefrome ond of o
quality that will enabfe the ‘
Committee to effectively dischorge !
its duties. [
IL Recommend board ond |
: manogement compensotion and
- | remunerotion. )
Committee Members
{a) Executive Committee
Date of hies ol ek ! éznrvglzt?:
Office Name R trc\:ent Meetings | Meetings % [ the
PRoIn Held Attended | 4
| Committee |
Chairmon | Torcisio M, Medollo 3 Dec, 2015 a4 1 | d00% -
Member {NED) | Lim Ghee Keong | 3 Dec. 2015 i 2 | 100% 10
Member (NED) | RogerLeo A Coriip | 3 Dec. 2015 i | B 100% R
Member [NED) | Roberto A. Atendido | 3 Dec. 2015 i | 3 | iR | B |
Member {(NED) | Sivam Kandovanom 3 Dec, 2015 | 1 1 100 lﬁ 4
{b) Audit and Risk Management Lommitiee
Date of L i of ‘ ;anlt: :
Office Name aj Meetlngs | Meetings % Rl
Appointment Held Attended the
. J Committee |
Choirman (ID) | Jose Antonio A. Lichouco | 30ee. 2015 | a4 | a4 | 100% | 11 |
Member (NED) | Roberto A. Atendido | 3Dec 2015 | 4 | 3 | 75% | 13 |
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F
Member (iD) | George Y. Sycip 3Dec 2015 | 4 | 3 | 75%

Member (NED) | Roger Leo A Corino 3 Dec. 2015 | 3 | 7s% |

|
g I

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

Jose Antonio A. Lichauco is concurrenily the President of Asian Alliance Investment Corp., specializing in
Investment Banking and Corporate Finance. He is also concurrently a Director of Automated Technology
[Philippines), Inc. where he was previously Senior Vice-Fresident and Chief Financial Officer. He also held
positions at tnsular Investment and Trust Corporation and at SGV & Co. He obtained his Masters Degree
in Business Administration from Columbia University in New York, USA in 1589

Raberto A. Atendido has been a Director of the Corporation since October 1, 2004. He is currently the
Executive Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance Investment Corp. and President/Director of Asian Alliance
Holdings and Development Carp. He is currently § member of the board of the following companies:
Philippine Business Bank, Picop Resources Corporation, Sinag Energy Fhilippines, Pharmarex
Corporation, and Macay Holdings nc. He holds a Masters Degree in Business Management from the
Asian [nstitute of Management,

George Y. Sycip has been a Director of the Company since October 1, 2004. He advises a variety of
companies in their cross-border endeavors between the US/Europe and Asia and serves on the corporate
Boards of Alliance Select Foods International Inc., asian Alliance Investrent Corp., Bank of the Orient in
San Francisco, Beneficial Life Insurance Company and MacroAsia Corporation. He is also a Trustee or
Director of the International Institute for Rural Reconstruction, Give2Asia, Global Heritage Fund and the
California Southeast Asia Business Council. He holds a Masters Degree in Business Administration from
Harvard Business School and a Bachelors degree in International Relations/Economics from Stanford
University,

Roger Leo A, Coriflo has been a Director of the Corporation since December 30, 2003, He is currently the
Corporation’s Treasurer, which he also held from 2004 to 2006 and 2009. He is concurrently a Director of
UT Global Services Limited, 2 privately held investment company with an RHQ in Manila and affilisted
with All Asia Customer Service Holdings Ltd. He has been connected with the Group since 1990. He
graduated with a BSC degree, major in Accountancy, from Ateneo de Maga University and attended the
ME&A Program at Murdoch University and the Strategic Business Economics program at the University of
Asia and the Pacific. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor,

Per the Audit Committee’s Charter, it shall have the following responsibilities:
1.

Review the externol ouditor’s proposed oudit scope and opproach, in¢luding coordinotion of audit
effort with internol oudit.

Recommend the appointment, retention ond dischorge, ond review the performaonce of the externol
ouditor,

Review gnd recommend the compensation of the externol auditor.

Review ond recommend for opprovol of the full boord, the oudited financiol staternents, ossocioted
manogement letter, gttestotion on the effectiveness of the internol control structure ond procedures
for finonciol reporting, other required cuditor communications, ond oll other cuditor reports ond
communicotions reloting fo the finonciol stotements.

Review the responsiveness ond timeliness of monagement’s follow-up octivities perteining to any
reported findings and recommendations.

On o need bosis, meet separotely with the externol ouditor to discuss ony matters thot the commitiee
or auditors believe should be discussed privotely.

Review the onnual fingncial stotements, ond consider whether they ore complete, consistent with
infermatign known ta committee members, ond reflect cppropriote occounting principles

Evolupte and determine the nan-oudit work, if ony, of the externg! guditor, ond review periodicolly the
ngn-oudit fees poid to the externgl ouditor in relotion to their significonce to the tatol onnuc! income of
the externol ouditor ond to the Carporation’s averglf cansultancy expenses. The committee sholl
disoflow any non-gudit work thot wilf conflict with his duties os on externof ouditer or moy pose threat
te his independence The non-oudit work, if olfowed, shell be disclosed in the Corporgtion’s annuc!
report.




3)

(<}

Nomination and Governance Committee -

o - C Length
No. of No. of !
. 0.0 .
Office Name Da.te of Meetin | Meetings % S_erv;\ce
Appomtment gs Held | Attended int E
Committ
e
Chairman (ED Torcisio M. Medolio =' 1 1| 100 11
B2 | 2 Dec 2015 o |
2 |
Member (ID) George Y. Sycip 3 pec. 2015 1 | 1 100 w |
| | .
ember {1D) lase Antonio A. Lichauco 3 Dec. 2015 ! 1 | 100 3
Member (non-voting) | Roger Leo A. Corino 7 Dec. 2015 i 1 | 100 14,
%
{d) Remuneration Committee
STl i'
Date of No-ot Ma. o i ;zﬂwg“h ?r:
Office Name PR Meetings | Meetings | % i
ppointment Held | anended the
s . E : | Committee
Chairman (ED] | Torcisio M. Medailo 30ec 2015 | 1 | 1 00% | 11 |
Member [NED) I Roger Leo A. Cerino 3 Der. 2015 1 | i 100% | k| |
A5 - i chE ol ! ==
hember (iD) | George Y. Sycip _ § 1 100% | ig |
(e} Others (Specify)
Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:
T | T No. ot _N _f T Length of
. 00 .
S
Office Name A Daitetof t Meetings Meetings % er:rr:ce n
ppointmen Held Attended e
- | Committee
Choirmon I NA I B
Member (E0)] NA |

Member (NED] | NA
Member {ID) NA
Member | NA

Changesin Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

There are no changes in ony of the committee memberships during the yeor.

Name of Committee |'
Executive | na
| Audit | A
| Nomination | NA
‘ﬁmingrano_n i _i EA
| Others (specify] ! NA

Name

Reason
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4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

Name of Committee

Work Done

Issues Addressed

members, selected director nominees
for shoreholder approvol ot the
onnuol  meeting, reviewed the
Board’s committee structure,
reviewed ond updated its corporote
governance structure, ensured
complionce to reguiatory
requirements such os the Annuol
Report.

Executive Review of M&A proposols and | Invest in o certain campony or not.
provide recommendotion to the
Board

Audit interno! Audit, Internal Control Issues
Complied with the responsibilities as | - Significont control  issues os
defined in the chorter such os | elevoted by internol Audit reloting to
guorterfy  meetings, review of | Operations, Finonce, HR, IT ond
internol oudit reparts, review of | Complionce, The Committee s
financiol statements ond external | manitoring the closure of the oction
oudit results, risk monogement | jtems by monogement,
processes, review of complionce to
its chorter, revision of its | Ensured thot Monogement
performance metrics ond ossessment | addressed the oudit issues ond
of its performaonce vs. chorter. findings roised by Externol Auditars.

Nomination Assessed performonce of the Boord

1. Flection of Boord members

2. Boord Committees oligned with
SEC/PSE Corporate Governonce
best proctice structure

3, Complionce to  fiduciory ond
regulotory requirements

Remuneration

Reviewed Remuneration of Board of
Directors

tncreased boord per diem fees

§) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues in the
improvement or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Name of Committee

Planned Programs

Issues to he Addressed

Executive

Revisit Group Strategy

Review business and investment

epportunities

Audit and Risk

Current proctices are adhoc or not

Whist w i
Management istleblawer Policy documented.
minati . . ,
Nomination and Revisit Boord Governance Proctices Board Evaluation
Governance

Remuneration

Revisit  board and  executive

compensation

Determine whether board and
executive remuneration ore
equitable ond still competitive.
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F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
1) Disclose the following:

{a) Overall risk management philosophy of the company;

Paxys,Inc. is cammitted to its objectives of growth and incregsing shoreholder voiuve. Tawa?‘
ochieving its objectives, we will foce risks to our business strotegy ond operotions and risks
ossocioted with our peaple, ossets, reputotion ond partnerships. The effective menogement of the
entire spectrum of these risks is the underlying rotionale for the ERM fromewark odopted by the
compony. The Fromework creotes an instinctive and consistent consideration of risk and reward in
day-to-doy planning, execution and monitoring of the strategy and ochievement of corporote gools.
There shouid be full ond due consideration to the balonce between risk and reward, os for os
practicoble, in order to optimize the rewords goined from our business and operationol activities
ond from teking of informed risks.

Paxys defines risk as potentiol future events which could impede the ochievement of its objectives.
it is measured in terms of impoct and likelihood. Business risks arise as much from the likelihood of
lost oppartunities as it does from uncertainties ond horords. Qur policy is to identify, evoluote ond
respond approprictely to risks identified so os o protect the compony from losses, uncertainty ond
fost opportunity.

(b) A statement that the directaors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof;

The Board ond manogement continue to engoge in risk management octivities aimed not only to
pratect the compony from odverse aperotional occurrences but olso be oble to moximize
apportunities. Risks the company is facing are token up in the boord during its discussion of finoncial
and aperational perfarmance, os well as specific discussions of company strotegies and direction.
Alfthough the Boord through fts Audit and Risk Manogement Committee believes the compony’s risk
management pracesses can stilt be more robust, overoll it considers these processes effectively
implemented te support the company’s ottoinment of its objectives.

(¢} Period covered by the review; lanuary 2015 to December 2015

(d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its

effectiveness;

Review of risks is embedded in the regulor audits. Criterio for ossessing effectiveness of risk
monogement system:
- Risks ore managed within the defined risk toleronces/risk appetite
Risk monagement pracesses ore robust (embedded in the day 1o doy management
processes
Risks ore cdequately contralled

{e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Nort opplicoble.

2) ARisk Policy
{a) SCOPEWORKS ASIA

Give a general_descriptian of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system {ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each
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kind of risk:

Risk Exposure

Risk Management Policy

Objective -

Humon Resources:

1. Hiring ond Retention

2, Competency gops

3, Emplaoyee Turnover
Rate

It will expend resources to develap
its human resource, expond its
sources of talent ond monoge its
ottrition rote to below industry
stondards.

To deploy required quontity ond
quolified monpower within the
ollotted  time ond ovoiloble
resaurces; mointain ottrition to o
rote  lower  thon  industry
stondords; integrate peaple,
systems ond  processes  in
ochieving orgonizationo! gogis.

Financiol
Monogement:
1. Foreign currency risk

2. Credit risk

3. Liquidity risk

Ta the extent possible, the
Company shall obtain debt
finoncing in the currency in which
maojarity of revenues ore
denaminoted in order to match os
much os possible foreign currency
denominoted costs with foreign
currency denominoted revenues.

Make use of hedging instruments
including derivotives

{i.e., currency forword controcts} to
manage the effects of fareign
exchonge fluctuotions on

financiol results.

The Compony trodes only with
recognized, creditworthy third
porties, It is the Compony’s

policy thot all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms ore subject
to credit verificotion

procedures.

To meosure and forecost its cosh
commitments, to match debt
moturities with the ossets being
finonced, to mointoin o diversity of
funding seurces with its

occess to bonk finoncing ond the
copitol morkets ond to hold o
sufficient level of cosh reserves.

Ta limit the impact af any
appreciotion of the Philippine
Peso vis-u-vis its foreign currency
denominated revenues and
receivables ond ultimately on the
finonciol performonce;

To protect itself from bod debt
losses

To mointoin continuity of funding

Informotion
Technology:

Dato Integrity/Loss of
criticol doto

Information con anly be modified
ond occessed by those outhorized
to occess the system. Ensure the
outharizotion, completeness and
occurocy af business tronsoctions
os they ore entered into, processed,
summorized, ond reported by the
vorious network-enobled systems
deployed by the orgonizotion.

To intelligentfy invest in new ond
enhonced technology to meet

Protect compony information
assets as well os criticol client
informotian residing with the
company.
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Risk Exposure

Risk Management Policy

Objective

Rapid chonges in
technalogy

Telecommunicotions ar
technolagy dawntime

existing as well os future
reguirements.

Partner with telecammunicotions
companies with strang telecom ond
network infrastructures thot could
suppaort efficiency as well as
redundancy.

The call center’s autsourcing
operations ore highly dependent an
computer and telecommunications
equipment, software systems, and
cantinuaus avoilobility of voice ond
electranic cammunicotion. The
temparary or permonent loss of
equipment or systems could reduce
the coll center's revenues. A
significant interruption of service
could hove o negotive impoct on
the call center’s reputotion ond
could leod to o reduction from
present aond potentia! clients in
demand for the coll center’s
services.

IT os an enobler of the company
to support its orgonizationol and
stroteqgic gools.

Solid IT infrastructure to minimize
or prevent downtime, disruptions
or increased casts.

Environmentol! Health
and Sofety:

Naturol catostraphes
such as typhoaons,
floads, earthquoke
causing short or long-
term stoppage af work

Ta monoge workplace hozards so as
to reduce or efiminate the HSE risk
posed to employees, visitors,
cansultants, contractors,
emplayees af controctors, persons
employed through lobour hire
agencies and volunteers

Business Cantinuity ond Disaster
Recovery progroms shouid ensure
thot employees, custamers ond
compaony ossets ore protected
during colomities.

Ta limit the impact/disruption of
business

To safeguard the welfare and
health of employees

(b) Group

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system {ranked according to priority}, along with the objective behind the policy for each

kind of risk:

Risk Expasure

Risk Management Palicy

Objective

Humaon Resources:
1. Hiring ond Retentian
2. Competency gops

The company will hire ond retain
Sor tolent. It will expend resources
to develop its human resource,
expond its sources af tolent.

To deploy required quantity ond
qualified manpower within the

ollotted  time ond ovoiloble
resources;  integrote  people,
systems ond  processes  in

ochieving orgonizational gools.

Financiol
Monogement:
4. Foreign currency risk

Ta the extent possible, the
Company shall obtain debt
finoncing in the currency in which
majority of revenues ore

Ta limit the impoct of any
oppreciation af the Philippine
Peso vis-a-vis its fareign currency
denominated revenues and
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Risk Exposure

Risk Management Policy

Objective

5. Credit risk

6. Liguidity risk

7. Copitol
Muonogement

denaminated in order to motch os
much os possible foreign currency
denominoted costs with foreign

currency denominoted revenues.

Make use of hedging instruments
including derivatives

{i.e., currency forword controcts) to
manoge the effects of foreign
exchonge fluctuotians on finonciol
resuits,

The Compony trades only with
recognized, creditworthy third
porties. It is the Company’s

policy that off customers who wish
to trade on credit terms ore subject
to credit verification procedures.

To meosure and forecost its cash
commitments, to motch debt
maturities with the ossets being
finonced, te maintoin o diversity of
funding sources with its occess to
bonk finoncing ond the copito!
morkets ond o hold o sufficient
level of caosh reserves.

To pursue profects if their expected
returns are higher thon cost of
copitol. The Company oims for
flexibitity in the capitol structure to
meet chonging conditions ond
odopt with minimum cost and
deloy. it looks ot solvency by
keeping its debt copocity within its
obility to generote future cosh
Fflows.

recelvables and uitimotely on the
financiol performance;

To pratect itself from bod debt
losses

To mointoin continuity of funding

The primory objective of the
Compony’s copitol monogement is
to ensure that it mointains o
strong credit rating ond healthy
copitol rotios in order to support
its business and maximize
shareholder volue.

(a) Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

Risk to Minority Shareholders

Principol shoreholder is cognizant of the rights of the minority shoreholders ond hos nat exercised
its power or exercise any oction that is detrimentol to the minority shoreholders.

3) Control System Set Up

(a) SCOPEWORKS ASIA/PAXYS, INC. {Company/Group)

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and cantrol the main issue/s faced by the

company:

Risk Exposure

Risk Assessment
{Monitoring and Measurement Procass)

Risk Management and Control
{Structures, Procedures, Actlons Taken)
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Risk Exposure

Risk Assessment
{Monitoring and Measurement Process)

Risk Management and Control
(Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)

Humaon Resources:

1. Hiring and Retention

2. Campetency gops

3, Employee  Turnover
Rate

Established KPls which are
manitared both by Operotions ond
HR ond ore port of the monthly
Operations Report

Risk Owner- HR

Hiring and Retention policy hos been
estoblished ond communicated;
Perfarmance manogement system is
in place for the subsidiories;
progroms ore in place to ensure low
ottrition rote and this is a KPl thot is
being manitared monthly.

Finonciol Management:

1. Fareign currency risk
2, Credit risk

3. Liguidity risk

4. Copitol Monogement

1. Doily monitoring of FX rates
using PDEX and OANDA.

2. Established hedging strotegy.
3. Ensuring poyobles ore poid an
time/due dote ond on the bijled
currency.

4, Pre-ogreed/dealt rote with the
bonks,

5. Monitoring of AR oging

Risk Owner- Finonce
Hedging/Non-deliveroble Forword
Contract - short term, mox of 1 yeor
covered period;

Dual Currency Investment/Deposit
{DCI/DCD); Poying the
disbursements on the currency we
are being billed or pre-ogreed
conversion rate; Arronge with the
bank the rate/s ta be used in
converting the foreign currency to
Peso, i.e. spot rate, volue tom or T+2.

Doily reparting of cosh bolonce per
accaunt per compony; Short term
money market plocement; Excess
funds are piaced in highly liguid
investments like DA, TD ond bonk's

. Hguidity funds.
rmoti , ) Risk Owner: 1T
Information Estoblished MOAs annexed with ISk wner ,'|
Technaology: . Controcts with Telco ond other
. KPls with the telecom ond network . .
1. Doto Integrity/Loss componies network providers includes KPIs to
of eriticol doto P measure downtimes ond breoches,
2. Ropid changes i includ. Ities for non-
opid changes in Monthly operational report aisa ;nF udes penolties for no
technology , . complionces to KPls
N particulorly on network downtimes .
3, Telecammunicotions . IT Infrastructure redundoncies
ond network or security breoches, . ,
or technojogy ifon Disaster Recovery ond Business
downtime y Continuity

Environmentol Health

and Safety:

1. Naturel catostrophes
such os typhoons,
floads, earthquake

Review of the business cantinuity
plans ond the disoster recovery
progrom

Risk Owner: Operotions

Disoster recovery and business
continuity progroms

Netwark redundancies

Offsite/ hot site disoster recovery
canter

{b) Committee

identify the committee or any other body of corporate povernance in charge of laying down and
supervising these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

Committee/Unlt Control Mechanism Details of its Functions

Audit and Risk
Monogement Committee

The Committee provides | Review ond ossess the effectiveness
aversight of Compony’s risks ond | of the argonization's risk
risk monogement octivities to | manogement system, including risks
the Board. of information technology systems,
ond that the company is able to
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internol Audit prooctively r:opt?mr‘ze its opportunities through its
reports to the Monagement ond | risk monogement progrom.
to the Audit Committee high risk
concerns. Inquire of monogement, the heod of
the internol  oudit, the risk
Some risks gre directly reported | monogement heod, ond the externo!
ond discussed ot the Boord level | ouditor obout significont risks or
either by Legol, Finonce or Audit. | exposures ond ossess the steps
| monogement hos token to minimize
| such risks to the company.

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL
1} Internal Control System
Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

(a) Explain how the internal control system is defined for the company;

Qur internal control definition is bosed on the COSO fromewaork thus defined os follows: It is a

orocess effected by the Compony’s boord of directors, monogement, ond other personnel, designed

to provide reosonoble ossuronce regeording the achievement of objectives reloting to operotions,

reporting, ond complionce. Fundaomento! concepts:

v Geored to the achievement of objectives in one or more cotegories—operotions, reporting, ond
complionce

s Aprocess consisting of ongoing tosks ond octivities—o meons to on end, not on end in itself

s [Lffected by people—nat merely obout policy ond procedure monuals, systems, ond forms, but |
obout people ond the octions they roke ot every level of on orgonization to offect internol
contrel

s Able ta provide recsonoble ossuronce—but not cbsolute assuronce, o on entity’s senior
monogement and boord of directors

= Adaptoble to the entity structure—flexible in opplicotion for the entire entity or for o particulor
subsidiary, division, operoting unit, or business process.

{b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and whether
they consider them effective and adequate;

Heving considered off existing controls os reperted by the interno! ond the externol cuditors to the
committee ond the reports of the executive monogement os they were presented to the Boord, the
Committee is of the opinion thot the compony’s system of internol controls ore generclly sound.

{c) Period covered by the review;

Ll':m:a-:rrv. 2015 pp to December, 2015

{d) How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the
internzl control system; and

Periodic reviews ore undertoken by internol Audit bosed on the Audit Cormmittee approved Audit Plon.
A roting matrix meos uring the effectiveness and complionce to internol control policies hos been
developed bosed an the COSC internol controf compenents.

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.
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2)

Internal Audit

{a) Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit

function.

Role

Indicate whether

Strategic portner
for governance,
risk monagement,
ond control:

Provide
independent,
objective ossurance
ond cansulting
services designed
to odd value ond
imprave
operationo!
efficiency.

Help the
orgonrizotion
occomplish its
objectives by
bringing o
systermnotic,
disciplined
opprooch to
evaiuote ond
improve the
effectiveness of risk |
monogement,
control, ond
governance
processes.

In-house or
Scope Outsource
Internal Audit
_ Function |
To determine In-house

whether the !
orgonization’s [
nebwork of risk
monagement,

control, and
governance

processes, os
designed ond
represented by
manogement, Js
adequote ond
functioning in o
manner [0 ensure:

- Risks gre
cppropriately
identified ond
manoged,

including ‘
technology risks.
Significont
finonciol,
monggeriol, and
operoting
informotion is
accurate, relioble,
ond timely.

- Employees’ actions
are in complionce
with policies,
stondords,
procedures, and
opplicable lows
ond

regulations.
Resources ore
ocquired
econgmicofly, used |
efficiently, ond
odequotely
prolected.
Programs, plons,
ond abjectives are
ochieved,

Quolity ond

continuous

Name of Chief
internal
Auditor/Auditing
Firm

The compiny
does not hove o
Chief tnteraal
Auditor as al
reporting tme.
The Audit
Committee
directly oversees
the audit
function,

Reporting process

Issures or findings
ore giscussed with
Manogement and
the members of the
Audit Committee

Action items org
being monitared at
the Augditcem and
Executive
Maonagement levels.
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(b

(c)

{d)

{e}

Indicate whether Name of Chief

In-house or Internal
Rol . ti
ole Scope Outsource_ Auditor/Auditing Reporting process
Internal Audit N
. Firm
Function

improvement ore
fostered in the
orgonizotion’s
control

process.

- Significont

: legislotive or
requlatory issues
impocting the
orgonizotion aore
recognized ond
oddressed
oppropriately.

Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting fauditing firm or corporation
to which the internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?

Yes, the Audit Committee opproves the appointment/removal of bath the Internol Auditor ond the
External Auditors.

Discuss the internal auditor's reparting relationship with the audit committee. Does the internal auditor
have direct and unfettered access to the hoard of directors and the audit committee and to all records,
properties and personne|?

The Internol Audit Activity (1AA) functionally reports to the Audit Committee. its charter puthorizes
1AA to hove unrestricted occess to olf functions, records, property, ond personnel; ond hove full ond
free access to the Audit Committee. This relotionship is perfected through the quorterly ond speciol
meetings of/with the Audit Committee.

In the same manner, responsibilities of the Audit Committee os stated in its chorter stotes;
«  Epsure thot internal ouditors hove occess to oll documents, informetion ond systems in the
orgonizotion
- Ensure there ore no unjustified restrictions or limitotions ploced an the Audits

Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff {including those employed by the
third-party auditing firm) and the reasen/s for them.

Name of Audit Staff Reason

NA

Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit’s progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination
trends.

‘ Progress Against Plans On-going o - T —|
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|GeuRs Ne significant ssues or findings have been neted that would put
i | the Company or Group at major risk |
Findings’ Na significont isswes or findings hove been noted thot ‘would p-ar |
|22 AN | the Company or Group ot major risk B |
| Examination Trends No significont trends noted '

(The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review
cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:

1) Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Ewvsluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of tha examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings {“examination trends”) based on single year

result and/or year-to-year results;
6) Conduci of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis )

{f) Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and
the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been
implemented under the column “Implementation.”

Policies & Procedures Implementation

| Functionol Reporting to the Audit Committee to ensure
orgonizotional independence o

{Internol Audit Charter estoblishing the mission, outhority,
scope, responsibilities ond the stondords of oudit proctice of | Implemented
the internol Audit Activity.

Risk-based Audit methodelogy covering risk bosed oudit plons
ond risk focused oudit engogements

Quolity Assuronce ond improvement Progrom | Portiol implementation |

implemented |

\ |
Implemented |

vorterly reporting of the stotus of the oudit plon, oudit [
Q ¥ o g of s BiEl 2 el implemented
resuits ond stotus of monogement oction plans |
Audit Manuol to guide the ouditors in the conduct of their
o . o , 2 | Implemented
oudits including odministrotive policies ond procedures [ — [
Established key performance indicotors ond individuo! key [
i . implemented
result oregs, monthly monitoring ond reporting |

{g) Mechanisms and Safeguards

S5tate the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investrment banks and rating agencies (example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares
and imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services
that an external auditor may provide to the company):

(Intern:Iuadr:f:loEriternaI) | Financial Analysts [ Investment Banks Rating Agencies
Externol Auditor: Limitotion |
on the non-oudit services fMaoteriol public informotion ore to be disclosed first to regufotars within
rendered by the externcl ‘ the prescribed period for reporting. Depending on the informetion to be
ouditors ond ol non-oudit | relegsed, Investment bonks, onolysts and rating agencies moay only be
services will be efevatedto | informed gfter the releose of the same ro the regulotors.
the Audit Committee for
opproval ~ l The compony is olso guided by its Code of Ethics where there is o |

® »issues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations.
? “Findings” are those with concrete basis under the company’s policies and rules.
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. Ayc_iito_rs
{Internal and External}

'F(Inanc'iél Analysts

Investment Banks

Rating Agencles

internal Auditor: Functionol

reporting to the Audit
Committee

Duly  approved  Audit
Committee ond Internol
Audit Chorters

possibifity of o conflict of interest.

{h} State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEO) who will have to attast to the company's full
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors,
officers and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as
mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

Choirmon of the Board/President ond an Independent Director attests to the compony’s full
complionce to the SEC Code of Corporate Governance,

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company's policy and activities relative to the following:

Policy

Activities

Customers' welfare

Employees could avoid unfoir
odvantoge of onyone through
manipulation, concealment, obuse of
outhority, misrepresentation ond/or
ony unfair deoling. All employees
must deal foirly with the compony’s
customers.

Trocking of SLA’s and KPis

Supplier/controctor
selection proctice

Suppliers should undergo
occreditotion;

Supplier occreditotion;
Implementotion of the

procurement policy: o 3 vendor procurement policy
policy
Environmentaolly friendly None None

volue-choin

Community interoction

Compaony will octively porticipote in
community development and will
support environment protection.

Scholarships for selected students
in High School ond College levels

Anti-corruption
progrommes ond
procedures

Compaony prohibits all forms of
bribery ond corruption. Gifts and
ather meons of showing oppreciotion
ond gratitude moybe exchonged
with business portners given thot it
will never influence business
decisions. Acceptonce ond giving of
ony gift must be ovoided if it moy be
perceived os unfoir or moy influence
o business relotionship or any
business declision.

Compony has zero toleronce for
froud ond will cooperote os
necessary with low enforcement
ogencies. Company ossets moy be
used only for legitimote business
PUrposes.

We do not engoge in solicitation
progroms with our suppliers ond
vendaors

Strict camplionce ond monitoring
of regulotory requirements

Implementing appropriote
aperationol ond finonciol controls.

40



Policy Activities
Safeguording creditars’ Nane Nane
rights

2} Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section or sustainability
report/section?

For 2015, the company did not have a separate sustainability report.

3) pPerformance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation,

{a) What are the company’s policy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?

Anti-discrimination policy Equal Employment Opportunity
Anti-harassment policy Smoking Policy

Safety and health policy Annual Physical Exarnination
Drug-Free workplace Lactotion Break

{b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

The company implements on integrated approach ta emplayees’ safety, health ond welfare. It ensures
thot employees ore provided with reosonoble coverage for hospitalizotion ond medical consultotion
services. Employees are also encouroged to monitar their health through compony-driven health
activities ond e-moil or bulletin onnountements.

Company is compliont to Health and Safety requirements as required by the Deportment af Labor,
Local Municipolities ond Building Administrotors.

(c) State the company’s training and development programmaes for its employees. Show the data,

Employees are provided with oppropriate trainings end cantinuous prafessional education through company’s
in-house development pragroms. For more technical ar speciolized needs, a third-porty Troinor is usually
hired or employees are sent autside for troining. The compony ensures that its employees are equipped with
the right skills ond competency to perform their tasks.

(d) State the company’s reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company
beyond short-term financial measures

The company’s reword and campensotion palicy currently accounts far the short-term financiol
measures anly.

4) What are the company’s procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning illegal (including
corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

Camploints are either coursed through HR, Complionce or Internol Audit. Depending on the camplaint,
either of the above departments will investigote although in mast coses, these are initiolly handled by HR
ond then elevated te Internol Audit if there is a need to review transactions and processes. Again,
depending on the result of the initial investigation, the case could either be closed (if there are no clear
bosis bosed on the company’s code of ethics/code of conduct) wherein the complainant will be odvised
of the result of initiol investigotion. If clear violations were found during the initio! investigotion, the
case will proceed to formal Investigation and sonctions will be imposed based an the campany’s code of
conduct ond discipline. ldentities of whistleblowers ore not divulged.
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DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure

2)

{a) Holding 5% shareholding or more
Shareholder Number of Percent Beneficial Owner
Shares
All Asig Custamer Service 630,844,038 54.93% | All Asia Customer Service Holdings
Holdings Ltd. Lid.
Paxys NV, 345,622,477 30.05% | Poxys N V.
PCD Nominee Corporation 170,085,375 14.81% | Vorious stockholders
Number of
MNamne of Senior Management Number of Direct Indirect shares / % of Capital Stock
shares Through [rame of
recard owner)
Net Applicable, All shareholdings of Senior Management is less thon 5% os shown below:
Tarcisio M. Medaila 1,120 0.0001%
Christopher B. Muldia 129,520 0.0113%
Ghee Keong Lim 82,800 0.0072%
Roger Leo A. Caorifio 1,120 0.0001%
Roberto A. Atendido 1,000 0.0001%
George Y. SyCip 1,120 0.0001%
Jose Antonio Lichouco 1,120 0.0001%
Sivom Kandavanam 1000 0.0001%
Mork David P. Martinez 1000 0.0001%
TOTAL 218,800 0.0192%
Does the Annual Report disclose the following:
Key risks Yes
Corporate oblectives Yes
Financial performance indicators Yes
Non-financial performance indicators Yes
Dividend policy No
Details of whistle-blowing policy No
Bipgraphical details {at least age, qualifications, date of first appolntment, relevant experience, and any other
- Yes
directorships of llsted companies) of directors/commissioners
Tralnlng and/or continuing education programme attended by each director/commissioner No
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held durlng the year Yes
Attendance details of each director/commissioner in respect of meetings held Yes
Details of remuneration of the CEQ and each member of the board of directors/commissioners Yas

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for

disclosure.

drafted.

No existing dividend and whistle blowing palicy, olthaugh o whistlehfowing policy hos olready been

the non-
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3} External Auditor’s fee

Name of auditor Audit Fee ‘ Non-audit Fee
Reyes, Tacondong & Co. Php JDEEEGJ ‘ N/A

4) t™Medium of Communication

List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

The compony uses its corporote website, emoil, mails, SEC/PSE disclosures, in order to disseminote
informotion to its stockholders.

5) Date of release of audited financial report:

For the Paxys consolidated financial statermnents: April 15, 2015
For the Paxys stand-alone financial statements: April 15, 2015

6) Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

[ == 1

Business operalians 1 Not Updated
Financial statements/reports {current and prior years) Yes

Materials provided In brielings 1o analysts and media [ Yes
Shareholging slructure Yes

Geoup corporale struclure ] Yes |
Downloadable annual report ves

Noatice ol AGM 2nd/or EGM Yes

Company's canstitution {company’s by-laws, memorandum and articles of association) Yes

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

7) Disclosure of RPT

RPT Relationship Nature Value

See Related Party Transactions on the Notes to the Audited Consolidated Finonciol Statements for the wear
ended Decamber 31, 2014,

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

The compony opplies the orms-fength principle ond these transoctions ore properly bogked ond disclosed.

J.  RIGHTS OF 5STOCKHOLDERS
1) Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings

{a} Quorum
Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting as set forth in
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{b)

{c)

(d)

its By-laws.

| “A quorum for ony meeting of the stockholders shell cansist of o majority of the

I vating stock of the Carporation, and a majarity of such quorum shail decide any

| question ot the meeting, sove ond except in those matters where the Corporation
| Low requires the affirmative vote of o greater population.”

Quorum Required

System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

Level of Approving Authority Moanuol; and ofl octs ore rotified ot the Annucl
General Meeting

The group estoblished o level of appraving autherity monuol epproved by the
Description Boord which is the bosis for oll transoactionol oppravols ond whereupen alf

| corporate octs ore rotified during the annual generol meeting.

System Used

Stockholders’ Rights

List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning AnnualfSpecial Stockholders’ Meeting that differ from those laid

down in the Corporation Code.

Stackholders’ Rights under ‘ stockholders’ Rights not in
The Corporation Code . The Corporation Code
i Stackholders’ Rights concerning Annuol/Speciol There cre no other rights gronted to the stockholders
Stockholders’ Meeting are in occordonce with not in the Corporation Code of the Phils,

those granted in the Corporation Code of the Phr‘.’s_i
)

Dividends

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date

Np dividends were declaored in 2015,

Stockholders’ Participation

1. State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special

Stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees.
Include in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the

stockholders as well as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockhoiders’ meetings.

| Measures Adopted | Communication Procedure

Q&A portion during Annuol Generof Meeting, | Announced during the Annuel Generol Meeting
ond all directors inciuding choirmon of the boord
ond individue! committees moy osk questions.

The Boord should be transporent ond fair in the
| conduct of the annuol and speciol stockholders’ | Stockholders of record are informed of the meeting o

opproised oheod of time of their right to oppoint | dote and place of proxy volidotion.
o proxy. Subject to the requirements of the by-

restricted ond ony doubt cbout the volidity of o | been tosked to handle any and olf stockholder guerie

t

meetings of the Corporotion. The stockholders | leost 2 weeks before. The Notice of Meeting includes
should be encouroged to personally attend such | the dote, time, venue end agendo of the meeting, the
meetings. If they connot ottend, they should be | record dote of stockhoiders entitled to vote, ond the

fows, the exercise of thot right sholf not be unduly | The designoted investor Reletions Officer hos also

5

proxy should be resolved fn the stockholders' | and concerns, ond the contoct detoils ore ovoiloble
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Measures Adopted Communication Procedure

Javor. vio our corporote website.

Although ofl stockholders should be treoted
equally or without discriminotion, minority
stackholders moy request in writing the holding of
meetings and the ftems for discussion in the
ogendo thot relote directly to o legitimote
purpose and the business of the Corporotion,
subject to the requirement under the By-iows thot
such requesting stockholder is the holder of
record af not less thon one-fourth of the
outstonding voting copital stock of the
Corporotion.

2. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:
a. Amendments to the company's constitution
b. Authorization of addltional shares
t. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which In effect results in the sale of the company

It is the duty of the Boord to promote the rights of the stockholders, remove impediments to the
exercise of those rights and provide on adequote ovenue for them to seek timely redress for
breoch of their rights.

The Boord should take the appropriote steps to remove excessive or unnecessory costs ond other
administrotive impediments to the stockholders’ meaningful porticipation in meetings, whether
in person or by proxy. Accurote ond timely informotion should be made ovailoble to the
stockholders to enable them to make o sound judgment on olf motters hrought to their attention
for consideration or opprovol.

Every stockholder entitled to vote sholl be entitled to one (1) vote for each shore of stock.

3. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where
items to be resolved by shareholders are taken up? No

a. Date of sending out notices:

As provided in the by-lows, ot leost 2 weeks before the dote of the meeting.

Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting:

Moy of eoch year, os provided for in the by-lows.

a, State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockhalders’ Meeting.

QUESTIONS RESPONSES

NONE.
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5. Result of Annual/Special Stockhalders’ Meeting’s Resolutions

’7 Resolution Approving Dissenting [ Abstaining
Approval of

minutes of YES NONE NONE
previous meeting ‘
Ratification of
corporate acts
Election of new
directors
I_A;Jp.;!.'."lrn?errr of

YES NONE NONE

YES NONE NONE

Reyes, Tacondong (
& Cp. o3 external YES NONE MONE
auditors for the

current year

6. Date of publishing of the resuit of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

The votes taken during the onnuol shoreholders’ meeting are not published The nomes of the elected
directors and officers are disciosed to the PSE immediately ofter the onnual shareholders’ meeting.

(e} Modifications

f

()

State, if any, the medifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the
most recent year and the reason for such modification:

' I i
Modifications Reason for Medification

NONE

Stockholders’ Attendance

(i) Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting Held:

Names of o Voting Procedure | % of SH
Board {by poll, show of | Attendi Total % of
Type of members / Date of hands, ete.) ng % of SH SH
Meetin i Meetin : in Prox
B Officers g in Y| attendance
present
L ; | .__..im it ) |
| p :
Annial | AGNM Minutes | 3 Dec 2015 | Show of hands 54.09% | 30.09% l 84.18%
Speciol | None ‘ | ‘

(i} Does the company appoint an independent party {inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the
ASM/SSMs? NO

{iii) Do the company’s commen shares carry one vote for one share? If not, disclose and give reasons for

any divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one ¢lass of shares, describe the
vofing rights attached tc each class of shaces. YES

Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by 1the company regarding proxy voting in the Annual/Special Stockhotders’
Meeting.
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Company’s Policies

As dujy stated in compony's by-lows, the instrument
authorizing the proxy to act shol be exhibited and filed with
the Corporote Secretory not later thon 10 doys prior to the
date of meeting.

Compony does not require notarizotion of proxies. As stated
in the compony by-lows: Subject to the requirements of the
Notary by-lows, the exercise of the right to oppoint proxy sholf not be
unduly restricted and any doubt cbout the validity of a proxy
should be resolved in the stockholders' favor.

As duly stoted in campany's by-lows, the instrument
outherizing the proxy ta act sholl be exhibited ond filed with
the Corporote Secretary not later thon 10 days priar to the
dote of meeting.

Compeny does not require notorizotion of proxies. As stated
in the compony by-laws: Sukfect to the requirements of the
by-lows, the exercise of the right to oppoint proxy stioll not be
Validity of Proxy unduly restricted ond any doubt obout the volidity of o proxy
shauld be resolved in the stockholders’ fovor.

Execution and acceptance of proxies

Submission of Proxy

Several Proxies

Proxies executed abroad It is the duty of the Boord to promote the rights of the
stockholders, remove impediments to the exercise of thase
rights and provide on odequote gvenue for them to seek
Invalidated Proxy timely redress for breach of their rights.

The Boord will toke appropriote steps to remove excessive or
Validation of Proxy unnecessory costs ond other odministrotive impediments to
the stockholders' meoningful porticipotion in meetings,
whether In person or by proxy. (Monual on Corporate
Governance)

violation of Proxy

[h) Sending of Notices

State the company’s policies and procedure on the sending of noticas of Annual/Special Stockholders’
Meeting.

Policies Procedure

Except as otherwise provided by fow, written or
printed notice of oll annual and speciol meetings
of stockholders, stating the ploce ond time of the
meeting ond, If necessary, the generol noture of
the business to be considered, moy be tronsmitted
by ony one of the following meons: personol
delivery, moil, telegroph, cable or publication in o
newspoper of generol circulotion, ot feost 2 weeks
before the dote of the meeting. it moy also be
onnounced through emcif ond publicotion in its
corporate website, and PSE.

Speciol meetings of the stockholders moy be colled
by the President of the Corporation, or by arder of
the Boord of Directors, whenever he or it moy
deem jt necessory, ond it shofl be the duty of the
President to order ond coll such speciol meeting
whenever the holders of record of not more than
2055 of the outstonding copitol stock of
corporation sholl in writing so request,

The office of the Corporote Secretory prepores
the notices ond issue to registered stockholders
through ony one of the meons olfowed it by the
by-lows. Currently, the Carporote Secretory moils
the notices while ot the some time sends the
notice to SEC.

The some os obove
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Number of Stockholders entitled to recelve
Definitive Information Statements and
Management Report and Other Materials ‘

Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

717 stockholders

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive ‘
Information Statement and Management Report |
and Other Materials held by market
participants/certain beneficial owners
Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive
Information Statement and Management Report
and Other Materiais held by stockholders
State whether CD format or hard copies were
distributed

If yes, indicate whether requesti‘n.g stockholders
were provided hard copies

{)

14 November 2015

14 November 2015

Hard copies were distributed

Not Applicable

Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting include the foliowing:

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only
one item.

Yes, ecch item for resolution is disclosed in the |
ogendo, which Is sent together with the AGM |
notice.

Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification,
date of first appointment, experience, and
directorships in other listed companies)

nominated for election/re-election, —

The auditars o be appointed or re-appointed.

I
Yes, the directors’ profiles ore included in the
Definitive Informotion Stotement, which is sent
together with the AGM notice.

Ye:: oppoﬁ'nrn&éﬁr of ouditors is included in the
ogenda, which is sent together with the AGHM
notice.

An explanation of the dividend policy, if any
| dividend is to be declared.

No, the compony Is still formuloting its dividend |
policy. _ . 1
No, the compony did not declore dividends
during the lost AGM. |

The amount payable for final dividends.

Documents required for proxy vote.

Yes, the proxy farm is sent together with the
AGM naotice.

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereta.

2) Treatment of Minority Stockholders

{a) Statethe company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockhalders.

[ Policies

every stackholder sholf be entitled to one (1} vote
for ecch shore of stock registered in his nome jn
the books of the corporotion. _ |
Although oll stockholders should be treoted
equally  or  without discriminction,  minority
stockholders moy request in writing the holding of
meetings ond the items for discussion in the
ogendo that relote directly to o legitimate purpose
and the business of the Corporotion, subjfect to the

requirement under the By-lows thot such |

Implementation

Implemented, 1 shore, 1 vote policy

There hos been no request from minority

stockholders,
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1)

2)

3)

requesting stackholder is the holder of record of
not less than one-fourth of the outstanding voting
capital stock of the Corporation.

The Boord will toke oppropriote steps to remove
excessive ar uppecessary casts ond other
odministrotive impediments to the stockholders' | Proxies ore not required to be notorized.
meoningful participation in mestings, whether in
person or by proxy.

Presence of ot least 1 Independent Director in | An independent director is olwoys present in
boord meetings board meetings.

(b} Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?

There is no provision in the by-lows nor in the Governonce monuol thot prohibit the minority
stackhalders from nominoting condidotes for boord of directors.

INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

Discuss the company’s external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. ldentify the committee with this
responsihility, if it has been assigned to a committee,

Disclosures will be coursed through the Complionce Officer ond oppraved by the Choirmon/President
of the compony.

Describe the company's investor relations program including its communications strategy to promote effective
cormmunication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disclose the contact details
(e.g. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible far investar relations.

Detalls

{1) Objectives To build the trust ond confidence of our stokeholders in the
campaony’s ability to create value.

To create understending ond owareness of the campeny
amongst the investing community.

{2) Principles Fair disclasure of informaotion; bilateral communicotion
(3) Modes of Communications Company website, PSE
{4) Investors Relations Officer Compliance & Chief Information Officer

What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital
markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

- Alf tronsactions ore evoluoted by the Executive Committee for recommendotion to the Boord

- Prior boord opprovol is secured and immediote disclosure is undertoken upon boord appraval; ond,

- When necessory, os deemed by the board, o third porty foirness apinien for divestment is secured as part
of the evoluotion ond opprovol process,

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the
transaction price,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to he undertaken by the company,
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M.

N,

Initlative Beneficiary

High Scheol Scholorship Progrom 4 students from Holy Family School af Quezon City and
| Ste Theresite’s Acodemy in Silay, Negros,

BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its
committees, individual director, and the CEO/President.

‘_ Process ' Criteria

| Board of Directors " None Il _ |
Board Committees Self - Assessment | Complionce to charter
Individual Directors None |
: Periodic assessment by the
CEQ/President 1 4

Boord | Boord estoblished KPI

INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance manual
involving directors, oflicers, management and employees

| Viclaticns ' Sanctions I
Code of Ethics IDeﬁned- in the company’s Code of Conduct ond
| Discipline

Corporate Governonce Monuol | As recommended by the Complionce Officer and‘
approved by the Boord.
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Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Annual Corporate Governance Report is

signed on hehalf of the registrant
on

(siened)
Tarcisio M. Medalla

by the undersigned,

, 20

SIGNATURES

thereunto duly authorized, in the City of

(signed)
Jose Antonio A, Lichauco

Chairman and President

(signed)
George Y. Sycip

Independent Director

(signed)
Mark David P. Martinez

Independent Director

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 10 before me this __ 28th day of

me their , 35 follows:

NAME/NO.

Tarcisio M. Medalla TIN ID No. 106-885-140
lose Antonio A. Lichauco TIN ID No. 102-030-094
George Y. Sycip TIN |D No. 000-502-547
Mark David P. Martinez  TIN ID No. 248-883-548

Doc No. _ 57 ;
Page No. 6;
Book No.___ 474;
Series of __2013.

DATE OF [SSUE

Compliance Officer

June 2013, affiant(s) exhibiting to

PLACE OF IS5UE

NOTARY PUBLIC

ATTY. DELFIN R. AGCAOILI, IR.
NOTARY PUBLIC
UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2013
PTR NO. 0285334 / 2012-2013 MLA,
IBP NO. 873692 / 2013 MLA,
ROLL NO. 24655 / TIN ~ 144-515-066
MCLE 111-0013521
Com. No, 2013-023
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
)S.S.

nA AL AT ™
WAL E ‘--‘I

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, MARK DAVID P, MARTINEZ, of legal age, Filipino, with office address at 15" Floor, 6750
Ayala Office Tower, Ayala Avenue, Makati City, after having been sworn in accordance with law, depose
and sfate, that:

1. [ am the duly elected and incumbent Corporate Secretary of PAXYS, INC. {the “Corporation™), a
corporation organized and existing under Philippine law with office address at 15" Floor, 6750 Ayala
Office Tower, Ayala Avenue, Makati City.

2. At lhe Regular Meeting of the Board of Directers of the Corporaticn held on 17 December 2015
at which a quorum was present and acted throughout, the following resolution was unanimously
approved:

“RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approve the Corporation’s consolidated

changes in the Annual Corporale Governance Report of the Corporation for the year
20157

3. The {oregoing resolution i1s valid and subsisting based on the records of the Corporation and have
not otherwise been revoked nor superseded.

4. Attached is the 2015 Censolidated Changes in the Annuai Corporate Gevernance Report.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have signed this certification c:-jnfllm o nda}v of January 2016 at
Makati City. FUuTZUIo

MARK DAVID P. MART @
orporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on t!m!,&r‘l o nda ?E January 2016 at

e , affiant exhibited to me the following compﬂenl éwdenm dentity:
Competent Evidence of Identity
Name _ Type of ID and No. Date and Place of Issue
Mark David P. Philippine Passport No. EC0989976 | [ssued at DFA NCR East on 2 May
Martinez - 2014 and valid until | May 2019

Doc. No. /VQ
Page No. ?7/
Book No. /‘37[
Series of 2016.




ITEM 16

PAXYS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF

EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2015

Not Not

Title Adopted
P Adopted | Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics 4

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

Not Not

PFRS Title Adopted
P | Adopted | Applicable

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reportin
PFRS 1 (Revised) P PP porting Y
Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions

PFRS 3 (Revised) | Business Combinations v

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint
Ventures

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts




PFRS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Operating Segments-
Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation
of the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the
Entity's Assets

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Assets

Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
of Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

PFRS 11

loint Arrangements

RN BENS N

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance




. Not Not
PFRS Title Adopted )
Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities v
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment ta PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
. Not Not
PAS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
PAS 1 {Revised) |Presentation of Financial Statements v
Amendments to PAS 1 (Revised): Puttable Financial v
Instruments and Obligatians Arising an Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1 {Revised): Presentation of [tems v
of Other Comprehensive Income
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows v
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
PAS 8 & B g v
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Property Plant and Equipment -
Revaluation Methad - Proportionate Restatement of v
Accumulated Depreciation
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19
Employee Benefits v

{Revised)




. Not Not
PAS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 19 (Revised): Defined Benefit v
Plans: Employee Contributions
A ing f ' f
PAS 20 ccounting for Glovernment Grants and Disclosure o v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 (Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24; Related Party Disclosures - Key %
Management Personnel|
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 S te Fi fal Stat t v
eparate Financial Statements
(Amended) P
Amendments to PAS 27 (Amended): Investment v
Entities
PAS 28 _ _ ,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
financial Instruments: Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable financial Instruments v
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and v
financial Liabilities
PAS 33 Earnings per Share v
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets v
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount v
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets v
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v




Not Not
PAS Title Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable

Amendment to PAS 38: Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Propartionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Amortization

PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement v
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Y
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting %
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option v
Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts v
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets
Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Itemns v
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derjvatives and %
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Investment Property -—
Clarifying the Interrelationship between PFRS 3,
Business Combination and PAS 40 when Classifying v
Property as Investment Property or Owner-occupied
Property

PAS 41 Agriculture v




Philippine Interpretations

. . Not Not
Interpretations Titie Adopted .
Adopted | Applicable

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and

IFRIC 1 NAnges In EXISting & v
Similar Liabilities
Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar

IFRIC 2 v
Instruments
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a

IFRIC 4 "6 gemen v
Lease

FRIC S Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC € Liahilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9: v
Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements v

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v
The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

IFRIC 14 _ , . , v
Funding Requirements and their interaction
Amendments to Phitippine Interpretations IFR|C- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v

FRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity s
Instruments
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface

[FRIC 20 . v
Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies v




PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

. . Not Not
Interpretations Title Adopted ° .
Adopted | Applicable

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v
Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to

SIC-10 . . P v
Operating Activities

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity

SIC-25 ) v
or its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions involving the

SIC-27 & B v
Legal Form of a Lease

SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
Revenue - Barter Transactions Invelving Advertisin

sic-31 _ & & v
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v
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